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China CITIC Bank International Limited
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China CITIC Bank International Limited (“CNCBI”) is 75%-owned by CITIC
International Financial Holdings Limited (“CIFH”), which in turn is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited (“CNCB”). The
remaining 25% of CNCBI are owned by Tian Yuan Trading Limited, Hong
Kong Guansheng Investment Co., Limited, Anxin Trust Co., Limited, Clear
Option Limited and Elegant Prime Limited.

By providing value-creating financial solutions to define and exceed both
wealth management and international business objectives of Greater China and
overseas customers, CNCBI aspires to be “the best overseas integrated financial
services institution”, with the best international standards and capabilities.

CNCBI’s footprint in Greater China includes 33 branches in Hong Kong, as
well as branches and presence in Beijing, Shanghai, Shenzhen and Macau.
CNCBI also has overseas branches in New York, Los Angeles and Singapore.
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Our Mission

To be the China Financial Solutions Provider highly
regarded by institutional and personal customers who
aspire to realise the growth potential in Asia.

We focus on value creation for our stakeholders. Core
to our offering is our intimate knowledge of and our
network capability in China, coupled with our customer-
centric execution of world-class quality.

Nurturing of talent, team spirit and sharing of ownership
and success are our key competitive advantages.

ZooMB{E  Our Core Values
BT HAE Integrity

LLEAEE Customer-centric
£ElE#{E  Value Creating
= Progressive

%
KEBA Building People, Building Team

=% Execution
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Financial Performance

201 7F M BRHE 2017 Financial Highlights
2F (BEE®EBTT) For the year (HK$ million) 2017 2016 % change
F A B A Net interest income 5,395 4,129 1307
FEF B A Non-interest income 2,478 2,284 +8.5
Ke T Operating expenses (3,174) (2,816) +12.7
EXNBREEMERE Impairment losses on loans and advances

WEBKER and other accounts (1,422) (553) +157.2
Al Profit before taxation 3,287 3,053 +7.7
Fris i Income tax (479) (505) -5.2
fi% 5 JE {5 S48 A Profit attributable to shareholders 2,808 2,548 +10.2
REZBH (BE®AT) At year end (HK$ million) 2017 2016 % change
ER R EBR Loans and advances 196,287 183,764 +6.8
BEEHRE Total assets 344,309 306,417 +124
7 5k 485 Total deposits 274,894 246,168 +11.7
% R4 & Shareholders’ equity 37,384 25,781 +45.0
B ¥ b = Financial ratios 2017 2016
B AR R LR Capital adequacy 20.3% 17.8%
19 07 B M A A b R Average liquidity maintenance ratio 59.6% 60.8%
BEFL X Loans to deposits 71.4% 74.7%
B ST U B 3 Cost to income 40.3% 43.9%
REIRTT (BB BIRA R

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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RREGEF (BEET)

Profit attributable to shareholders (HKS million)

Financial Performance

BEERE (BBBRT)

Total assets (HKS million)

RRERE (H&ET)

Shareholders’ equity (HK$ million)

17 17 17
16 2,548 16 306417 16 25,781
15 2,168 15 282,535 15 21,744
14 2,801 14 249,141 14 19,941
13 2135 13 216,308 13 17,176
SEBMBHR 5 Year Financial Summary
2HEEE (ABERN) For the year (HK$ million) 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
B A Net interest income 5,395 4,129 3,420 4,157 3,331
JEF B U A Non-interest income 2,478 2,284 2411 1,849 1,416
LB Operating expenses (3,174) (2,816) (2,564) (2,453) (2,089)
EREBRK Impairment losses on loans and

H b BR TH R (B 18 K advances and other accounts (1,422) (553) (668) (181) (84)
i A i A Profit before taxation 3,287 3,053 2,601 3,374 2,554
BT 15 %t Income tax (479) (505) (433) (573) (419)
% B FE {5 Y A Profit attributable to shareholders 2,808 2,548 2,168 2,801 2,135
REELEB (BEEBB ) At year end (HKS million) 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
ERRBR Loans and advances 196,287 183,764 169,870 150,720 127,017
B B Impairment allowance 1,523 950 696 538 476
BEBAE Total assets 344,309 306,417 282,535 249,141 216,308
FHME WK EERE Average interest earnings assets 320,779 278223 248689 225872 182,077
17 5% 4 FE Total deposits 274,894 246,168 231,072 203,087 170,834
% R4 & Shareholders' equity 37,384 25,781 21,744 19,941 17,176
B ¥t & Financial ratios 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
BEARFTRH X Capital adequacy 20.3% 17.8% 16.5% 17.3% 16.5%
THREBMEEE L X Liquidity Coverage Ratio 177.6%* n/a n/a n/a n/a
1 m B M 4 HF B R Average liquidity maintenance ratio 59.6% 60.8% 61.8% n/a n/a
EFEEH R E S X Average liquidity n/a n/a n/a 64.9% 55.3%
B = Loans to deposits 71.4% 74.7% 73.5% 74.2% 74.4%
EREEEREL X Loans to total assets 57.0% 60.0% 60.1% 60.5% 58.7%
GATFEBEE X Collective assessment coverage 0.2% 0.2% 0.2% 0.3% 0.3%
DN PN =S Cost to income 40.3% 43.9% 44.0% 40.9% 44.0%
E 5 & E B i) R Return on average total assets 0.9% 0.9% 0.8% 1.2% 1.1%
5 IS B 75 B 3R R Return on average shareholders' equity 10.1% 10.3% 10.2% 14.9% 13.2%

* IEEER(FHEIR2017F12A31BFE R *

i FE2017F9H30H

#

Weight amount (average value) at quarter ended 31 December 2017

As of 30 September 2017
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Financial Performance

TR Deposits*
1. BERE S By type 2017 2016
EEN Current 14.0% 9.4%
wE Savings 22.2% 19.6%
E Fixed 63.8% 71.0%
kil Total 100.0% 100.0%
2. BRI AE D By maturity 2017 2016
BB (808 On demand 36.2% 29.0%
D3 E A Less than 3 months 53.9% 61.2%
HiE3MEAETEF Over 3 months but less than 1 year 9.8% 9.8%
HBBIFENBSEF Over 1 year but less than 5 years 0.1% -
A5t Total 100.0% 100.0%
3. RE®E S By currency 2017 2016
BTt HKD 53.1% 54.3%
X7 usb 31.9% 29.2%
H Aty Others 15.0% 16.5%
kL Total 100.0% 100.0%
4, GEREE®AE Number of deposit accounts 2017 2016
434,143 399,544
* UEPERAEER *  Based on customer deposits only
47.6%
5199 76.1%
W EAREBRITED
Personal & Business Banking Group
BERD M B FHE BERD M 0.5%
Total Deposits Certificates of Deposit Total Loans
Breakdown B HEi Breakdown
Others
NE R EIRERED
Wholesale & Cross-border Banking Group
1.2%
REIRTT (BB BIRA R

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Financial Performance

Loan Portfolio

RIT¥E % By industry sectors 2017 2016
BREBHEXR Loans and advances for use in Hong Kong
ITEEkERR : Industrial, commercial and financial:
YR Property development 8.7% 7.4%
MERE Property investment 13.4% 13.6%
&R Financial concerns 8.3% 5.0%
fRE L840 Stockbrokers 3.3% 1.7%
HERTEESH Wholesale and retail trade 7.2% 9.3%
RUiEZE Manufacturing 8.7% 5.5%
B BRI Transport and transport equipment 1.2% 1.6%
IR G4 E B Recreational activities 0.4% 0.7%
BRH Information technology 0.1% 1.9%
EHAth Others 5.2% 5.3%
A : Individuals:
BE [EEEEES] - Loans for the purchase of flats under the
[(FAABRE2ERE Home Ownership Scheme, Private Sector
il R [HEBEEE Participation Scheme and Tenants Purchase
STEIRF] HER Scheme 0.0% 0.0%
BEHEMEEMENER Loans for the purchase of other residential properties 7.4% 7.3%
ERAREE Credit card advances 0.3% 0.2%
HAt Others 4.6% 4.5%
BE5mE Trade finance 3.3% 5.8%
FRREBEABLAIMD T B & 5 R B Loans and advances for use outside Hong Kong 27.9% 30.2%
A&t Total 100.0% 100.0%
RitES a5 By geographical spread 2017 2016
BB Hong Kong 54.7% 51.1%
Hh [ AT 3, Mainland China 36.2% 36.3%
EE USA 3.4% 3.2%
s Singapore 1.9% 3.0%
HAfth Others 3.8% 6.4%
aaf Total 100.0% 100.0%
REHE D By maturity 2017 2016
BN EE Repayable on demand 3.0% 0.7%
DT F Less than 1 year 46.9% 54.9%
HBiE FEDRs F Over 1 year but less than 5 years 36.5% 31.4%
tBiAs & Over 5 years 11.8% 10.9%
EmITEH Undated 1.8% 2.1%
&=t Total 100.0% 100.0%
RE¥E S By currency 2017 2016
BT HKD 53.9% 48.3%
ET usD 36.8% 42.4%
HAth Others 9.3% 9.3%
=i Total 100.0% 100.0%
EXREREEE Number of loan accounts 2017 2016
527,434 481,102
—E—tER
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Report of the Chairman

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am very pleased to announce that
for 2017, China CITIC Bank International Limited ("CNCBI" or “the Bank”)
and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”) delivered another year of good
performance, as the strong momentum of development of the previous year
continued unabated.

Profit attributable to shareholders was up 10.2% from 2016 to HK$2.81 billion,
breaking the record of 2014 to set a new high. Total assets continued to grow
by 12.4% year on year to HK$344.31 billion, with customer loans and total
deposits up by 6.8% and 11.7% to HK$196.29 billion and HK$274.89 billion
respectively during the corresponding period.

Faced with the challenge posed by an uncertain operating environment, the
Bank capitalized on continued strengthening of its collaboration with parent
bank China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited (“CNCB") and grasped increasing
opportunities provided by cross-border mergers and acquisitions activities to
drive its structured finance business, resulting in respectable growth of net
interest income. Moreover, the Bank's debt capital markets (“DCM") business
was able to make great strides in the face of stiff competition, generating
meaningful contribution to the Bank’s profitability.

In December last year, CNCBI successfully completed the introduction of five
financial investors, namely Tian Yuan Trading Limited (a subsidiary of Ningxia
Tianyuan Manganese Co., Limited), Hong Kong Guansheng Investment
Co., Limited (a subsidiary of Xinhu Zhongbao Co., Limited), Anxin Trust Co.,
Limited, Clear Option Limited and Elegant Prime Limited (both companies are
wholly owned by Mr. Hui Wing Mau, the controlling shareholder of Shimao
Property Holdings Limited). These five new shareholders of CNCBI injected
approximately HK$9.05 billion in total into the Bank for a combined 25%
holding of its enlarged issued share capital. While CNCB effectively remains as
the controlling shareholder of CNCBI, the transaction has strengthened the
Bank's capital base to meet increasingly stringent regulatory requirements and
will help enhance its competitiveness and prospects.

Looking ahead into 2018, | remain cautiously optimistic. Although major
economies are expected to maintain their growth momentum, there are a
number of risk factors. The Bank will continue to closely monitor any signs of a
more rapid rollback of monetary stimulus programmes in the US and elsewhere,
as well as other challenges on the macro front, including a surge in protectionism,
repercussions of the Brexit negotiation and geopolitical conflicts.

In light of an ever-evolving financial environment, CNCBI will spare no effort
to build a unigue business model with an organic combination of commercial
banking, investment banking and financial technology, aiming to fulfill its
strategic vision of becoming “the best overseas integrated financial services
institution” The success of this model depends on establishing and developing
long-term relationships with the Bank's clients, catering to their needs at all
times and in all situations.
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FREIRT (B BRAE
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Report of the Chairman

Safeguards against risks and compliant business operations are the
cornerstones of a bank’s sustainable healthy development. Considering
the vagaries of the operating environment and the challenges ahead, the
Bank will implement effective measures to guard against credit risk, market
risk, liquidity risk and operational risk, especially information security and
moral hazard. CNCBI is committed to running its business in compliance
with all relevant laws, rules and regulations, and adhering to the core value
of “‘customer-centric” to provide its clients with the highest quality banking
services, the most satisfactory customer experience and the most professional
wealth management services, striving to create value for its clients.

Finally, I would like to take this opportunity to sincerely thank CNCBI's new
shareholders for their confidence in the Bank's prospects and support. | am also
very grateful to our customers for their long-standing loyalty and trust, and |
shall always feel indebted to the group of committed and diligent people | have
been working with, including my fellow directors, the Bank’s management team
and all its staff, for their invaluable contribution to the Bank's success.
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Mr. Zhang Xiaowei

President & Chief Executive Officer
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

BE—F FREBOIRRELGENRE
102%WRBEER AIELHS REED
HEEMES 443 1ERBT - ZREBAEWEIA
AEMBREE  ARXREREXED X/
ARBRFAHERZE -

Last year, China CITIC Bank International delivered
a healthy 10.2% growth in profit attributable to
shareholders to reach a record high of HK$2.81
billion, while total assets further increased to
HK$344.3 billion. The Group successfully completed
the introduction of five financial investors,
significantly boosting its capital strength and
creating ample room for future development.

China CITIC Bank International Limited (“CNCBI" or “the Bank”) and its
subsidiaries (together “the Group”) set a fresh record in profitability in 2017
and attained pleasing achievements on multiple fronts. While operating
income increased significantly due to closer collaboration with parent
bank, the Group’s foray into debt capital markets ("DCM") business proved a
resounding success. Moreover, the development of the Group’s information
technology infrastructure has been progressing smoothly. On capital
management, the introduction of five new investors has helped boost the
capital strength of the Group, with its capital ratios exceeding the average
levels of its peers. Furthermore, the liquidity coverage ratio (“LCR") has been
successfully adopted while the preparation work for the implementation
of a new accounting standard, HKFRS 9, on 1 January 2018 has been fully
completed. In sum, a strong foundation has been laid for the Group to
achieve healthy and steady growth in the years ahead

—E—tFR
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer
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. REXKE 2. WRELE 3. BEREAAE 4. BRHERL
BRIk EERE BETRERF BETREE  aFEEERR PITES BETRERFR
Mr. Michael Leung NEIRBREKEE NEBES R B BN R P15 SR 1T S M B
Chief Information and Mr. Jianyin Peng Mr. Roy Huang Mrs. Helen Kan
Operations Officer Alternate Chief Executive Officer Alternate Chief Executive Officer Executive Director &
Group Head of Wholesale & General Counsel & Alternate Chief Executive Officer
Cross-border Banking Group Head of Internal Control Group Head of Personal &

Business Banking

5. MYELE 6. FHEXRE 7. BimHzt 8 BARELE
BAEATIRAAH R AFRE B BB IR
RIEAE Mr. John Lee Ms. Joanne Lai Mr. David Kwan
Mr. Bai Lijun Chief Personnel Officer Chief Compliance Officer Chief Risk Officer

Alternate Chief Executive Officer &
Acting Treasurer

9. RBBRELE 0. BEREE . 8ARL:
EiTE B 7% 4R 8 THREERAELE
Mr. Telly Chan Mr. Elton Tam Ms. Zoe Lau
Chief Auditor Chief Financial Officer Director of CEO Office
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

Operating Environment

Operating conditions for the domestic banking industry in 2017 were by
and large stable but continued to abound with uncertainties.

The performance of the global economy surpassed cautious expectations
at the beginning of the year, as growth was generally faster and more
broad-based while inflation pressure remained subdued. The US economy’s
expansion continued to accelerate despite the Federal Reserve ("Fed”)'s
tightening measures, which included three interest rate hikes of 25 basis
points each and the incipient reduction of the size of its balance sheet. The
Eurozone and Japan also exhibited stronger recovery momentum, with
policymakers feeling comfortable with keeping their stimulus measures
largely intact. As a result of a pickup in industrial activity and investment
in advanced economies, and therefore a rebound in trade flows and
commodity prices, emerging market and developing economies also fared
better. However, investment sentiment was constantly swung by policy
uncertainties, political jitters and geopolitical tensions.

China's GDP growth of 6.9% for 2017, slightly ahead of a 6.7% rise in
2016, was the first uptick in momentum since 2010 and also a pleasing
performance. More importantly, concerns about the risks of capital flight
and a substantial depreciation of the Renminbi ("RMB”) eased through
the year. Confounding pessimistic forecasts at the start of 2017, the value
of the yuan against the US dollar ("USD") was actually 6.8% higher at the
close of the year. Nevertheless, the Chinese government’s determination to
deleverage the economy restricted the corporate sector’s access to credit
and pushed up borrowing costs, posing challenges to some enterprises that
had been relying inordinately on debt financing for their viability.

Against the backdrop of a relatively more benign external environment,
the Hong Kong economy, following a 2.1% expansion in 2016, achieved a
4.0% year-on-year growth in GDP for the first three quarters last year, which
was propelled by vibrant export trade as well as solid growth in domestic
demand underpinned by improving local consumer sentiment, a strong
labour market and positive wealth effects brought about by higher asset
prices. The cyclical upturn, however, belied a lack of new impetus for the
economy’s long-term sustainable growth.

The performance of the domestic banking sector was boosted by more
favourable operating conditions. Statistics of the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority ("HKMA") suggest that for the first nine months of 2017, retail
banks'Hong Kong offices achieved year-on-year increases of 18.2% in net
interest income and 9.8% in fee and commission income, while net interest
margin widened to 1.43% during the period from 1.32% in the same period
of 2016. Having said that, total loans of the banking sector expanded at a
slower pace of 2.3% in the third quarter of 2017, compared with 5.4% in
the second quarter and 4.6% in the first quarter. Total deposits growth also
decelerated to 1.0% from 2.4% and 3.0% in the first and second quarters
respectively.
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

Financial Performance

For the twelve months ended 31 December 2017, operating income of the
Group recorded a year-on-year increase of 22.8% to HK$7.87 billion. Profit
after impairment rose by 7.7% to HK$3.28 billion while profit attributable
to shareholders was up 10.2 % to set a new record of HK$2.81 billion. Given
the impact of capital injection by five financial investors in December, return
on average assets at 0.85% was two basis points lower than the previous
year, whereas return on average shareholders'equity was also down 14 basis
points to 10.11%.

Net interest income for the year amounted to HK$5.39 billion, representing
an impressive growth of 30.7% year on year, which was attributed to closer
collaboration with parent bank and a sustained expansion of structured
finance business underwritten to a large extent by cross-border mergers
and acquisitions activities. In the meantime, net interest margin improved
markedly by 20 basis points to 1.68% due to higher assets yields.

Non-interest income posted a healthy 8.5% year-on-year increase to HK$2.48
billion. The growth was principally spurred by a surge in fee and commission
income derived from DCM business, as well as higher net trading income,
reflecting buoyancy in financial markets last year due to still ample liquidity.

On the cost side, total operating expenses were up 12.7% from the same
period in 2016, which was mostly a result of continued investments in
human resources and technology to cope with the Group’s growing scale
and new businesses. Yet thanks to much stronger income growth, cost to
income ratio fell by 3.6 percentage points to 40.3%.

For the year under review, impairment losses increased to HK$1.42 billion.
Last year, the reduction of financial leverage, as well as supply-side reforms,
was given precedence in China's economic restructuring programme,
posing a serious challenge to the corporate finance environment that
was more noticeable than before. In view of such a challenge, and given a
substantial improvement in operating income, the Group adopted a more
prudent provisioning policy, paving the way for its healthy development in
the future.

Financial Position

As at 31 December 2017, the Group's total assets stood at HK$344.31
billion, 12.4% higher than a year ago. Total deposits reached HK$274.89
billion, while customer loans including trade bills totalled HK$196.29 billion,
representing increases of 11.7% and 6.8% respectively from end-2016.
During the year under review, the Group proactively managed the growth
of its loan portfolio while increasing asset turnover. Loans to deposits ratio
at the year-end was 71.4%, compared with 74.7% a year earlier.
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

Meanwhile, the Group adopted a more stringent loan classification policy.
As at end-2017, impaired loan ratio was 1.26%, 30 basis points higher than
at end-2016 but down from the peak of 1.39% in mid-2017. Moreover,
non-performing loan coverage ratio was 61.8% as at 31 December 2017,
higher than the 57.9% and 53.8% six and twelve months ago respectively,
reflecting the Group's increasing capability to guard against credit risk.

Capitalization of the Group was significantly enhanced by the injection of
HK$9.05 billion by five financial investors in December 2017. As at the end
of the year, total capital adequacy ratio stood at 20.3%, up 2.5 percentage
points from end-2016. Tier 1 capital ratio and common equity tier 1 capital
ratio increased by 3.4 and 3.7 percentage points to 17.1% and 14.5%
respectively. These levels were well above regulatory requirements and
exceeded the average levels of the Group's peers.

Since October 2017, the Group has implemented the LCR as required by the
HKMA. As of 30 September 2017, the Group's average Liquidity Maintenance
Ratio was 59.6% and as of 31 December 2017, the Group's average LCR was
177.6%. The Group has strived to maintain a sufficient pool of high quality
liquid assets and manage the deployment of its funds well to ensure a
consistently healthy and stable liquidity position.

Business Review

Wholesale and Cross-border Banking Group

Wholesale and Cross-border Banking Group (“WBG") delivered remarkable
growth in 2017 despite a rapidly changing and competitive market
environment. Maintaining our "Active Marketing, Conservative Underwriting”
strategy, WBG actively captured business opportunities in the privatization
and mergers and acquisitions markets to successfully complete several
structured finance transactions, which was a new revenue engine for
WBG. In addition, WBG managed its loan portfolio by replacing low yield
and relatively higher risk loans with higher yield and more secured loans
backed by direct mortgages. Meanwhile, leveraging our parent bank’s
capability, WBG managed to discover more potential business opportunities
and conducted major financing transactions with valued CNCB strategic
customers. Last but not least, contribution from overseas branches on fee
income continued to increase as each branch has transformed its business
focus based on geographical advantages. For 2017, WBG's total operating
income grew by 17.5% year on year to HK$4.67 billion. In particular, net
interest income was up by 23.1% while customer loans recorded a mild
growth of 6.2% from end-2016, demonstrating WBG's increasing pricing
power in negotiating loans and its improving profitability.

—E—tFR
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Personal and Business Banking Group

Despite pressure on interest margin and fierce competition, Personal and
Business Banking Group (“PBG") continued to record satisfactory results
in 2017. As at end-2017, both customer deposits and loans reached new
highs at HK$130.77 billion and HK$45.89 billion, representing year-on-year
increases of 14.8% and 7.4% respectively. Operating income was HK$2.37
billion, similar to last year. PBG continued to improve cost efficiency to
make room for investing in technologies for future growth. As a result, total
operating expenses only increased year on year by 1.7% to HK$1.41 billion.
Also, PBG was able to maintain good asset quality due to prudent credit
risk management and continued improvement in collection management,
which gave rise to a further reduction of net impairment loss from HK$33
million in 2016 to HK$11 million in 2017. Hence, profit before taxation
reached HK$952 million. During the year, PBG's customer base grew
healthily, especially both cross-border and local high net worth customers.
We also made good progress in digital transformation such as launching the
first mobile security soft token in Hong Kong.

Treasury and Markets Group

The year 2017 marked a sharp surge in the total operating income of
Treasury and Markets Group ("TMG") from HKS$41 million in 2016 to HK$529
million. Global Markets’ operating income increased by 26.2% year on year.
The outstanding achievement was mainly attributable to the excellent
performances of the DCM and the marketing teams. The strategic set-up of
the Financial Institutions ("FI") marketing team at the beginning of 2017 has
contributed to a new channel for bonds and treasury products distribution
to an expanding portfolio of FI clients. The DCM business achieved very
impressive results in 2017 in terms of number of deals and fee income.
It completed 74 deals for 44 Chinese issuers, with an aggregate issuance
size of USD39.9 billion and total fee income of HK$268 million recognized
in the period. As at the end of the year, according to Bloomberg Offshore
China Bonds issuance volume, CNCBI ranked 18th among all managers and
sixth among all Chinese financial institutions. The performance of Central
Treasury Unit ("CTU") also registered a significant improvement year on year.
The team prudently managed the balance sheet and successfully seized
market opportunities to deploy RMB surplus at desirable prices, resulting
in significant earnings in 2017. In May 2017, CNCBI successfully issued its
first ever CNY 3 billion three-year panda bond in the China interbank bond
market. CNCBI was also the first Hong Kong bank to issue panda bonds last
year.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

During the year under review, although the macroeconomic environment
showed some signs of recovery, the Group continued to focus on further
fortifying its credit risk management practices through tightened portfolio
reviews, conducting forward-looking assessments, and proactive withdrawal
from undesirable industries and customers that did not align with CNCBI's
development strategy and risk appetite. Early risk alert reviews were
conducted in greater depth, while more stringent loan classification was
adopted and collateral assessments, provisions for non-performing loans as
well as the effort in recovering non-performing loans were raised.

In addition, to proactively combat an ever-increasing and complex
regulatory environment, the Group has implemented a number of risk
management initiatives and projects as follows:

HKFRS 9: Starting from 1 January 2018, the Group has adopted
an automated solution for computing the Expected Credit Losses
("ECL") in compliance with HKFRS 9. This project has involved the
enhancement and development of several credit rating models,
enhancement of credit rating framework, multiple system integration
and data cleansing. Moreover, the Group has on its own initiative
engaged independent parties to conduct model validations as well as
proactive assurance on the governance, model framework, and ECL
computation process. Although the Group expects to maintain higher
provision coverage, the impact on capital is expected to be minimal.

Risk MIS and Infrastructure Enhancements: The Group has
undertaken further enhancement of the risk database, data
governance, system and infrastructure to enable more granular risk
analytics and automation.

Stress Testing: The Group has adopted enhanced stress testing
measurement methodologies and framework which enables it to
have better risk and capital management and thus it may take early
mitigation actions.

Furthermore, in December 2017, a Fraud Risk Management team was
established to further enhance the Group’s fraud risk management policy
and framework.
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Human Resources Development

The Group enjoyed gains in human resources key performance indicators
such as per-capita income and profits while achieving a record-high net
profit after taxation in 2017. The total permanent headcount was increased
by less than 2% to 2,051. Meanwhile, given continued improvement efforts
in controls and process management, staff engagement level has been
strengthening, resulting in a downtrend in voluntary attrition and sustained
staff stability.

Banking is a business built on trust. Instilling the right behaviours, and
driving and encouraging actions that are aligned to the Group’s core values
and expectations, are essential for our pursuit of sustainable growth. During
the year, we launched several organization development initiatives. These
included appointing senior management staff members as conduct risk
champions to ensure management accountability; revamping the code
of conduct to provide a user-friendly tool for employees’ learning and
reference; and embedding core values in performance management to
assess adherence to core values as well as in remuneration framework to
reward and encourage proper behaviours. In 2018 and beyond, we will
continue to roll out various culture initiatives to uphold our commitment to
promoting a sound corporate culture.

Management has always given priority to leadership and people
development. The Group continued to invest in staff competency
enhancement, resulting in a high bank-wide average training days per staff
member at 5.26. Succession at the senior level was orderly and opportunely
managed for three top positions; other senior positions were also filled with
quality people from both internal and external sources.

The Group is committed to building on the strengths of people to achieve
even better results in 2018.

Outlook

It is very likely that the improvement in the fundamentals of the macro
environment will continue in 2018, with the World Bank projecting global
economic growth to edge up to 3.1% from an estimated 3.0% in 2017.
Currently the pace of monetary policy normalization is expected to remain
gradual, as it is believed that the Fed will continue to unwind its quantitative
easing programme, while the European Central Bank’s massive bond-buying
effort is going to taper. Such a scenario looks set to underpin a recovery in
loan demand and an improvement in net interest margins, which bode well
for commercial banks'financial results.
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

However, we should keep a wary eye on certain risks to the prevailing
sanguine outlook. The year 2018 will probably mark a turning point in the
ultra-loose monetary stance adopted by central banks since the onset of
the global financial crisis about a decade ago, which has been the prime
engine for the ongoing cyclical recovery. The legislation recently passed
to introduce sweeping tax reforms in the US while it is approaching
full employment may cause the economy to overheat. Coupled with a
continued climb in commodity prices, this fiscal stimulus may fuel inflation
and result in faster-than-expected Fed tightening, sparking synchronous
actions from other central banks. This can increase volatility in interest
rates, currency values, capital flows and asset prices, creating unforeseen
uncertainties.

Medium-term global growth prospects are also clouded by growing
protectionist rhetoric in the US that have begun to translate into punitive
actions against the country’s trading partners, which may take their tolls
on trade and cross-border investment flows. Financial markets have thus
far displayed intriguing volatility. Any policy shifts that are perceived as
unfavourable, combined with an unexpected escalation in geopolitical
tensions, can trigger a sudden sharp rise in risk aversion and undermine
consumer and business confidence.

In China, the government has pledged to press ahead with high-quality
development marked by stability and sustainability rather than high-speed
headline economic growth, which is generally expected to slow moderately
in 2018. While fiscal support is poised to stay intact to ensure continued
progress in supply-side structural reforms and the rebalancing of growth
drivers from investment to consumption and services, monetary policy
should remain prudent and neutral. The Chinese government has also
reiterated its focus on curbing credit expansion and containing financial
risks this year. It remains to be seen whether related measures will pose
liquidity risks ahead.

Although foreign exchange reserves have resumed growth and the RMB may
experience only two-way fluctuations instead of depreciation this year even if
the Fed raises interest rates, China is not expected to lift its controls on capital
outflows for both corporates and individuals. Looking on the bright side,
the government’s restrictions on outbound investments may create more
opportunities for cross-border banking business in the foreseeable future, as
mainland enterprises planning overseas acquisitions will have to continue to
use Hong Kong as a major offshore market to satisfy their funding needs.

Going forward, our top priority continues to be deepening the collaboration
with CNCB and forging closer synergistic relations with the CITIC Group to
strengthen CNCBI's leading market position in cross-border businesses. To
further expand the Bank’s structured finance business, we will continue to
capture the opportunities arising from overseas mergers and acquisitions
made by mainland enterprises in projects related to the “Belt and Road”
initiative that are endorsed by the government. Meanwhile, we envisage
ample growth potential for the Group's private banking business as more high
net worth individuals in the mainland are interested in diversifying their assets
on a global basis and require customized wealth management services.
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Building on the success of the DCM arm, we have also planned to develop
other new businesses including asset management and financial advisory
services. This represents sustained progress in the Group's transformation
into a one-stop provider of financial solutions catering to the needs of
clients with a comprehensive range of tailor-made products and services.
It also fits well with our “capital light, asset light” strategy to use the Group’s
capital efficiently and expand its non-interest income stream, in light of
increasingly tight capital requirements imposed by regulatory authorities.

To enhance the Group's core competitiveness, we are committed to
further investing in the applications of financial technology to cope with
intensifying competition from both existing players in the financial industry
and financial hi-tech companies. The upgrade of the Group’s IT infrastructure
has made much headway and is beginning to yield encouraging results.
On this basis, we will develop innovative products and services with a
considerable element of technology and strengthen the Group's electronic
service channels, enhancing customer experience and satisfaction on the
one hand, and improving the cost structure and operational efficiency on
the other.

What is equally if not more important is our focus on upholding high
standards of corporate governance and risk management, a vital factor
for the Group's sustainable growth. We are implementing culture reforms,
placing a heavy emphasis on compliance risk and operational risk, especially
the management of cyber security and safeguard against conduct risk.
We have also stepped up efforts to manage and recover non-performing
loans, and continue to implement effective post-lending management of
loans already granted, with a view to strengthening the Group'’s capability
to mitigate credit risk. Furthermore, as widening interest-rate differential
between the US dollar and Hong Kong dollar may cause volatility in capital
flows, due regard will be paid to liquidity risk management, especially the
stability of the deposit base and the sufficiency of funding.

In conclusion, we must strive to bring about healthy growth, striking a
favourable balance between risk and return. We have to consistently put
clients first and drive our development by focusing on value creation for our
clients. Adhering to the customer service principle of “Breathe Integrity, Act
with Honesty”, we must work closely together as a team to ensure that the
interests of our clients, shareholders, employees and other stakeholders are
well taken care of. We are confident about the future and believe the Group
will rise to all challenges and keep going from strength to strength in the
coming years.
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Wholesale and Cross-Border Banking
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Significantly greater capital efficiency demonstrated by total

revenue increase of 17.5% on loan growth of only 6.2% year
on year

Credit quality enhanced by replacement of low yield and
relatively higher risk loans with more secured loans backed
by direct mortgages and SBLC

Proactively captured new business opportunities and became
a market leader in the privatization market with the completion
of a few major deals

The market environment in 2017 remained fast-changing and intensely
competitive, but Wholesale and Cross-border Banking Group (“WBG")
managed to achieve remarkable growth by adopting the “Active Marketing,
Conservative Underwriting” Strategy. Total operating income grew to
HK$4.67 billion, up 17.5% year on year. Notably, net interest income posted
a 23.1% increase while customer loans at end-2017 were only 6.2% higher
than a year earlier, indicating that WBG's loan business was more productive
and profitable on a per dollar basis. Such a strong performance was
primarily attributable to effective loan strategy, strengthened collaboration
with CNCB, enhanced structured finance capability as well as increased

contribution from overseas branches.

Effective Loan Strategy

WBG proactively managed its loan portfolio in 2017 to enhance the quality
of the portfolio and reduce the incidence of non-performing assets. We
replaced low yield loans with higher yield ones, leading to a marked
improvement in net interest margin last year. We also replaced relatively
higher risk loans with more secured loans which were backed by direct
mortgages and standby letters of credit (“SBLC"). As a result, of the total
real estate finance ("REF") portfolio, the share of the direct mortgage sub-
portfolio increased from around 26% as at end-2016 to approximately 41%
as at the end of last year, while non-PRC exposure for the same period rose
from about 21% to 30%.
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WBG Real Estate Finance Portfolio Breakdown 2016

Strengthened CNCB Collaboration

Leveraging our parent bank’s vast client network and extensive business
connections, WBG managed to open up more new business opportunities,
sealing a few financial deals with valued CNCB strategic customers. In 2017,
the onshore branches of CNCB referred more than 200 new customers to
open accounts with WBG in both Hong Kong and overseas branches. For
the year, the number of clients referred to WBG by CNCB rose by 22% from
2016 to 961, driving a 56% increase in referral revenues, while loans and
deposits attributable to client referrals as at end-2017 grew by 25% and
121% respectively from a year ago.

Enhanced Structured Finance Capability

Riding on the successful completion of the ChemChina/Syngenta financing
arrangement, WBG strategically positioned its structured finance team
to further enhance CNCBI's leadership in financing Chinese corporations’
cross-border investments. Besides, WBG proactively captured new
business opportunities and became the leader in the privatization market,
successfully completing a few large privatization deals such as for Goldin
Properties, Yingde Gas, Belle and Bloomage BioTechnology, etc.
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Increased Contribution from Overseas Branches

Non-NIl contribution attributable to overseas branches amounted to
HK$137 million for 2017, representing a surge of 138% from 2016. It is
noteworthy that the Singapore branch exceeded its revenue budget by 6%
due to a successful transformation of its portfolio through exiting low yield
trade finance and building up secured REF loans. Meanwhile, the Macau
branch successfully opened 51 deposit accounts, with its deposit balance
hitting a historic high of HK$2.3 billion as at end-2017, 120% ahead of the
level as at end-2016.

Focus of Business Strategy for 2018

Although WBG continues to face manifold uncertainties and severe
competition in 2018, we will keep pursuing the “Active Marketing,
Conservative Underwriting” strategy, cautiously growing our business by
capturing more secured loans and taking more deposits, as well as satisfying
compliance and regulatory requirements. We strive to be the best overseas
integrated financial services provider by embracing business principles
based on “integrity”, “customer-oriented”, “prudence” and “creativity”.
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Personal and Business Banking
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Customer deposits recorded a new high of HK$130.77
billion, up 14.8%

Customer loans hit another record high of HK$45.89 billion,
up 7.4%

High net worth customer base grew by 14.4%

Personal & Business Banking Group (“PBG") continued to post satisfactory
results in 2017, riding on the improvement of global economic conditions
especially in China and Hong Kong. Our improved engagement with
customers facilitated the acquisition of new customer deposits and the
sustained growth of customer loans. As at end-2017, customer deposits
and loans reached new highs of HK$130.77 billion and HK$45.89 billion,
representing increases of 14.8% and 7.4% versus end-2016 respectively.
Despite increasing interest margin pressure and persistently fierce market
competition, operating income for the year amounted to HK$2.37 billion,
similar to the preceding year's record high. Expense growth was mild at
1.7% year on year, resulting from effective cost efficiency management
while absorbing investment in technology & infrastructure upgrade. Also,
loan impairment losses were further reduced to HK$11 million in 2017 on
the back of prudent asset quality management. Thus, profit before taxation
stood at HK$952 million.

Expanded High Net Worth Customer Base

By continuing our strategy of focusing on high net worth customers,
the number of high net worth customers and customer assets under
management grew by 14.4% and 17.4% year on year respectively. This
helped PBG's investment products income register a significant growth of
62.0% compared with last year, mainly underpinned by higher fee income
from securities brokerage, unit trust and equity linked investment products.
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Strengthened Cross-Border Collaboration

PBG's strengthened cross-border and cross-business collaboration with
parent bank CNCB remained a key competitive advantage in capturing
new high net worth cross-border customers and business. This has ensured
that we are well positioned for sustainable long-term growth. Cross-border
referral customer base doubled in 2017 while customer assets under
management showed very encouraging growth.

Continuous Digital and Technological Innovations

PBG is committed to innovating and delivering new technology solutions
which can enhance customer experience. Firstly, our core banking system
and securities trading system were upgraded during the year. Secondly, we
were the first in the market to roll out a mobile security soft token in Hong
Kong. Furthermore, PBG provided digital wallets like Apple Pay and Android
Pay to expand payment convenience for our customers.
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Strengthened Business Banking Positioning

PBG continued to strengthen support for business banking customers by
launching business internet banking and corporate wealth management
services during the year. The first Business Banking Centre which opened
in late 2016 continued to achieve encouraging growth in loans, deposits
and customer acquisition in 2017. To further expand our business scale, a
second Business Banking Centre located in Kowloon has been opened in
February 2018 to offer comprehensive financial and wealth management
solutions to our business banking customers.

Prudent Asset Quality Management

PBG actively managed its lending portfolio to ensure that overall asset
quality remained stable and healthy. As a result of rigorous credit risk
management and improvement in collection management, loan
impairment losses in 2017 amounted to HK$11.0 million, 67.2% lower than
thatin 2016. Net impairment ratio remained low at 0.02% in 2017.
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Wide Market Recognition

PBG's achievements were well recognized by various industry players. In
2017 PBG was awarded several accolades, including “Accredited Professional
Financial Planning Firm 2017" presented by the Institute of Financial
Planners of Hong Kong, “Quamnet Outstanding Enterprise Awards 2016 -
Outstanding Mobile Banking Services” organized by Quamnet, two honours
by Metro Finance, namely “Hong Kong Leaders' Choice Awards 2017 -
Excellent Brand of Private Banking Service and Excellent Brand of Mobile
Banking”, and several awards from HKIB Outstanding Financial Management
Planners Awards 2017.

Focus of Business Strategy for 2018

Looking ahead, PBG aims to excel as a customer-centric and digital savvy
retail banking operation. Our strategies focus on the acquisition of high net
worth customers, digital transformation, data analytics and automation to
improve our ability to engage more effectively with both cross-border and
local customers, offering them greater convenience and more choices of
products and services, and responding quickly to their changing needs and
market developments.

We believe that we are well placed to take advantage of ample business
opportunities given the strong backing of our parent bank and increasing
affluence of mainland and local customers.
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Treasury and Markets
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Treasury and Markets Group performed very well due to

strong DCM business in Global Markets and significantly
higher investment income in CTU

CNCBI gained huge success and strong recognition in the

offshore bond market in 2017, being ranked sixth among
all Chinese financial institutions for offshore China bonds
issuance

2017 was a bonanza year for Treasury and Markets Group ("TMG"), as
there was a quantum leap in total operating income to HK$529 million
from HK$41 million in 2016. The excellent performances of the DCM and
marketing teams and fruitful cross-team collaboration contributed greatly to
the remarkable achievement, with the operating income of Global Markets
up by 26.2% year on year. A new Financial Institutions (“FIs") marketing team
was established at the beginning of 2017 with the strategic purpose of
expanding the distribution channel for bonds and other treasury products.
This team has since been building up a portfolio of FI clients. Throughout
2017, it worked seamlessly with the DCM team on the distribution of new
issuances, in which Fl clients had shown strong interest.

DCM Business Reached New Heights

TMG's DCM business achieved very impressive results in 2017 in terms of
number of deals and fee income. It completed 74 deals for 44 Chinese issuers
as Joint Lead Manager, Joint Book Runner or Joint Global Coordinator,
with an aggregate issuance size of USD39.9 billion and total fee income
of HK$268 million recognized in the period. As at the end of the year,
according to Bloomberg Offshore China Bonds issuance volume, CNCBI
ranked 18th among all managers and sixth among all Chinese financial
institutions.
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CNCBI successfully issued its first ever panda bond in China
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The significant deals completed by the DCM team in 2017 included
the bond issuances for China Evergrande Group, Kaisa Group, Nan Hai
Corporation Ltd. and Xinhu Zhongbao Co. Ltd.

CTU Performed Well in Many Areas

Central Treasury Unit ("CTU") also staged a stellar performance in 2017.
Its prudent management of the balance sheet and successful capture
of market opportunities to deploy RMB surplus funds at desirable prices
resulted in substantial returns.

On liquidity management, CTU had been adopting a prudent approach by
consciously keeping lending durations short in preparation for the launch
of the Liquidity Coverage Ratio ("LCR"), as well as maintaining extra liquidity
as buffer in case of LCR volatility. Approaching the year-end, CTU had been
focusing on the smooth migration to the LCR environment, which was
successfully implemented with the ratio at well over 100% as at the end of
the year.

First Panda Bond Issuance

In May 2017, CNCBI successfully issued its first ever CNY 3 billion three-year
panda bond in the China interbank bond market. CNCBI was also the first
Hong Kong bank to issue panda bonds last year. The proceeds from the
issuance have been deployed to CNCBI's subsidiary, CITIC Bank International
(China) Limited to support its onshore business growth.
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TMG has successfully established the core foundation of its capital markets
business with the set-up of the DCM team. This has opened up many
opportunities in expanding the range of products and services available
to our clients. One of them is the trading of fixed income instruments.
We can now engage our clients in both primary and secondary trading
for new issuances. TMG is planning to expand its coverage in fixed
income trading with a focus on the Greater China region. With continued
internationalization of the RMB, the customers of Chinese banks should
have more opportunities to engage in fixed income trading. For this reason,
TMG will be focusing on extending its capability from being a dealer for
CNH and fixed income trading to being a market maker.

Another service TMG intends to expand is the provision of full custodian
services to its clients, with support and services also offered to the CITIC
Group and CNCB's clients. A major transformation initiative CNCBI is
pursuing is the set-up of an asset management business. Apart from
diversifying the sources of fee income, the major objective of such an
initiative is to capitalize on CNCBI's existing client network for business
transformation, as many of the Bank’s clients, including financial institutions,
private banking clients and corporate clients, are actively looking for
investment opportunities in Hong Kong. The asset management business
will also target to satisfy the demand from CNCB's retail clients in the future.

Moreover, TMG's marketing team will continue to work closely with
WBG and PBG in cross-selling treasury products, presenting clients with
value-added solutions to hedge against various risks and improve returns.
TMG will strive to penetrate existing clients’ portfolios by providing
extensive services and products. Targeting the right clientele for Global
Markets products has also been a key to our success. Expanding the
selling of investment products will be a main focus for TMG's marketing
team. In terms of client coverage, TMG will be working closely with WBG's
Relationship Managers to expand the coverage of Fls and other major clients
in order to support its fixed income and CNH market-making activities
as well as its DCM business development. TMG will also be focusing on
strengthening the breadth and depth of its support to PBG's retail banking
clients and the private banking unit through an extensive range of Treasury
and Global Markets products targeting specific client segments.
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Corporate Social Responsibility
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Free e-learning platform TouchEnglish helped more than
13,000 students to enhance their English proficiency

Planning to launch Hong Kong'’s first comprehensive online
platform for speech development and training, which is
expected to benefit 30% of Hong Kong'’s preschool children
and primary students with special educational needs in first
three-year run

China CITIC Bank International Limited ("CNCBI") and its subsidiaries
(together the "Group”) care for Hong Kong society. While considerable
effort has gone into conducting banking business and pioneering quality
services, the Group has also been keen to drive worthy causes, serving the
underprivileged community.

The Group's dedicated Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR") Committee
approved, monitored and assessed the Group’s CSR initiatives during the
year while continuously enhancing the level of governance, with a view
to optimising the effectiveness and appropriateness of CSR resources
utilization and ensuring that all CSR initiatives comply with the Group’s core
values and development. The Group also endeavoured to spread the spirit
of philanthropy to every corner of the Group by encouraging staff members
of various departments to play an active role in worthy causes.
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TouchEnglish students’ English proficiency increased more than 30%
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TouchEnglish Achieves Extraordinary Results

Convinced that knowledge changes the future and that today's education
shapes tomorrow’s society, the Group has always focused on education for
underprivileged children, injecting a spirit of innovation into CSR initiatives
by riding on the advantage of its FinTech leadership so as to maximise the
impact of every CSR dollar spent.

During the 2016-2017 school year, the Group partnered with e-Learning
Consortium, a well-versed, resourceful organisation in the e-learning sector,
to launch the cost- and learning-effective digital learning programme
“TouchEnglish” for Hong Kong's underprivileged students in an effort to
help more primary students from underprivileged families to increase their
English proficiency with greater ease and raise their self-confidence.

A gamified programme with an emphasis on happy learning, TouchEnglish
engaged the students in daily 30-minute learning by giving them games
and tasks aimed at increasing their English proficiency in a progressive
manner. The programme broke away from traditional teaching models with
a human-oriented design which assigned learning to individual students
according to their own ability and progress. It also facilitated parent-school
collaboration by providing parents and teachers with learning reports,
helping the students to make steady progress towards achieving greater
learning effectiveness.

TouchEnglish gained popularity right at its launch with an above-target
enrolment of more than 13,000 students from 48 primary schools. Each
of these students answered on average more than 1,500 questions, the
equivalent of 10 exercise books. The programme logged an increase of more
than 30% in English proficiency among the students, while the participating
schools also had a chance to experience an alternative teaching method.
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2017 Review of Operations

Online Platform for Speech Development and Training in the
Pipeline

The encouragingly fruitful conclusion of TouchEnglish has confirmed the
Group's determination to take advantage of technology and introduce
e-learning to different areas. During the year, the Group and the Centre for
Sign Linguistics and Deaf Studies at The Chinese University of Hong Kong
("CUHK") worked together to plan for Hong Kong's first comprehensive
online platform for speech development and training.

Currently, more than 30,000 children in Hong Kong have special education
needs due to hearing impairment, autism, attention deficit and intellectual
disability. The majority of these children have difficulties in the development
of speech but available speech therapy services are expensive and resources
are limited. Caregivers and teachers also lack the knowledge and skills for
supporting these children who are deprived of timely and comprehensive
support and training, resulting in delayed speech, social and cognitive
development.

Through the partnership with the CUHK, the Group aims to build Hong
Kong's first comprehensive online platform for speech development and
training, providing seminars, workshops, volunteer service and direct
speech training by speech therapists, making basic and effective speech
training accessible earlier to the children in need, especially those from
underprivileged families.

The platform is expected to launch officially in 2018 with more contents to
be made available in phases. About 10,000 preschool children and primary
students in Hong Kong, which make up about 30% of the children with
special educational needs, are expected to reap the benefit.
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2017 Review of Operations

Sustained Contribution to Community Well-being

Aside from developing e-learning platforms, the Group makes every effort
to support good causes. For instance, the Group had for eight consecutive
years supported environmental group Green Power’s annual Green Power
Hike by sponsoring about 50 staff members to form 13 corporate teams
for the 10km and 25km hikes with all proceeds going to the organisation’s
local environmental education programmes. During the year, the Group’s
staff also contributed to the medical and health services supported by The
Community Chest by participating in the organisation’s Green Day donation
drive.

Token of Acknowledgement

In 2018, CNCBI received The Hong Kong Council of Social Service's 15 Years
Plus Caring Company Logo for its sense of responsibility and continuous
contribution to the underprivileged.
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Biographies of Directors

Mr. SUN Deshun

(Chairman, Member of the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee)

Appointed Director of the Bank on 15 March 2013 and further elected
Chairman on 15 May 2015. Mr. Sun is currently an Executive Director and
President of China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited and a Non-executive
Director of CITIC International Financial Holdings Limited. Mr. Sun has more
than 30 years of experience in the banking industry in China. Before joining
China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited in 2011, he had served in Bank of
Communications as Vice President of its Beijing Management Department
and President of the Beijing Branch. Prior to that, he had worked in the
Haidian Office, Haidian Sub-branch, Beijing Branch and Head Office Data
Centre (Beijing) of The Industrial and Commercial Bank of China in various
positions including Assistant President and Vice President of its Beijing
Branch and General Manager of the Head Office Data Centre (Beijing). He
had also worked in The People’s Bank of China. Mr. Sun graduated from
Dongbei University of Finance and Economics with a Master's Degree in
Economics. He was named a “Senior Economist” by The Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China.

Mr. ZHANG Xiaowei

(Executive Director, President & Chief Executive Officer, Member of the Credit &
Risk Management Committee)

Appointed Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Bank on 22 October
2012. Mr. Zhang is presently an Executive Director, President and Chief
Executive Officer of the Bank. He is also Chairman or Director of various
subsidiaries of the Bank, including CITIC Bank International (China) Limited,
CITIC Insurance Brokers Limited and HKCB Finance Limited, and Director
of Carford International Limited, CKWB-SN Limited, CKWH-UT2 Limited, Ka
Wah International Merchant Finance Limited, Security Nominees Limited,
Sino-Allied Development Limited, The Hongkong Chinese Bank (Nominees)
Limited, The Ka Wah Bank (Nominees) Limited and Viewcon Hong Kong
Limited. A veteran banker with 33 years of experience in the banking
industries in Mainland China and Hong Kong, Mr. Zhang was formerly a
Non-executive Director of China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited and had
held various senior positions at Agricultural Bank of China and Bank of
Communications. He was also Vice President of the Hong Kong Branch of
Bank of Communications and President of the Hong Kong Branch of China
Merchants Bank. Prior to joining the Bank, Mr. Zhang was an Executive
Director, General Manager and Alternate Chief Executive Officer of Wing
Lung Bank. Mr. Zhang holds a Bachelor's Degree in Economics from the
Beijing Economics Institute and a Master's Degree in Monetary and Banking
from the Graduate School of The People’s Bank of China. He was appointed
Vice President of The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers in August 2013.

—E—tFR
Annual Report 2017

035



036

BEEHN

BHRMREZE
(MITEF  BEETHARFEARBFRITFE
HHRE

R2013F3 15 EZAARTEERETITHE
H o BRBENABRITREARBKIRITERSBE -
URAITZRTFRAIES S B FEERETH
R (hE) BRAR - FEREREERAF
CKWB-SN Limited R B R BB BR A Al c BRI A
Nova Credit LimitedEE 5 » f AEBINFIRETRE
BELR  THEZESHBLAL  BERE - F
B AMIA NIRRT S - BEZERITLERES
IS o INARTTET - RS HEBITRITIRIKE
HEBEE - BABBEEBABEERGESE
BELBN - PESBBETEN - )R2017F8A -
FEEBRFAREZEAREGKE -

BHEEE

(FERNTTEF - FERZESZLE)
R2016F3A4B0 EZEAARITTEE - HFEER
ARERITRM AR ARBIITREMELEE - JF
ABRERERSRITERERARFENITEE KSR
(B8) BEARRAIES - HEEMI996F A
FEIRITROHDERAR @ BEEHMNDITITR
MAITITRARSBMIBERAE - WH2014F
NARETRITR - AXER B RCER] -
R SREsE  BepmBataf IR
IR REERSREEAETHEERXELE
fif o

BitExE

(BUHNTEF FEREREEZES 18
HELEEENFWEESZS)
R20B3FNABBEZEALRTTELIENTE
FoGhERELZNAMNBEBRHBERARES
E bR RIEGERARNITE S RN A
RN ERAT - BATREMBEER AT
EECIRRITRODARATNBLES  HEEE
bt BemBHE (KR BL 846 WEEH
B ARBITRITH R AL ESE T B M E
HERBRMRERSESBHLEA  FEER
1993 F R ARZRIFTER [SHLBR] 2
ZH o

FREIRT (ER) BRAE
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Biographies of Directors

Mrs. KAN NG Chau Yuk Helen

(Executive Director, Alternate Chief Executive Officer and Group Head of Personal
& Business Banking)

Appointed Director and Alternate Chief Executive Officer of the Bank on
15 March 2013. Mrs. Kan is also Group Head of Personal & Business Banking
of the Bank, and Director of various subsidiaries of the Bank, including
CITIC Bank International (China) Limited, CITIC Insurance Brokers Limited,
CKWB-SN Limited and Viewcon Hong Kong Limited. She is also a Director of
Nova Credit Limited. Mrs. Kan has 31 years of experience in the banking and
finance industry. Over the years, Mrs. Kan had held various senior positions
across a broad spectrum of banking and finance exposures in Hong Kong,
Mainland China and other global markets. Prior to joining the Bank, she
was Standard Chartered Bank's Global Head of Distribution in charge of the
strategic development and performance of distribution channels. Mrs. Kan
holds an Honours Degree in Management and Economics, and a Master’s
Degree in Laws from The University of Hong Kong. She was appointed
Council Member of the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in
August 2017.

Mr. FANG Heying

(Non-executive Director, Member of the Audit Committee)

Appointed Director of the Bank on 24 March 2016. Mr. Fang is currently
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of China CITIC Bank Corporation
Limited. He is also a Non-executive Director of CITIC International Financial
Holdings Limited and a Director of CNCB (Hong Kong) Investment Limited.
Mr. Fang joined China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited in 1996 and was
formerly the President of Suzhou Branch, President of Hangzhou Branch and
Business Director of Financial Markets. He served as a Vice President of China
CITIC Bank Corporation Limited since November 2014. Mr. Fang was a “Senior
Economist”. He graduated from Hunan College of Finance and Economics
with a Bachelor's Degree in Finance and obtained an Executive Master’s
Degree in Business Administration from Peking University.

Mr. TANG Shisheng

(Independent Non-executive Director, Member of the Credit & Risk Management
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee)
Appointed Independent Non-executive Director of the Bank on
13 November 2013. Mr. Tang is Chairman of Hodojou Technology Co,, Ltd.,
Executive Director of Beijing Sinosoft Co., Ltd., and Independent Director
of Geo Jade Petroleum Corporation, Wison Engineering Services Co. Ltd.
and Chongging Three Gorges Bank Co., Ltd. He has extensive experience in
finance and securities industries. Mr. Tang graduated from Hunan College
of Finance and Economics with a Bachelor's Degree in Finance. He received
his Master's Degree in Economics and Doctor’s Degree in Economics
respectively from the Graduate School of The People’s Bank of China and
the Graduate School of Chinese Academy of Social Sciences. Mr. Tang was
granted the title of “Senior Economist” by The People’s Construction Bank of
Chinain 1993.
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Biographies of Directors

Ms. TSANG King Suen Katherine

(Independent Non-executive Director, Chairman of the Credit & Risk
Management Committee, Member of the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee)

Appointed Independent Non-executive Director and Chairman of the Credit
& Risk Management Committee of the Bank on 1 December 2016. Ms. Tsang
is a well-recognised member of the Asian financial and business community.
Fortune Magazine (China) named her as No.6 China’s Most Influential
Businesswomen in 2012 and she was on the top 25 list from 2010 to 2013.
Ms. Tsang is the founder of Max Giant, a group of asset management
companies with a focus on China. She is also an Independent Non-executive
Director of Gap Inc., Non-executive Director of Genesis Emerging Markets
Fund Limited, Director of Ever Ascent Corporation Limited and Try Door
Limited, member of the Advisory Council for China of the City of London,
and an honorary board member of Shanghai Jiao Tong University. Ms. Tsang
was formerly with Standard Chartered Bank for over 20 years with her last
role as Chairperson of Greater China before she retired in August 2014.
She attained her Bachelor of Commerce Degree from University of Alberta,
Canada.

Mr. WANG Guoliang

(Independent Non-executive Director, Chairman of the Audit Committee,
Member of the Credit & Risk Management Committee)

Appointed Independent Non-executive Director of the Bank on 12 August
2016 and elected Chairman of Audit Committee on 2 November
2076. Mr. Wang is a professor-level senior accountant and is currently
Independent Director of China Taiping Insurance Group Limited and COSCO
Shipping Lines Co., Limited. Mr. Wang worked as Chief Accountant of China
National Petroleum Corporation and was Chairman of Bank of Kunlun. He
has extensive experience in finance and accounting. Mr. Wang graduated
from Harbin University of Commerce with a Bachelor's Degree in Economics.
He received his Master’s Degree in International Economics from Hebei
University.

Mr. WU lJiesi

(Independent Non-executive Director, Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee, Member of the Audit Committee)
Appointed Independent Non-executive Director of the Bank on 5 August
2013 and elected Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee on 20 July 2016 and 25 May 2017 respectively. Mr.
Wu is Chairman of Shenzhen Fuhaiyintao Asset Management Co., Ltd. He is
also an Independent Non-executive Director of Beijing Enterprises Holdings
Limited, China Taiping Insurance Holdings Company Limited and The
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited, and Non-executive
Director of Shenzhen Investment Limited and Silver Base Group Holdings
Limited. Mr. Wu has extensive experience in corporate management,
investment and finance. He holds a Doctor’s Degree in Economics from
The Research Institution of The People’s Bank of China. Mr Wu conducted
post-doctorate research work in theoretical economics at Nankai University
and was conferred a professorship qualification by Nankai University in 2001.
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Biographies of Senior Executives

Mr. Roy HUANG

(Alternate Chief Executive Officer, General Counsel and Group Head of Internal
Control)

Joined the Bank in November 2004 as Senior Vice President, General
Counsel and Head of Compliance. Mr. Huang is currently an Alternate Chief
Executive Officer, General Counsel and Group Head of Internal Control of
the Bank as well as Group General Counsel of CITIC International Financial
Holdings Limited with his scope of responsibility encompassing the
management of legal and internal control affairs. Mr. Huang has more than
36 years of legal and regulatory experience in Hong Kong and the United
States. Before joining the Bank, Mr. Huang was partner-in-charge of legal
affairs Asia-Pacific at Andersen Worldwide. Mr. Huang graduated from the
University of California, Berkeley, with an Artium Baccalaureus in History and
Georgetown University Law School with a Juris Doctor Degree.

Mr. Jeffery BAI

(Alternate Chief Executive Officer and Acting Treasurer)

Joined the Bank in December 2015 as Acting Treasurer and appointed
Alternate Chief Executive Officer of the Bank on 20 April 2016. Mr. Bai
is responsible for the Bank's Treasury & Markets Group with a view to
strengthen funding and liquidity management, in addition to a focus on
driving CNCB- and CITIC group-related collaboration for enhanced business
development for the Bank. He joined China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
from Bank of Beijing in 2006 and advanced his banking career in financial
markets. In 2009, he took up an additional role in corporate governance
and projects at the Chairman Office of CITIC Group, assisting the Group's
Chairman with business affairs. Prior to joining the Bank, Mr. Bai was CNCB's
Deputy General Manager of the Office of the Board of Directors and
Supervisors. Mr. Bai holds a Bachelor of Economics Degree from the School
of Economics at Nankai University in Tianjin and a Master of Finance Degree
from the School of Finance at Renmin University of China in Beijing.

Mr. PENG Jianyin

(Alternate Chief Executive Officer and Group Head of Wholesale and Cross-
border Banking Group)

Joined the Bank in January 2017 as Deputy Head of Wholesale and Cross-
border Banking Group. Mr. Peng was appointed as Alternate Chief Executive
Officer and Group Head of Wholesale and Cross-border Banking of the Bank
in January 2018. Mr. Peng has more than 20 years of banking experience in
areas including corporate banking, credit card, structured finance, branch
management, and other core banking businesses in Mainland China and
the United States. Prior to joining the Bank, he was Executive Vice President
and Head of US Operations of Wing Lung Bank Limited. Mr. Peng holds a
Ph.D.in Economics from The People’s University of China.

Mr. John LEE

(Chief Personnel Officer)

Joined the Bank in July 2006 as Senior Vice President. Mr. Lee is now Chief
Personnel Officer of the Bank and Head of Group Human Resources of CITIC
International Financial Holdings Limited. He started his banking career
at Standard Chartered Bank in an information technology function and
served for 20 years in various management positions in several business
and support functions, including consumer banking, human resources,
and post-merger integration in Asia Pacific. Before joining the Bank, Mr.
Lee headed the people development function in The Mass Transit Railway
Corporation Limited (now known as MTR Corporation Limited). Mr. Lee
holds a Bachelor's Degree in Economics from Carleton University, Ottawa,
Canada, and a Master’s Degree in Business Administration from Oklahoma
City University, Oklahoma, the United States.
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Biographies of Senior Executives

Mr. Michael LEUNG

(Chief Information and Operations Officer)

Joined the Bank in December 2013 as Chief Information and Operations
Officer responsible for managing the Bank's information technology and
operations. Mr. Leung has over 30 years of experience in technology and
operations management from various local and international organisations
including Bank of America (Asia), Standard Chartered Bank, Dao Heng Bank,
IBM, Price Waterhouse, and Philips Telecommunication and Data Systems.
Before joining the Bank, Mr. Leung was Deputy Chief Executive and Chief
Information Officer of China Construction Bank (Asia). Mr. Leung holds
a Bachelor's Degree in Electronics from The Chinese University of Hong
Kong, a Postgraduate Diploma from The Graduate School of Retail Bank
Management at The University of Virginia in the US, and a Master's Degree
in Engineering from Netherlands Universities Foundation.

Mr. Elton TAM

(Chief Financial Officer)

Joined the Bank in December 2014 as Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Tam also
serves as Group Chief Financial Officer of CITIC International Financial
Holdings Limited. Mr. Tam has more than 30 years of experience in
accounting and financial management. Prior to joining the Bank, Mr. Tam
was General Manager and Group Financial Controller of Dah Sing Bank,
Limited. Before that, he had held various senior finance positions at Standard
Chartered Bank Group across different business areas such as consumer
banking, treasury and wholesale banking in Hong Kong, Mainland China
and Taiwan. Mr. Tam graduated from The University of Hong Kong with a
Bachelor of Social Science Degree, The Chinese University of Hong Kong
with a Master of Science Degree in Finance, City University of Hong Kong
with a Doctor of Business Administration Degree and Shanghai University
of Finance and Economics with a Doctorate Degree in Economics. He is
a Fellow Member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants of the UK and The Institute
of Chartered Accountants of England and Wales. He is also a qualified
member of The Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants of China,
The American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and Chartered
Professional Accountants of Canada.

Mr. David KWAN

(Chief Risk Officer)

Joined the Bank in 2009 as Head of Credit Risk Management and was
appointed Deputy Chief Risk Officer in 2013. Mr. Kwan is currently the
Bank's Chief Risk Officer responsible for managing all key risks of the Bank.
Mr. Kwan has more than 30 years of banking experience. Prior to joining
the Bank, he was Head of Corporate Credit Risk, Regional Risk Office
(Asia) of ABN-AMRO Bank NV (Hong Kong Office). Over the years, he had
accumulated a wealth of experience in risk management from a fruitful
career at banking institutions including BNP Paribas Hong Kong, HSBC and
Rabobank Hong Kong Branch. Mr. Kwan received his education in Canada.
He holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree from University of Prince Edward Island,
Master of Business Administration Degree from Dalhousie University and
Post-baccalaureate Diploma in Computing Science from Simon Fraser
University. He subsequently obtained a Bachelor of Laws (LLB) Degree from
Manchester Metropolitan University, United Kingdom.
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Biographies of Senior Executives

Ms. Zoe LAU

(Director of CEO Office)

Joined the Bank in August 2007 as Senior Vice President and Head of Wealth
Management & Strategic Planning. Ms. Lau is currently Director of CEO
Office of the Bank and is responsible for coordinating various corporate
initiatives and activities for the Chief Executive Officer, as well as overseeing
the Bank’s brand management, corporate communications and investor
relations. Ms. Lau has close to 30 years of experience in the areas of cards,
payment services, wealth management and strategic planning with major
multinational banks in Hong Kong. Ms. Lau had also worked extensively in
the advertising and marketing industry in Canada and Hong Kong. Before
joining the Bank, Ms. Lau was Head of Marketing, Greater China, American
Express Hong Kong. Ms. Lau holds a Bachelor's Degree in Social Sciences
from The University of Hong Kong.

Ms. Joanne LAI

(Chief Compliance Officer)

Joined the Bank in January 2018. Ms. Lai is currently the Chief Compliance
Officer of the Bank and is responsible for managing the overall compliance
function in the Bank. Ms. Lai has more than 20 years of experience in the
legal, compliance and banking fields. Before joining the Bank, she was Head
of Legal and Compliance of Bank of Communications Hong Kong Branch,
and Head of Compliance of OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited. Ms. Lai is also a
seasoned legal professional with previous experience as a legal counsel for
various banks. Ms. Lai holds a Master of Laws Degree from the City University
of Hong Kong, a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws and a Bachelor of Laws
Degree from the University of Hong Kong. She was admitted as a solicitor of
the High Court of Hong Kong.

Mr. Telly CHAN

(Chief Auditor)

Joined the Bank in October 2017 and is currently Chief Auditor of the
Bank and Head of Group Audit of CITIC International Financial Holdings
Limited. Mr. Chan has about 30 years of experience in the banking industry
specialising in internal audit, treasury and global markets. Before joining
the Bank, he was Programme Director, Financial Crime Risk Mitigation
Programme of Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited. Prior to
that, he had held various senior management positions in Standard
Chartered including Head of Audit and Regional Head of Audit in different
geographic locations including Hong Kong and mainland China. Mr. Chan
holds a Master of Science Degree from the University of Salford, a Graduate
Diploma in Accounting from Macquarie University, and a Master of Business
Administration Degree from the University of New England in Australia. He is
a Fellow Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and CPA Australia.
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CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Report of the Directors

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report together with
the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Principal Place of Business

China CITIC Bank International Limited (the "Bank”) is a licensed bank
incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has its registered office at
61-65 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong. The Bank has branches outside
Hong Kong and operating in Macau, the Cayman Islands, Singapore, New
York and Los Angeles.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Bank and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are the
provision of general banking and related financial services, primarily in Hong
Kong. Particulars of the Bank's principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2017
are set out in note 21 to the financial statements.

Business Review

A fair review of the Group’s business (including an analysis using financial
key performance indicators), a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group, particulars of important events affecting
the Group that have occurred since the end of 2017, an indication of likely
future development in the Group's business, a discussion on the Group's
environmental policies and performance as well as its compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on it, and an
account of the Group's key relationships with its employees, customers,
suppliers and others that have a significant impact on it can be found in

non

“Financial Performance”, “Report of the Chairman”, “Report of the Chief

nou

Executive Officer”, “2017 Review of Operations”, “Notes to the Financial
Statements” and “Corporate Governance and Other Information” sections.

The above sections form part of this report.
Financial Statements

The consolidated profit of the Bank and its subsidiaries for the year ended
31 December 2017 is set out under the consolidated income statement on
page 58.

Dividend

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HK$2,808,437,143.79 for the year ended 31 December 2017 to CITIC
International Financial Holdings Limited (2016: Nil).
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Report of the Directors

Share Capital

In order to further enhance the Bank's capital strength for future
development, the Bank issued a total of 3,027,780,392 ordinary shares
at HKS$2.99 each to five new investors on 15 December 2017 (2016:
1,800,000,000 ordinary shares at HK$1.00 each). Details of the share capital
of the Bank are set out in note 30 to the financial statements.

Debentures Issued

The Bank issued Renminbi-denominated bonds (the “Panda Bonds") of
RMB3 billion in Mainland China interbank bond market in May 2017. The
Panda Bonds were issued for the Bank’s Renminbi funding and to keep pace
with the Bank's development of business in Mainland China. The Panda
Bonds were issued with a maturity of three years and a coupon rate of 4.4%
per annum payable annually (2016: The Bank priced its US$500,000,000
Basel Il compliant Undated Non-cumulative Subordinated Additional Tier
1 Capital Securities with the legal binding subscription agreements signed
on 29 September 2016). Details of the debentures issued by the Bank are set
out in notes 27 and 31 of the financial statements.

Equity-Linked Agreements

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Bank has not entered into any
equity-linked agreement.

Directors

(a) Directors of the Bank

As at the date of this report, the Board of Directors of the Bank comprises:

Chairman
Mr. SUN Deshun

Executive Directors
Mr. ZHANG Xiaowei (President & Chief Executive Officer)
Mrs. KAN NG Chau Yuk Helen (Alternate Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. FANG Heying
Mr. ZHANG Qiang

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. TANG Shisheng

Ms. TSANG King Suen Katherine

Mr. WANG Guoliang

Mr. WU lJiesi

—E—tFRH
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CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Report of the Directors

In accordance with Article 105 of the Bank's Articles of Association, all
present Directors shall retire from office by rotation at the next Annual
General Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

During the year ended 31 December 2017 and up to the date of this report,
there are movements in the Directors of the Bank as follows:

Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung Paul resigned as an Independent Non-executive
Director on 1 April 2017.

Ms. Margaret MAN resigned as an Executive Director and Deputy Chief
Executive Officer on 1 January 2018.

Both resigned Directors of the Bank have no disagreement with the Board
and nothing relating to the affairs of the Bank needed to be brought to the
attention of the shareholders of the Bank.

(b) Directors of the Bank’s subsidiaries

During the year ended 31 December 2017 and up to the date of this report,
Mrs. KAN NG Chau Yuk Helen and Mr. ZHANG Xiaowei, who are Directors of
the Bank, are also directors of certain subsidiaries of the Bank. Ms. Margaret
MAN, ex-Director of the Bank, was also ex-director of certain subsidiaries of
the Bank.

Other directors of the Bank's subsidiaries during the year ended
31 December 2017 and up to the date of this report include Mr. BAI Lijun,
Mr. GAO Zongze, Mr. HSU Hsien Hao Fred, Mr. Roy HUANG, Mr. IU Man
Chung Ronald, Mr. KAN Ying Tim, Mr. KWAN Kin Fai David, Mr. LEE Sik Sang
John, Mr. LEUNG Kin Man Michael, Mr. PENG Jianyin, Mr. SU Youjin, Mr. TAM
Yat Kung Elton and Mr. WONG Man Kin Jack.

Directors’ Interests

No transaction, arrangement and contract of significance in relation to
the Bank’s business to which the Bank, or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director of the
Bank and the Director’s connected party had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

At no time during the year or at the end of the year was the Bank, or any
of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors of the Bank to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Bank or any
other body corporate.
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Report of the Directors

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Bank were entered into or
existed during the year.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

During the year ended 31 December 2017 and up to the date of this report,
a permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors of the Bank is
in force.

Compliance With The Banking (Disclosure) Rules

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017 have
complied with the applicable disclosure requirements of the Banking
(Disclosure) Rules.

Auditor

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017 have been
audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment as auditor of the Bank upon expiration of
its current term of office at the close of the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

On behalf of the Board
ZHANG Xiaowei
Director

Hong Kong, 23 March 2018
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of
China CITIC Bank International Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

What we have audited
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China CITIC Bank International Limited (the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 58 to 192, which comprise the:

° consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017,

e consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

e consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

e  consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

e consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended; and

e notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA”") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a

whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

° Impairment of loans and advances to customer;
° HKAS 8 disclosure of estimated impact upon initial application of HKFRS 9; and
o Fair value measurement of financial instruments and impairment of available-for-sale debt securities

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Independent Auditor's Report

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Impairment of loans and advances to customers

Key Audit Matter

Refer to note 19 to the consolidated financial statements

As at 31 December 2017, the Group recorded a total impairment
allowance of HK$1,523 million, HK$1,127 million arising from
individual assessment and HK$396 million arising from collective
assessment.

Our audit in particular focused on impairment of loans and
advances to corporate customers due to the materiality of the
balances and that the impairment calculations are inherently
subject to management’s judgements both in determining
the necessity for, and estimating the amount of impairment

allowances.

In determining individual impairment allowances, management
made judgements as to whether there is objective evidence
that individually significant loans are impaired. This involved
management’s assessment of borrowers’ financial positions and
repayment ability. When management determined that objective
evidence of impairment existed, an individual impairment
allowance was calculated based on management’s best estimate
of the shortfall in expected recoverable cash flows, which included
an estimation of the net realisable value of underlying collateral or
guarantees.

In determining collective impairment allowances, management
used models based on historical loss experience and current
economic conditions. Judgements were made in loan
segmentation and in determining the parameters to the models,
including the selection of macro-economic factors, period of
historical loss rates and loss emergence periods.

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our audit procedures in relation to impairment on loans and

advances to customers included the following:

e Assessing and evaluating management'’s controls over
identification of potentially impaired loans, which include
event-triggered and periodic loan account reviews and an

early alert mechanism;

° For individual impairment allowances of corporate loans
and advances to customers, assessing management’s
estimation of recoverable cash flows, which included
testing of collateral valuation and entitlement and the
basis for the estimation of sources of recoverable cash
flows against available evidence; and

e  For collective impairment allowance, evaluating the
appropriateness and consistency in the application of the
collective impairment models and the key parameters,
evaluating the management judgement applied in
determining the assumptions used in the key individual
parameters, including macro-economic factors, periods
of historical loss rates and loss emergence periods used.
In addition, testing the completeness and accuracy
of underlying loan data against the source systems
and re-performing the extraction of data for collective
impairment allowance calculations.

Based on the procedures we performed, we considered the
management'’s key judgements used in identifying impairment
indicators and the key assumptions adopted in estimating the
impairment allowances required are supported by the evidence
we gathered and consistent with our expectations.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Key Audit Matters (continued)

HKAS 8 disclosure of estimated impact upon initial application of HKFRS 9

Key Audit Matter

Refer to note 3(b) to the consolidated financial statements

The accounting standard HKAS 8 requires disclosure of the
reasonably estimable information relevant to assessing the
possible impact that adoption of new accounting standards
will have on the entity’s financial statements. HKFRS 9 took
effect on 1 January 2018 and its adoption required considerable
judgements and interpretations, in particular, in developing
new models for estimating expected credit losses (“ECL") for the
Group's loans and advances to customers (and certain associated
commitments and financial guarantee contracts) measured at
amortised cost. New data inputs from systems that have not been
used previously for the preparation of the accounting records
will also be used in the new ECL models. In some cases where
data is unavailable, judgements are applied in seeking reasonable
alternatives to enable ECL calculations to be performed.

As at 31 December 2017, management estimated the transitional
impact from adoption of HKFRS 9 to be a net reduction of
HKS$1,127 million in the Group's net assets, of which HK$1,352
million was attributable to increase in impairment provision under
ECL requirements.

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our audit procedures in relation to the HKAS 8 disclosure on
transitional impact from adoption of HKFRS 9 included the
following:

° Assessing the appropriateness of accounting policies
prepared by management;

e (Obtaining an understanding and making an assessment
of the major modelling methodologies and assumptions
with the assistance of our modelling specialists for
portfolios generating material ECL;

e With the assistance of our IT experts, validating the
controls over user acceptance testing ("UAT"). Particularly,
reviewing the results of UATs performed by management
over selected logic and formulae for calculating the ECL
and re-performing key UATs on a sample basis;

e Testing the accuracy and completeness of key ECL model
data inputs through testing the relevant key data input
controls and tracing a sample population of key data to
their source documents and data records maintained in
different systems involved in the ECL computation; and

e Inspecting the results of analysis performed by
management over the ECL outcomes and testing the
control over approval of relevant HKAS 8 disclosure.

Based on the procedures we performed, we considered
the disclosure of estimated impact upon initial application
of HKFRS 9 by management is supported by the evidence
available.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Fair value measurement of financial instruments and impairment of available-for-sale debt securities

Key Audit Matter

Refer to note 37 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group has recorded HK$65,146 million of financial assets and
HK$4,824 million of financial liabilities measured at fair value as at
31 December 2017, of which, HK$17,995 million financial assets
and HK$4,824 million financial liabilities were classified as level 2
or level 3 in the fair value hierarchy respectively.

We focused on the fair value measurement of the financial
instruments classified as level 2 and level 3 in the fair value
hierarchy since their valuations were based on models which
involved management’s judgements.

In particular, judgements were involved in determining the
appropriate valuation techniques for the specific types of financial
instruments and selection of appropriate valuation inputs
including discount rates, bond prices, exchange rates and credit
spreads.

We also focused on the impairment assessment for
available-for-sale debt securities as management’s judgement on
indicators of impairment such as financial soundness of the issuer
and economic conditions, as well as on the amount of recoverable
cash flows are required when assessing the impairment of the
securities. For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
recorded an impairment loss of HK$31 million on its investment in
available-for-sale debt securities.

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our audit procedures in relation to fair value measurement
of level 2 and level 3 financial instruments and impairment of
available-for-sale debt securities included the following:

U Evaluating the appropriateness of management'’s
selection of the valuation models for determining the fair
values for different types of financial instruments;

e Assessing and evaluating the controls over key treasury
reconciliations, standing data maintenance of the market
data and parameters input to the valuation models;

e Assessing and evaluating management's key assumptions
and judgement, including discount rates, bond prices,
exchange rates and credit spreads applied in the
valuation models based on our industry knowledge and
market practice,

e Developing our expectation of independent valuation
over selected samples of level 2 and level 3 financial
instruments and compared our outcome against
management’s valuation results;

e  Testing, on a sample basis, the appropriateness of
classification of level 2 and level 3 financial instruments;

e FEvaluating the appropriateness of key valuation
adjustments applied by management and testing the
computation of such key valuation adjustments; and

e Assessing key judgements applied in impairment
assessment of available-for-sale debt securities, including
challenging management’s assessment of the financial
soundness of issuers, and quality and recoverability of
the debt securities based on our industry knowledge and
market practice.

Based on the procedures we performed, we found that
the data, parameters and methodologies used in the
management’s fair value measurement of level 2 and 3 financial
instruments and impairment assessment for available-for-sale
debt securities are supported by the evidence available.
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Independent Auditor's Report

Other Information

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all of the information included in
the annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon, and the Regulatory Disclosures
Statements for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Audit Committee for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the
audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Independent Auditor's Report

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e  FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Ms. Ng Wai Ying.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 23 March 2018

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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HZE2017F12 A31HILFZ (LABEE A5 6T)

Consolidated Income Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2017

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2017 2016
sk BT T BT
Note HK$'000 HKS$'000
FMEMA Interest income 4(a) 8,838,949 7,061,528
FEXZH Interest expense 4(b) (3,443,959) (2,932,702)
FERE WA Net interest income 5,394,990 4,128,826
BRENMASWA Fee and commission income 1,685,994 1,571,349
EREAS I Fee and commission expense (73,248) (75,114)
FERARBESBRA Net fee and commission income 5 1,612,746 1,496,235
FRHWA Net trading income 6 695,361 617,530
SFER UG Net hedging gain 7 976 126
HEAMHHEFHF = Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale securities 8 126,794 129,729
HmggZg A Other operating income 9 42,077 40,380
‘U A Operating income 7,872,944 6,412,826
BT H Operating expenses 10 (3,173,699) (2,816,189)
BRI (B 2248 A0 A0 R &% A Operating profit before impairment 4,699,245 3,596,637
: \,A&:@M&E{m;ﬁ%lﬁﬁ@}é% Impairment losses on loans and advances and other accounts 12 (1,391,065) (552,959)
AR EFESREERLX Impairment losses on available-for-sale securities (31,204) -
WEEX Impairment losses (1,422,269) (552,959)
R Operating profit 3,276,976 3,043,678
HEMENREF(BK), /WE  Net (loss)/gain on disposal of property and equipment (4,055) 15
T§§W¥§ﬁ£4&fﬁ Revaluation gain on investment properties 22 14,290 9,546
BADER Profit before taxation 3,287,211 3,053,239
Fri5fs Income tax 13 (478,774) (504,998)
REEHERN Profit for the year 2,808,437 2,548,241
FEAREREF Profit attributable to shareholders 2,808,437 2,548,241
F63B HF1902B BB A & RE—IBHD The notes on pages 63 to 192 form part of these financial statements.

FREIRT (B BRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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HZE2017F12 A31HILFEZ (LABEE B8 AT)

Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2017 2016
P EE BT T BT
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
REEZRF Profit for the year 2,808,437 2,548,241
AEEHMEEEKE Other comprehensive income for the year 14
HETHEFIEZRER Items that may be reclassified subsequently to
income statement:
HEF NGB TR AR BT SRR Exchange differences on translation of financial
HBE = RE statements of overseas subsidiaries 119,152 (93,590)
WemEHH Cash flow hedges
—FREREHRTARAAEE - effective portion of changes in fair value of
EpeE) hedging instruments recognised during the year - 1,279
—HEREERER — transfer to income statement on disposal (1,279) -
—@E (EH)EEHE — transfer to/(from) deferred tax 211 211)
(1,068) 1,068
A ERES Available-for-sale securities
—RNRAEBENEE - change in fair value 62,269 58,846
—HEREERER ~ transfer to income statement on disposal (122,929) (121,883)
—BEEFREEIRER — transfer to income statement on impairment 26,851 -
— B RIER I8 — transfer to deferred tax 7,648 12,780
(26,161) (50,257)
REEFEHMEEMKE Other comprehensive income for the year 91,923 (142,779)
REEZHEHIKNSLEHE Total comprehensive income for the year 2,900,360 2,405,462
BERBRRNEEmK AL Total comprehensive income attributable to
shareholders 2,900,360 2,405,462
F63BEEIF12E MM B AT ERE —BMm - The notes on pages 63 to 192 form part of these financial statements.
st

Annual Report 2017

059



060

MR R

/\\/T\

2017412 A31 B (LA BT )

Consolidated Statement of

Financial Position

At 31 December 2017

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2017 2016
B 5E BETT BT T
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
EE ASSETS
Ve MEIRIT - PRIEITR Cash and balances with banks, central banks and
Hibh e m#EN ST other financial institutions 16 31,657,854 27,540,433
Eﬁﬁﬂ FRRERTT R H M m iR Placements with and advances to banks, central
SR e PNE T banks and other financial institutions 17 47,402,438 22,889,713
RHIPGEE Trading assets 18 5,799,539 5,581,720
EPREREBHI N EAMRE Loans and advances to customers and other
accounts 19 198,986,939 191,286,538
AP EES Available-for-sale securities 20 59,346,677 58,204,271
EYE Property and equipment 22
—REME — Investment properties 132,780 138,490
—HAith¥ % — Other premises 373,100 369,479
— B - Equipments 514,469 387,907
Af Y B F7 18 Tax recoverable 28(a) 29,047 187
IRIETRIBE B Deferred tax assets 28(b) 65,841 18,217
EERE Total Assets 344,308,684 306,416,955
EERER LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
=N Liabilities
RITNEM SRR ENTER N ET Deposits and balances of banks and other
financial institutions 23 5,187,319 5,256,660
BFEEFER Deposits from customers 24 271,471,865 235,574,700
REBEBE Trading liabilities 25 4,824,483 3,996,444
BEBITERE Certificates of deposit issued 26 3,421,769 10,593,445
B ITEFES Debt securities issued 27 3,584,064
NERFRTE Current taxation 28(a) 497,575 195,405
EERIBEEE Deferred tax liabilities 28(b) 1,631 1,520
HEMaE Other liabilities 5,422,626 10,138,928
BBER Loan capital 29 6,340,192 8,705,837
BEH8E Total Liabilities 300,751,524 274,462,939
e Equity
f& 7 Share capital 30(a) 18,404,013 9,366,271
(G Reserves 18,979,895 16,414,493
PR AR Total shareholders’ equity 37,383,908 25,780,764
REIMER LA Additional equity instruments 31 6,173,252 6,173,252
R Total Equity 43,557,160 31,954,016
BEkBEREE Total Equity and Liabilities 344,308,684 306,416,955

EE2R2018F3 A3 AR EIIRIEREM -
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23 March 2018.

R/NE

ZHANG Xiaowei

HITESE  (TRFTHAEH
Executive Director, President and
Chief Executive Officer

F63BERE

FREIRT (B BRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

192 B Y LB AN B T Sk — BB 1

HRRE

KAN NG Chau Yuk Helen
HITEFFRELITHAEH
Executive Director and
Alternate Chief Executive Officer

The notes on pages 63 to 192 form part of these financial statements.
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HZE2017F12 A31HILFEZ (LB BT

Consolidated Statement of

Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2017

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

g
ERIR
EXZE  WEER ReWE  REE} ER-R (K30
fife BE  HAEE i irE# i Additional
Bx  EXBE  -BEE  Echnge  Propety  Cashflow  Investment DB Reguatoy  REEA  BE4E equiy  BREE
Share Capital General  differences  revaluation hedging ~ revaluation  Statutory general  Retained Total  instruments Total
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits  reseves  (note 30) equity
BETT BETn BT BEfm BETn R #ETn BT BETm BT BT M T
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
M017E1R18 At 1 January 2017 9,366,271 6,589 100,000 (94.212) 55 1,068 (61,975) 53,845 149500 16259623 16414493 6173252 31954016
EENIES = Changes in equity for 2017:
KEFER Proftfor the year - - - - - - - - - 2808437 2,808,437 - 2808437
FEREMRTNE Other comprehensive income for the year - - - YR - (1068)  (26,161) - - 9193 - 9193
TEERENGEE Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 119,152 - (1,068) (26,161) - - 2808437 2900360 - 2900360
BAREERG MBRAHRE  lssue and allotment o shares, netof
transaction costs 9,037,742 - - - - - - - - - - - 903174
E ] Transerfiom retained profs - - - - - - - 48 - 39186 (334958) 334938 -
B RERERZE Distibution payment for Addiional Tier
Capital Securites (‘ATT Capital Securiies') - - - - - - - - - - - (334958 (334958)
RotE12A318 At 31 December 2017 18,404,013 6,589 100,000 24940 55 - (88,136) 58,073 149500 18728874 18979895 6173252 43,557,160
M06E1A1H AtT January 2016 7566271 6,589 100,000 (622) 5% - (11718 98943 149500 13875019 14177766 2310168 24054205
ey R Changes i equityfor 2016:
KERET Profitfor the ear - - - - - - - - SseM 158 - MM
TEEEMAENE Other comprehensiie income for the year - - - B - 068 (505) - - - am) - (4m)
RERRANELE Total compiehensie ncome for te year - - - B - 1068 057 - SN Bk ST
EIREERA Issue and allotment of shares 1800000 - - - - - - - - - - 1800000
KB ERE R Issue of AT Capital Securiies - - - - - - - - - - ee3084 386308
EERAER Transfer from retained profits - - - - - - - (5008) - (163637 (168739) 168735 -
TRB-RERERES Distibution payment for
AT Capltal Securities - - - - - - - - - - - (168,739) (168,739)
M0I6E1A31E At 31 December 2016 9366271 6,589 100,000 %421 55 1068 (61,979) 53845 149500 16259623 16414493 617325 31934016
Fo3AFNF1NBENWTBATIEHRE 24 - The notes on pages 63 to 192 form part of these financial statements.
- FR
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HZE2017F12 A31HILFZ (LABEE A5 6T)

S}

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2017

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2017 2016
B &E BT T BT
Note HK$’000 HKS$'000
RE (AR EEERNRS Net cash flow generated from/(used in) operating
REFHE activities 33(a) 25,917,083 (1,988,285)
®E(AR)BREXBENRS Cash flow generated from/(used in) investing
RERHE activities
Bl E SR E Dividends received from equity securities 6,390 6,098
BAMERZ Purchase of property and equipment (314,150) (193,912)
HEY KRBTSR Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment 52 100
ARBREEBNESRETE Net cash used in investing activities (307,708) (187,714)
KB (AR BEERN Cash flow generated from/(used in)
ReREMH financing activities
BITEISESERIE Proceeds from debt securities issued 3,397,843 -
TR ERTIS RO Proceeds from shares issued 9,037,742 1,800,000
BITREIN—REARNFBHFTB A Proceeds from Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities issued - 3,863,084
SRR RERFEES Distribution paid on Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities (334,958) (168,735)
EREEBER Proceeds from redemption of loan capital (2,342,981) -
S EBEARFE Interest paid on loan capital (499,180) (496,495)
REMEXEXENESRETE Net cash generated from financing activities 9,258,466 4,997,854
BEeRBESEENTEHE Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 34,867,841 2,821,855
MATENREREEEEER Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 54,517,271 51,695,416
MR12A31ENRERIBEEEEAE Cashand cash equivalents at 31 December 33(b) 89,385,112 54,517,271

Fo3HEE

FREIRT (B BRAH

2B MM B AR WA — & D ©

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

The notes on pages 63 to 192 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1 General information

The principal activities of China CITIC Bank International Limited (“the
Bank”) and its subsidiaries (together referred to as “the Group”), which
materially affect the results or comprise the assets and liabilities of the

Group, are the provision of banking and related financial services.

China CITIC Bank International Limited is a licensed bank incorporated
and domiciled in Hong Kong, and has its registered office at 61-65 Des

Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.

2 Significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been continuously applied to all the years presented, unless

otherwise stated.

(a) Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards ("HKASs"), Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. A summary
of the significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out

below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group and the Bank. Note 3 (a) provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from the initial
application of these developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting periods reflected in

these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(b)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Basis of preparation

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements is the historical cost basis, except that the
following assets and liabilities are stated at their fair value as explained
in the accounting policies set out below:

financial instruments classified as trading, designated at fair
value through profit or loss and available-for-sale (see note 2(e)

(i)
- investment property (see note 2(h)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires that management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs that
have a significant effect on the financial statements and major sources
of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 41.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(c)

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received

or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will

flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be

measured reliably, revenue is recognised in the income statement as

follows:

(i)

Interest income

Interest income for all interest-bearing financial instruments is
recognised in the income statement on an accruals basis using
the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating the interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument
or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset. When calculating the effective
interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows considering all
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example,
prepayment, call and similar options) but does not consider
future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees paid or
received between parties to the contract that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other
premiums or discounts. Cash rebates granted in relation to
residential mortgage loans are capitalised and amortised to the
income statement over their expected life.

Interest on impaired loans is recognised using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose
of measuring the impairment loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2

(c)

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

Fee and commission income

Fee and commission income is recognised when the
corresponding service is provided, except where the fee is
charged to cover the costs of a continuing service to, or risk
borne for, the customer, or is interest in nature. In these cases,
the fee is recognised as income in the accounting period in
which the cost or risk is incurred and is accounted for as interest
income.

Origination or commitment fees received/paid by the Group
which result in the creation or acquisition of a financial asset
are deferred and recognised as an adjustment to the effective
interest rate. When a loan commitment is not expected to
result in the draw-down of a loan, loan commitment fees are
recognised on a straight-line basis over the commitment period.

Finance income from finance lease and hire purchase contract
Finance income implicit in the finance lease and hire purchase
payments is recognised as interest income over the period of
the leases so as to produce an approximately constant periodic
rate of return on the outstanding net investment in the leases
for each accounting period. Commission paid to dealers for the
acquisition of finance lease loans or hire purchase contracts is
included in the carrying value of the assets and amortised to
the income statement over the expected life of the lease as an
adjustment to interest income.

Rental income from operating lease

Rental income received under operating leases is recognised
in the income statement in equal instalments over the periods
covered by the lease term. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in the income statement as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable.

Dividend income

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is established.
Dividend income from listed investments is recognised when
the share price of the investment is quoted ex-dividend.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(d)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls
an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing whether the Group
has power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until the
date that control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash
flows, and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do not result
in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions,
whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling and
non-controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill
and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as
a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting
gain or loss being recognised in the income statement. Any interest
retained in that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
recognised at fair value. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest as
an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of
the entity are allocated for as if the group had directly disposed of
related assets or liabilities. This way means that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
orloss.

In the Bank’s statement of financial position, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses, if any (see note 2(1)),
unless the investment is classified as held for sale (or included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for sale) (see note 2(s)).
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CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

2

(e)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments

(i

(ii)

Initial recognition

The Group classifies its financial instruments into different
categories at inception, depending on the purpose for which
the assets were acquired or the liabilities were incurred. The
categories are: fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, available-for-sale securities and other financial
liabilities.

Financial instruments are initially measured at fair value, which
will normally be equal to the transaction price plus, in the
case of a financial asset or financial liability not held at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset or issue
of the financial liability. Transaction costs on financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
expensed immediately.

The Group recognises financial assets and financial liabilities
on the date it becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. A regular way purchase or sale of financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised using trade date accounting. Other financial assets
and financial liabilities are recognised using settlement date
accounting. From these dates, any gains and losses arising from
changes in fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are recorded.

Categorisation

Fair value through profit or loss

This category comprises financial assets and liabilities held for
trading, and those designated at fair value through profit or
loss upon initial recognition, but excludes those investments in
equity instruments that do not have a quoted market price and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured.

Trading financial instruments are financial assets or financial
liabilities which are acquired or incurred principally for the
purpose of trading, or are part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that are managed together and for which
there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking. Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge
accounting (note 2(q)) are accounted for as trading instruments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2

(e)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

(ii)

Categorisation (continued)

Fair value through profit or loss (continued)

The Group has the option of designating its financial
instruments at fair value through profit or loss upon initial
recognition when:

- the assets or liabilities are managed, evaluated and
reported internally on a fair value basis;

- the designation eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch which would otherwise arise;

- the asset or liability contains embedded derivatives that
significantly modify the cash flows that would otherwise
be required under the contract; or

- the separation of the embedded derivatives from the
financial instrument is not prohibited.

Financial assets and liabilities under this category are carried at
fair value. Changes in the fair value are included in the income
statement in the period in which they arise. Upon disposal or
repurchase, the difference between the net sale proceeds or the
net payment and the carrying value is included in the income
statement.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market, other than (a) those that the Group intends
to sell immediately or in the near term, which are classified
as held for trading; (b) those that the Group, upon initial
recognition, designates as being at fair value through profit or
loss or as available-for-sale; or (c) those for which the Group
may not recover substantially all of its initial investment, other
than because of credit deterioration, which are classified as
available-for-sale. Loans and receivables mainly comprise loans
and advances to customers and placements with and advances
to banks, central banks and other financial institutions.

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less impairment losses, if any (see
note 2(1)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Categorisation (continued)

Available-for-sale securities

Available-for-sale securities are non-derivative financial assets
that are designated as available-for-sale or are not classified in
any of the other two categories above. They include financial
assets intended to be held for an indefinite period of time but
which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes
in the market environment.

Available-for-sale securities are carried at fair value. Unrealised
gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity, except for impairment losses and foreign
exchange gains and losses on monetary items such as debt
securities which are recognised in the income statement.

Investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
measured reliably, and derivatives that are linked to and must
be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity securities, are
carried at cost less impairment losses, if any (see note 2(1)).

When the available-for-sale securities are sold, gains or losses
on disposal include the difference between the net sale
proceeds and the carrying value, and the accumulated fair
value adjustments which are previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified from equity to the
income statement.

Other financial liabilities

Financial liabilities, other than trading liabilities and those
designated at fair value through profit or loss, are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2

(e)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Fair value measurement principles

The fair value of financial instruments is based on their quoted
market prices at the end of the reporting period without any
deduction for estimated future selling costs. Financial assets are
priced at current bid prices, while financial liabilities are priced
at current asking prices.

If there is no publicly available latest traded price nor a quoted
market price on a recognised stock exchange or a price from a
broker/dealer for non-exchange-traded financial instruments,
or if the market for them is not active, the fair value of the
instrument is estimated using valuation techniques that provide
a reliable estimate of prices which could be obtained in actual
market transactions.

Where discounted cash flow techniques are used, estimated
future cash flows are based on management’s best estimates
and the discount rate used is a market rate at the end of the
reporting period applicable for an instrument with similar terms
and conditions. Where other pricing models are used, input is
based on market data at the end of the reporting period.

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights to
receive the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or when
the financial asset together with substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership, have been transferred.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The
legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future
events and must be enforceable in the normal course of
business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy
of the Bank or the counterpart.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2

(e)

(f)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

(vi)  Embedded derivatives
An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined)
instrument that includes both the derivative and a host
contract, with the effect that some of the cash flows of the
combined instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-alone
derivative. The embedded derivatives are separated from the
host contract and accounted for as a derivative when (a) the
economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative
are not closely related to the host contract; and (b) the hybrid
(combined) instrument is not measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value recognised in the income statement.

When the embedded derivative is separated, the host contract
is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policies of
financial instruments (see note 2(e)(ii)).

Repurchase and reverse repurchase transactions

Securities sold subject to a simultaneous agreement to repurchase
these securities at a certain later date at a fixed price (repurchase
agreements) are retained in the financial statements and measured in
accordance with their original measurement principles. The proceeds
from the sale received are reported as liabilities and are carried at
amortised cost.

Securities purchased under agreements to resell (reverse repurchase
agreements) are reported not as purchases of the securities and
not recognised on the statement of financial position, but the
consideration paid is recorded as receivables, and are carried in the
statement of financial position at amortised cost.

Interest earned on reverse repurchase agreements and interest
incurred on repurchase agreements are recognised as interest income
or interest expense, respectively, over the life of each agreement, using
the effective interest rate method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(9)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Hedging
Hedge accounting recognises the offsetting effects on profit or

loss of changes in the fair values of the hedging instrument and

the hedged item. The Group assesses and documents whether the

financial instruments that are used in hedging transactions are highly

effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged

items attributable to the hedged risks both at hedge inception and

on an ongoing basis. The Group discontinues hedge accounting

prospectively when (a) the hedging instrument expires or is sold,

terminated or exercised; (b) the hedge no longer meets the criteria for

hedge accounting; or (c) the Group revokes the designation.

(i)

Fair value hedge

A fair value hedge seeks to offset the risks of changes in the fair
value of a recognised asset or liability that will give rise to a gain
or loss being recognised in the income statement.

The hedging instrument is measured at fair value, with fair value
changes recognised in the income statement. The carrying
amount of the hedged item is adjusted by the amount of the
changes in fair value of the hedging instrument attributable
to the risk being hedged. This adjustment is recognised in the
income statement to offset the effect of the gain or loss on the
hedging instrument.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or
exercised; the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting; or the Group revokes designation of the hedge
relationship, any adjustment up to that point, to a hedged item
for which the effective interest rate method is used is amortised
to the income statement as part of the recalculated effective
interest rate of the item over its remaining life.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2

(9)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Hedging (continued)

(i)

(iif)

Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives
that are designated and qualified as cash flow hedges is
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity. Any gain or loss in fair value relating to an
ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the income
statement.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a
hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any
cumulative gain or loss at that time remains in equity until the
forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in the income
statement. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected
to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was recognised in
other comprehensive income is immediately reclassified to the
income statement.

Hedge effectiveness testing

In order to qualify for hedge accounting, the Group carries out
prospective effectiveness testing to demonstrate that it expects
the hedge to be highly effective (prospective effectiveness)
at the inception of the hedge and throughout its life. Actual
effectiveness (retrospective effectiveness) also needs to be
demonstrated on an ongoing basis.

The documentation of each hedging relationship sets out how
the effectiveness of the hedge is assessed. The method which
the Group adopts for assessing hedge effectiveness will depend
on its risk management strategy.
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(9)

(h)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Hedging (continued)

(i) Hedge effectiveness testing (continued)
For fair value hedge relationships, the Group utilises the
cumulative dollar offset method or regressive analysis as
effectiveness testing methodologies.

For prospective effectiveness, the hedging instrument must be
expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes
in fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk during
the period for which the hedge is designated. For actual
effectiveness, the changes in fair value or cash flows must offset
each other in the range of 80% to 125% for the hedge to be
deemed effective.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned or
held under a leasehold interest (see note 2(j)) to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation. These include land and buildings held
for a currently undetermined future use.

Investment properties are stated in the statement of financial position
at fair value. Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value or from
the retirement or disposal of an investment property is recognised in
the income statement. Rental income from investment properties is
accounted for as described in note 2(c)(iv).

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating lease
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, the interest
is classified and accounted for as an investment property on a
property-by-property basis. Any such property interest which has
been classified as an investment property is accounted for as if it were
held under a finance lease (see note 2(j)(ii)), and the same accounting
policies are applied to that interest as are applied to other investment
properties leased under finance leases. Lease payments are accounted
for as described in note 2(c)(iii).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(i)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Other premises and equipment

In preparing these financial statements, advantage has been taken
of the transitional provisions set out in paragraph 80A of HKAS 16,
Property, plant and equipment, issued by the HKICPA, with the effect
that other premises which are carried at revalued amounts in financial
statements relating to periods ended before 30 September 1995 have
not been revalued to fair value at the end of the reporting period.

The following items of property and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any (see note

2(0):

- buildings held for own use which are situated on leasehold land
classified as held under operating leases (see note 2(j)(iii))

- other items of equipment.

Changes arising in the revaluation of properties held for own use
are generally dealt with in other comprehensive income and are
accumulated separately in equity in the property revaluation reserve.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of
property and equipment are determined as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item, and
are recognised in the income statement on the date of retirement
or disposal. Any related revaluation surplus is transferred from the
revaluation reserve to retained profits and is not reclassified to the
income statement.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or valuation of items
of property and equipment, less their estimated residual value, if
any, using the straight line method over the estimated useful lives as
follows:

- Freehold land is not depreciated.

- Leasehold land classified as held under finance leases is
depreciated over the unexpired term of lease.

- Buildings are depreciated over 30 years or the unexpired terms
of the land leases, whichever is shorter.

- Furniture, fixtures and equipment are depreciated over a term
of 3to 10 years.

Where parts of an item of property and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost or valuation of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis between the parts, and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any,
are reviewed annually.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases and hire purchase contracts

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions,

is or contains a lease if the Group determines that the arrangement

conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period

of time in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a

determination is made based on an evaluation of the substance of

the arrangement and applies regardless of whether the arrangement

takes the legal form of a lease.

(i)

(i)

(iif)

Classification of leased assets

Assets that are held by the Group under leases and which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases. Leases which do not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee are classified as operating leases.

Finance leases

Where the Group is a lessor under finance leases, an amount
representing the net investment in the lease is included in
the statement of financial position as loans and advances
to customers. Hire purchase contracts which have the
characteristics of finance leases are accounted for in the same
manner as finance leases. Impairment losses are accounted for
in accordance with the accounting policy as set out in note 2(1).

Operating leases

Where the Group leases out assets under operating leases,
the assets are included in the statement of financial position
according to their nature and, where applicable, are depreciated
in accordance with the Group's depreciation policies, as set out
in note 2(i). Impairment losses are accounted for in accordance
with the accounting policy as set out in note 2(l). Revenue
arising from operating leases is recognised in accordance with
the Group's revenue recognition policies, as set out in note 2(c)

(iv).

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to the
income statement in equal instalments over the accounting
periods covered by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives received are
recognised in the income statement as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made.
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(k)

U]

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Repossessed assets

In the recovery of impaired loans and advances, the Group may take
possession of assets held as collateral through court proceedings
or voluntary delivery of possession by the borrowers. Where it is
intended to achieve an orderly realisation of the impaired assets
and the Group is no longer seeking repayment from the borrower,
repossessed assets are reported in “Other assets”. The Group does not
hold the repossessed assets for its own use.

Repossessed assets are recognised at the lower of the carrying
amount of the related loans and advances and fair value less costs to
sell at the date of exchange. They are not depreciated or amortised.

Impairment losses on initial classification and on subsequent
remeasurement are recognised in the income statement.

Impairment of assets

The carrying amount of the Group's assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence that financial assets are
impaired includes observable data that comes to the attention of the
Group about one or more of the following loss events which has an
impact on the future cash flows of the assets that can be estimated
reliably:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or borrower;
- a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market, economic or
legal environment that have an adverse effect on the borrower;

- the disappearance of an active market for financial assets
because of financial difficulties;

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment in an equity instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, the carrying amount is reduced to the
estimated recoverable amount by means of a charge to the income
statement.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of assets (continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding assets
directly, except for impairment losses recognised in respect of
loans and receivables whose recovery is considered doubtful but
not remote, which are measured at amortised cost. In this case, the
impairment losses are recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against loans and receivables directly
and any amounts held in the allowance account relating to that
borrower/investment are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off directly are
recognised in the income statement.

(i) Loans and receivables

Impairment losses on loans and receivables are measured as
the difference between an asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition of these assets). Receivables
with a short duration are not discounted if the effect of
discounting is immaterial.

The total allowance for credit losses consists of two
components: individual impairment allowances and collective
impairment allowances.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, and individually or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists
for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant
or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues
to be recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.
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U]

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i

Loans and receivables (continued)

The individual impairment allowance is based upon
management’s best estimate of the present value of the cash
flows which are expected to be received discounted at the
original effective interest rate. In estimating these cash flows,
management makes judgements about the borrower’s financial
situation and the net realisable value of any underlying collateral
or guarantees in favour of the Group. Each impaired asset is
assessed on its own merits.

In assessing the need for collective impairment allowances,
management uses statistical modelling and considers
historical trends of factors such as credit quality, portfolio size,
concentrations and economic factors. In order to estimate
the required allowance, the Group makes assumptions both
to define the way the Group models inherent losses and to
determine the required input parameters, based on historical
experience and current economic conditions.

The accuracy of the impairment allowances the Group makes
depends on how well the Group can estimate future cash
flows for individually assessed impairment allowances, and
the model assumptions and parameters used in determining
collective impairment allowances. While this necessarily
involves judgement, the Group believes that the impairment
allowances on loans and advances to customers are reasonable
and supportable.

Any subsequent changes to the amounts and timing of the
expected future cash flows compared to the prior estimates
that can be linked objectively to an event occurring after
the write-down, will result in a change in the impairment
allowances on loans and receivables and be charged or credited
to the income statement. A reversal of impairment losses is
limited to the loans and receivables’ carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.

When there is no reasonable prospect of recovery, the loan and
the related interest receivables are written off.

Loans and receivables with renegotiated terms are loans that
have been restructured due to deterioration in the borrower’s
financial position and where the Group has made concessions
that it would not otherwise consider. Renegotiated loans and
receivables are subject to ongoing monitoring to determine
whether they remain impaired or past due.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

(iif)

Available-for-sale securities

When there is objective evidence that an available-for-sale
security is impaired, the cumulative loss that had been
recognised in the investment revaluation reserve is reclassified
to the income statement. The amount of the cumulative loss
that is recognised in the income statement is the difference
between the acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that asset previously recognised in the income
statement.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale debt securities
are reversed if the subsequent increase in fair value can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised. Reversals of impairment losses in such
circumstances are recognised in the income statement.

For available-for-sale equity securities, when there is objective
evidence be observed for an impairment, the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the cost of the
equity securities and the fair value of the impaired asset. All
subsequent increases in the fair value of the impaired asset are
treated as a revaluation and recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity, such impairment
losses are not reversed through the income statement.

Non-financial assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to identify indications that
the following assets may be impaired or, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

- property and equipment (other than properties carried at
revalued amounts);

- investments in subsidiaries and associates.
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U]

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of assets (continued)

Non-financial assets (continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is
estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of
its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset. Where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement whenever the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the cash-generating unit (or group of units), and then
to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset is not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable),
or value in use (if determinable).

Reversal of impairment losses

In respect of assets, an impairment loss (except for
impairment on goodwill) is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to the
income statement in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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2

U]

(m)

(n)

(o)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(iv)  Interim financial reporting and impairment
The Group prepares an interim financial report in compliance
with HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of the first six
months of the year. At the end of the interim period, the Group
applies the same impairment testing, recognition and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the year (see notes 2(I)(i) to (iii)).

Cash equivalents

Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition.

Employee benefits

(i) Employee benefits and contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution plans and the cost of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees. Where payment or settlement is
deferred and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

(i) Staffretirement scheme
The Group operates a defined contribution provident fund and
a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme. Contributions are charged
to the income statement as and when the contributions fall
due.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in the income
statement except to the extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(o)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, and all
deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse either in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits; that is, those differences
are taken into account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period,
or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2(h), the
amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using the tax rates
that would apply on sale of those assets at their carrying value at the
reporting date unless the property is depreciable and is held within
a business model whose objective is to consume substantially all of
the economic benefits embodied in the property over time, rather
than through sale. In all other cases, the amount of deferred tax
recognised is measured based on the expected manner of realisation
or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(o)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable temporary
differences arising from investment in subsidiaries, except for
deferred income tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred income tax assets are recognised on the deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries, only to
the extent that it is probable the temporary difference will reverse in
the future and there is sufficient taxable profit available against which
the temporary difference can be utilised.

Additional income tax that arises from the distribution of dividends
is recognised when the liability to pay the related dividends is
recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not offset.
Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred
tax assets against deferred tax liabilities if, and only if, the Group
has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Group intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets and settle the
current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2

(p)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Translation of foreign currencies

0]

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the
functional currency’). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in thousands of units of Hong Kong Dollars (HK$'000),
which is the Bank’s functional currency and the Group's
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
into functional currency at the exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Exchange gains and losses are recognised in the income
statement.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated into
Hong Kong dollars using the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value
are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates the fair value was measured.

Exchange differences relating to investments at fair value
through profit or loss and derivative financial instruments are
included in gains less losses from trading securities or financial
instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss. All
other exchange differences relating to monetary items are
presented as gains less losses from dealing in foreign currencies
in the income statement. Differences arising on the translation
of available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity
in the investment revaluation reserve.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statements of financial position items are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
the reporting period. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation
is reclassified from equity to the income statement when the
profit or loss on disposal is recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2  Significant accounting policies (continued)

(q) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent liabilities

0]

(i)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (i.e.
the guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the holder) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee to customers,
the fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised as deferred
income within other liabilities. The fair value of financial
guarantees issued at the time of issuance is determined by
reference to fees charged in an arm’s length transaction for
similar services when such information is obtainable, or is
otherwise estimated by reference to interest rate differentials
by comparing the actual rates charged by lenders when the
guarantee is made available with the estimated rates that
lenders would have charged had the guarantees not been
available, where reliable estimates of such information can
be made. Where the Bank issues a financial guarantee to its
subsidiaries, the fair value of the guarantee is estimated and
capitalised as the cost of investment in subsidiaries and deferred
income within other liabilities.

The deferred income is amortised in the income statement over
the term of the guarantee as income from financial guarantees
issued. In addition, provisions are recognised in accordance with
note 2(q)(ii) if and when (a) it becomes probable that the holder
of the guarantee will call upon the Group under the guarantee,
and (b) the amount of that claim on the Group is expected
to exceed the amount currently carried in other liabilities in
respect of that guarantee, i.e. the amount initially recognised,
less accumulated amortisation.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group or the Bank has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event. It is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events, are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2

(r)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Related parties
A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to
the Group if that person:

(a)

(i

(ii)

(i)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or the Group's parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

0]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(viii)

The entity and the Group are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others);

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a
group of which the other entity is a member);

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party;

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity);

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by that person in
their dealings with the entity.



B TSR MY

(s)

FTEEHBE ()

BFREELHENFRBEE

M—EFRBEE (HHEMR) MEEE
RAEABEEBLERX S MIEEBRERE R
B WAZIFRBEE (HHEMAS) R
BRtE AR BARAFELE - hE
HERE—MHEENE—RXSP—HEHL
MEEEZFEERBNAERNZZTE

%o

EAKEET AL EF MK EESK
E—EHBARZIEHIER - BA L]
WOBBRHAELERNT - ZMBARIZH
FEERBBEROIBARKELE - MARA
SENEERELREN B AR 2 IHERE

S

B

EDBABAELERMNA  ERBEE
(RELEEEFAAENNEENMEE)
BT EREH 0 BB RS BRIEL
B ERBEE CATZE TEER
5N B EHAEN BN B AR AEHER
RIZEELHRE - @UEREERAABER
HEKRANBIEESIIR - EANKE LAITH
BHmEATRBEMLAEBRNEIRHEAE
RELRBEE - FREBBFAELENT A
BE (MMBAR - BE QR RERZEHA
AIIRERIN) RIREYME - ELEENE
FAELE  TeEERME2EME DT
HHBRETE -

FAEELEEERTAD BRIARN BT
EMELMREBRINEERAMER - AE
DERFAEHEREBRENEEAEHIER
BEEN TS ETESEE -

Notes to the Financial Statements

(s)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified as held for sale if it
is highly probable that its carrying amount will be recovered through
a sale transaction rather than through continuing use, and the asset (or
disposal group) is available for sale in its present condition. A disposal
group is a group of assets to be disposed of together as a group in a
single transaction, and liabilities directly associated with those assets
that will be transferred in the transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sales plan involving loss of control
of a subsidiary, all the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are
classified as held for sale when the above criteria for classification as
held for sale are met, regardless of whether the Group will retain a
non-controlling interest in the subsidiary after the sale.

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the measurement
of the non-current assets (and all individual assets and liabilities
in a disposal group) is brought up to date in accordance with
the accounting policies before the classification. Then, on initial
classification as held for sale, and until disposal, the non-current
assets (except for certain assets as explained below) or disposal
groups are recognised at the lower of their carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell. The principal exceptions to this measurement
policy so far as the financial statements of the Group and the Bank
are concerned are deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee
benefits, financial assets (other than investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures) and investment properties. These assets,
even if held for sale, would continue to be measured in accordance
with the policies set out elsewhere in note 2.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale and on
subsequent remeasurement while held for sale, are recognised in the
income statement. As long as a non-current asset is classified as held
for sale, or is included in a disposal group that is classified as held for
sale, the non-current asset is not depreciated or amortised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s management
committee members for the purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group'’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of
products and services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the products or
provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

Changes in accounting policies
New and amended accounting standards adopted by the Group

The HKICPA has issued several amendments to HKFRSs that are first
effective for the financial year beginning on or after 1 January 2017:

- Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses —
Amendments to HKAS 12

- Disclosure Initiative — Amendments to HKAS 7

Amendments to HKFRSs or HKASs as stated above effective for the

current accounting period of the Group do not have a material impact

on the Group.

The Group has not applied any new standards or interpretations not
yet effective for the current accounting period.
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(b)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

Future accounting development but not effective for the year
ended 31 December 2017

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a few amendments and new standards which are not yet
effective for the year ended 31 December 2017 and which have not
been adopted in the consolidated financial statements. These include
the following which may be relevant to the Group:

Rk
AR AR ERK
Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

— (EARMBHRSEADFIF R TA]

— (BRYBmEENDESHRETP 2
ME RELHEA
— (EAPBHREER)DF 165 HE ]

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” 20181 H1H
1 January 2018
HKFRS 15 "Revenue from contracts with customers” 20184F1 A1H
1 January 2018
HKFRS 16 “Leases” 2019F1 A1H
1 January 2019
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AEECENHESREENAE  WEHRN
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HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments”, which is the comprehensive standard to replace HKAS
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, addresses
the classification, measurement and derecognition of financial
assets and financial liabilities, and introduces new rules for hedge
accounting and a new impairment model for financial assets.

The Group will apply HKFRS 9 initially on 1 January 2018. Based on
assessments undertaken to date, the adoption of HKFRS 9 is expected
to reduce the Group's net assets at 1 January 2018 by HKS$1,127
million, representing: (i) a reduction of HK$1,352 million related to
impairment requirements; and (ii) an increase of HK$225 million
related to deferred tax assets. Corresponding impact on the Group's
capital ratios is immaterial.

The Group has reviewed its financial assets and liabilities and is
expecting the following impact from adoption of HKFRS 9 on
1 January 2018:
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(b)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

Future accounting development but not effective for the year
ended 31 December 2017 (continued)
HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (continued)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Classification -Financial assets

HKFRS 9 specifies new classification and measurement
approach for all financial assets (except for equity instruments
and derivatives) that reflects the business model in which assets
are managed and their contractual cash flow characteristics.
These factors determine the classification and measurement of
the financial assets under three principal categories: amortised
costs (‘AC), fair value through other comprehensive income
(‘FVOCI) and fair value through profit or loss (FVPL). The Group
has reviewed its financial assets and considers that there will be
no significant impact to the measurement of its assets.

Classification — Financial liabilities

There will be no impact on the Group’s accounting for financial
liabilities, as the new requirements only affect the accounting
for financial liabilities that are designated at fair value through
profit or loss and the Group does not have any such liabilities.
The derecognition rules have been transferred from HKAS 39
and have not been changed.

Hedge accounting

The new hedge accounting rules will align the accounting
for hedging instruments more closely with the Group's
risk management practices. As a general rule, more hedge
relationships might be eligible for hedge accounting, as the
standard introduces a more principles-based approach. HKFRS 9
provides a choice of accounting policy to be remained with
HKAS 39 hedge accounting.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(b)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

Future accounting development but not effective for the year
ended 31 December 2017 (continued)
HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (continued)

(iv)

Impairment — Financial assets, loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts

The new impairment model requires the recognition of
impairment allowances based on expected credit losses (‘ECL')
rather than only incurred credit losses as is the case under
HKAS 39. It applies to financial assets classified at amortised
cost, debt instruments measured at FVOCI, certain loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts. At initial
recognition, impairment allowance (or provision in the case
of commitments and guarantees) is required for ECL resulting
from default events that are possible within the next 12 months
(‘12-month ECL’). In the event of a significant increase in credit
risk, allowance (or provision) is required for ECL resulting from
all possible default events over the expected life of the financial
instrument (lifetime ECL").

The assessment of credit risk and the estimation of ECL are
required to be probability-weighted and should incorporate
all available information which is relevant to the assessment.
As a result, the recognition and measurement of impairment is
intended to be more forward-looking than under HKAS 39.

Disclosures

HKFRS 9 also introduces expanded disclosure requirements and
changes in presentation. These are expected to change the
nature and extent of the Group's disclosures about its financial
instruments particularly in the year of the adoption of the new
standard.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(b)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

Future accounting development but not effective for the year

ended 31 December 2017 (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (continued)

(vi)  Transition
HKFRS 9 must be applied for financial years commencing on or
after 1 January 2018. The Group will apply the new rules from
1 January 2018, with the practical expedients permitted under
the standard and comparatives for 2017 will not be restated.
Differences in the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities resulting from the adoption of HKFRS 9 will
generally be recognised in retained earnings and reserves as at
1 January 2018.

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”

The HKICPA has issued a new standard for the recognition of revenue.
This will replace HKAS 18 which covers contracts for goods and
services and HKAS 11 which covers construction contracts. The new
standard is based on the principle that revenue is recognised when
control of good or service transfers to a customer. The Standard
permits either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective
approach for the adoption.

The Group has assessed the impact of HKFRS 15 and expects that
the standard will not have significant impact, when applied, on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(b)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

Future accounting development but not effective for the year
ended 31 December 2017 (continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 will result in almost all lease being recognised on the
balance sheet, as the distinction between operating and finance lease
is removed. Under the new standard, an asset (the right to use the
leased item) and a financial liability to pay rentals are recognised. The
only exemptions are short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.
The accounting for lessors will not significantly change.

The standard will affect primarily the accounting for the Group's
operating leases. However, the Group has not yet determined to what
extent these commitments will result in the recognition of an asset
and a liability for future payments and how this will affect the Group's
profit and classification of cash flows.

The new standard is mandatory for financial year commencing on or
after 1 January 2019. At this stage, the Group does not intend to adopt
the standard before its effective date. The Group intends to apply
the simplified transition approach and will not restate comparative
amounts for the year prior to first adoption.

There are no other standards that are not yet effective and that would
be expected to have a material impact on the entity in the current or
future reporting periods and on foreseeable future transactions.
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(a)

(b)

Notes to the Financial Statements

MEWARRE X H 4  Interestincome and interest expense
FEWA (@) Interestincome
2017 2016
BET T BETIT
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FHES () Listed securities (Note (i) 707,649 595,311
FEETHESH(GEW) Unlisted securities (Note (i) 391,798 345,567
TEERTT R H At & B Y Balances and placements with banks and
EEMRTER other financial institutions 737,085 385,991
BN E BRI (FEGi)) Advances and other accounts (Note (ii) 7,002,417 5,734,659
JEIE A A BEFTAEREN Interest income on financial assets that are not
SEEEMNFBHRA at fair value through profit or loss 8,838,949 7,061,528
FIE X H (b) Interest expense
2017 2016
BT T BT
HK$’000 HKS'000
HE - RITEHAMAMS BEER Deposits from customers, banks and
TR EAM other financial institutions and others 2,706,510 2,252,360
BT FIGE Certificates of deposit issued 157,358 176,278
BETEEES Debt securities issued 96,666 -
2ETEHRER Loan capital issued 483,425 504,064
R AR BETAERZN Interest expense on financial liabilities that
SRBENFEZE are not at fair value through profit or loss 3,443,959 2,932,702
2 Note:
() AEBRFRNEFSHREBSESN LM () The Group has revisited the classification of listing status of debt

R WHETHLREREHRDBIAF
BARFENZEF - -

securities during the year and certain comparative figures have been
reclassified to conform with the current year's presentation.

() EHE2017F12B3BIEE BRESRE (i) Included in the above is interest income on impaired financial assets

BE /T B U A B #47,682,0007T (2016
4 38 #42,133,00007T)
B SRR (B 18 K I 3R B B A B B AE I
36,872,0007T (20165 : /& #28,404,0007T)

(FiFEE19(b)) ©

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

HPEBH

of HK$47,682,000 (2016: HK$42,133,000), which includes interest
income on the unwinding of the discount on loan impairment losses
of HK$36,872,000 (2016: HK$28,404,000) (note 19(b)) for the year ended
31 December 2017.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FEARAESKBA 5 Net fee and commission income
2017 2016
BET T BET T
HK$’000 HK$'000
A REeBA Fee and commission income:
EL e kA Bills commission 113,555 117,530
EAREBKRA Card-related income 33,597 28,307
—MREIRTTARTE General banking services 158,475 126,747
N Insurance 361,689 542,598
KENEBEIREESR Investment and structured investment products 427,375 94,600
BR - -BIXLBMEER Loans, overdrafts and facilities fees 590,713 660,355
Eh Others 590 712
1,685,994 1,571,349
ERNAEIEH Fee and commission expense (73,248) (75,114)
1,612,746 1,496,235
Hrho: Of which:
FERKESWA (TEFE Net fee and commission income (other than the
Rt EERNENE258) amounts included in determining the effective
2NN /NI A IEET N interest rate) relating to financial assets and
ExErNenEERAE liabilities not at fair value through profit or loss:
—EAREEBA — Fee and commission income 737,865 806,692
—EZ2RANAEIH — Fee and commission expense (20,905) (21,584)
716,960 785,108
BERZ WA 6 Nettradingincome
2017 2016
BET T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB INE TR B R Gains less losses from dealing in foreign currencies 482,673 441,529
BEXSHRGHEFWZRIE L Gains less losses from trading securities (4,579) 11,748
BENET BEWERFIEL Gains less losses from derivatives 112,362 (17,493)
R B EENBRA Interest income on trading assets
—Em () ~ Listed (Note) 26,778 20,608
—JELmGE) ~ Unlisted (Note) 78,127 161,138
695,361 617,530
L= Note:

AEERFRAEHRBREBESFN LTRRD
SEMNBUTAREER

B UEETHRE
25—

conform with the current year's presentation.

The Group has revisited the classification of listing status of debt securities
during the year and certain comparative figures have been reclassified to
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7 FEPRE

Notes to the Financial Statements

7 Nethedging gain

2017 2016
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
DA EEEFFRE(1BX) Net hedging gain/(loss) on fair value hedges
— BB ERE A RIEE — Net gain on hedged items attributable to 73,167 40,836
R the hedged risk
— ¥R T B FEL - Net loss on hedging instruments (72,037) (40,872)
1,130 (36)
WE&mEHFEK) W Net hedging (loss)/gain on cash flow hedges (154) 162
976 126
8 HETHHERSFFKE 8 Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale securities
2017 2016
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
HER B #HERIFEMUZE  Net revaluation gain transferred from reserves
upon disposal 122,929 121,883
FERNEENFRE Net gain arising in current year 3,865 7,846
126,794 129,729
9 Hb&EWA 9  Other operating income
2017 2016
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
At E R R B S AR B A Dividend income from available-for-sale equity securities
—tm - Listed 430 198
—3ELT ~ Unlisted 5,960 5,900
6,390 6,098
BEMERSWA Rental income from investment properties
BB - B%302,0007T less direct outgoings of HK$302,000
(2016%F : ##301,0007T) (2016: HK$301,000) 5,293 6,842
Hit Others 30,394 27,440
42,077 40,380

098] HIFIRIT (EIBR) BIR AR
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED




B TSR MY

10

Notes to the Financial Statements

ReEXH 10 Operating expenses
2017 2016
BET T BT
HK$’000 HKS$'000
(a) BIRA (a) Staff costs
e kEME IR Salaries and other staff costs 1,892,625 1,663,335
RIRERA(HIFE32) Retirement costs (note 32) 101,689 91,652
1,994,314 1,754,987
(b) HE (b) Depreciation
W RS EITE (MF5E22) Depreciation of property and equipment (note 22)
—REGCEHERBENEE ~ Assets held for use under operating leases 19,737 19,423
—HthEE — Other assets 180,929 130,797
200,666 150,220
() Hfh&EZH (c) Other operating expenses
L EYS SR Property and equipment expenses
(TEENE) (W) (excluding depreciation) (Note)
BE/E XSk — Rental of properties 277,326 271,407
—EAh - Others 260,057 230,444
2% BR AT B Auditor's remuneration 7,062 6,791
EEE Advertising 44,854 56,596
BB - EIRI M SUER Communication, printing and stationery 105,262 98,167
FERBEEER Legal and professional fees 81,242 49,186
) Others 202,916 198,391
978,719 910,982
e HAKE Total operating expenses 3,173,699 2,816,189

BaE

Hi e E S HeEREEEHEL NNREKER
MESW - DR ARBHEE ST HE¥S,724,0007T
(2016%F : 7B#5228,0007T) REMEEMESL H
(BIEWEMS) BH264,6390007T (20165 : B
#58,344,0007T )

Note:

Included in other operating expenses are minimum lease payments under
operating leases of HK$5,724,000 (2016: HKS$5,228,000) for the hire of
equipment, and HK$264,639,000 (2016: HK$258,344,000) for the hire of other

assets (including property rentals).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

11 EEME 11 Directors’ remuneration
RIEE S CRAED) (F622F) 238315 & The Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 383 of the
NE [ BEEENRER ] EZRMEENE Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) and the Companies
=T (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation is
set out as below:

2017 2016
BETT BETIT
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
E=-Yikn Directors’ fees 4,640 4166
4 ZELREWHRZE(MFEOZEG))  Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind (notes (i) to (ii) 20,366 19,106
BB TEAL Discretionary bonuses 15,678 17,742
RREFEIE R Retirement scheme contributions 1,318 1,281
42,002 42,295

[(E=: Note:

i) EVNEeREERMERRE -

(i IREBEREEEE ([F181])) 8B AL
TS —EHEM G ERE - BEENSH
BURR T E BRI FASEFEEMNREE
BFAE - REEEBOSKEMGR - K217
F B 8B 138,000,0007T (20164F © 78 #
18,000,0007T) ELEHRE B A - W B 15
ME B AEE -

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

(i) Benefits in kind mainly include housing allowance and insurance
premium.

(i) Under the long-term incentive scheme ("LTI"), eligible persons
are granted a number of Appreciation Rights. Payment for each
Appreciation Right is determined by the appreciation in the Group's
net asset value over a three-year performance period. In 2017,
HK$38,000,000 (2016: HK$18,000,000) was accrued in the staff costs,
including the amount payable to the Directors based on management’s
best estimation.
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13

(a)

BERRBRREMRBERERX

Notes to the Financial Statements

12 Impairment losses on loans and advances and other

accounts
2017 2016
BET T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
REBKERE Impairment losses charged
—BERRBR - Loans and advances 1,361,872 354,489
—HMARIR — Other accounts 29,193 198,470
1,391,065 552,959
BER LB L EMIRIE Impairment losses on loans and advances and
B K (BTEE19(0)) other accounts (note 19(b))
— BRI FF M - Individual assessment 1,302,847 603,169
— 4R A - Collective assessment 88,218 (50,210)
1,391,065 552,959
HA(MEE190)): of which (note 19(b)):
— IR - Additions 1,593,856 735,692
— Bl - Releases (178,400) (139,875)
— izl & #E - Recoveries (24,391) (42,858)
1,391,065 552,959

mEWERIRIATER

REWRBERATHAME

13 Income tax in the consolidated income statement

(@) Income tax in the consolidated income statement

2017 2016
BET T BT
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
REAFHIE - FBFEH Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax
FRNEE Provision for the year 408,864 437,512
iR 1E F 2 T TE 42 1Bl 4% Over-provision in respect of prior years (14,081) (2,407)
394,783 435,105
RHEAFLIE — BB IE Current tax - Overseas
FRNER Provision for the year 109,494 37,422
BEFERIBEBEIE Under-provision in respect of prior years 14,133 1,925
123,627 39,347
IEFEBIH Deferred tax
Fpk i ERE(EE ) EA (M5E28(b))  (Reversal)/Origination of temporary differences (note 28(b)) (39,636) 30,546
478,774 504,998
017 EEFEFNEMEIE S NEE HTE The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2017 is calculated at 16.5%
SRBUR MR T Z165% (20164F - 165%) = (2016: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year. Taxation
& o BIND TR A B AR I8 BIIR RR AR 8 for overseas branches and subsidiaries is charged at the appropriate

BRHEERITH R ERER -

current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant countries.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

13 HEWBRAMTPABH (&) 13 Income tax in the consolidated income statement
(continued)
(b) FIBEBXHEETEFIRERARETER RN (b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at
Ea) applicable tax rates
2017 2016
BET T BT
HK$’000 HKS'000
BiADRR Profit before tax 3,287,211 3,053,239
RAE BB R E A Notional tax on profit before tax,
FEREERAE calculated at the rates
TR A BB EBIE applicable to profits in the countries concerned 553,126 489,485
Al HIR S B FR a2 Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 13,177 25,108
JEFERFHIM AT B & Tax effect of non-taxable revenue (29,373) (8,519)
S EEIN R EAE S Tax effect of distribution payment of
EEMiETE AT1 Capital Securities (55,268) -
BEFEEHRIEEERHIE (@)  Under/(Over)-provision in prior years 52 (746)
HAh Others (2,940) (330)
ERHBIEX L Actual tax expense 478,774 504,998
14 Hia2mEKE 14 Other comprehensive income
AREMEEERESARIT D NHRIESE Tax effects relating to each component of other comprehensive
income
2017 2016
BARE HEIH BHARE  WAEE  HEIL BERTE
Before tax Tax  Net-of-tax Before tax Tax Net-of-tax
amount expense amount amount expense amount
BETT B%Trn  B¥%Tr  B%Tr  BETr BB
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEEINHERE Exchange differences on translation of
HBRENELER financial statements of overseas subsidiaries 119,152 - 119,152 (93,590) - (93,590)
BemaEsn Cash flow hedges
-HEREHHLA - net movement in cash flow hedging
BEREZE reserve fair value reserve (1,279) 211 (1,068) 1279 (211) 1,068
A HEES Available-for-sale securities
~AREEESFLA - net movement in available-for-sale
EEFETZ fair value reserve (60,660) 7,648 (53,012) (63,037) 12,780 (50257)
—REEE - impairment loss 26,851 - 26,851 - - -
Hth2EME Other comprehensive income 84,064 7,859 91,923 (155,348) 12,569 (142,779)

102 HIERTT (EIR) BRA R

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

15

Segment reporting

Segment information is prepared consistently with reportable
segments. Information is regularly reported to the chief operating
decision-maker, including management committee members, to
allocate resources to the segments and to assess their performance.
The Group has identified the following four main reportable
segments:

Wholesale and cross-border banking business includes wholesale
banking business in Hong Kong and overseas branches, and China
banking. Wholesale banking mainly comprises corporate lending and
syndicated loans, trade financing deposit account services and cash
management. Overseas branches include the management office unit
in Hong Kong and the branches operated overseas. China banking
mainly includes a subsidiary bank in China.

Personal and business banking mainly comprises deposit account
services, residential mortgages, other consumer lending, credit
card services, and Small and Medium Enterprises ("SMEs") banking
business, wealth management services and private banking.

Treasury and markets covers the provision of foreign exchange
services, money market activities, the management of investment
securities and central cash management.

Others mainly comprises unallocated revenue and expenses, head
office, and corporate expenses.

For the purpose of segment reporting, the allocation of operating
income reflects the benefits of funding resources allocated to the
business segments based on the internal funds transfer pricing
mechanism. Cost allocation is based on the direct costs incurred
by the respective business segments and the apportionment of
overheads on a reasonable basis to the business segments. Rental
charges at the market rate for the use of bank premises are reflected
as inter-segment income for the ‘Others’ segment and inter-segment
expenses for the respective business segments.
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15 DEER (&) 15 Segment reporting (continued)
(@) TWEHDH (@) Reportable segments
2017
NSNS BAR
BIEEK AR HER
Wholesale and Personal and RET5
cross-border business  Treasury and Hitr Fe
banking banking markets Others  Consolidated
BET T BETR BETR BETR BETR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FRBMA /(K1) Net interest income/(expense) 3,790,970 1,652,016 (174,871) 126,875 5,394,990
Hip g A Other operating income 875,205 718,256 672,541 85,158 2,351,160
HERHHEEABRZE  Netgain on disposal of
available-for-sale securities 1,21 - 31,612 93,971 126,794
BEWA Operating income 4,667,386 2,370,272 529,282 306,004 7,872,944
BT Operating expenses (554,674) (703,878) (112,989) (1,802,158) (3,173,699)
DU EE(ZH)/MA  Inter-segment (expenses)/income (466,661) (703,078) (195,291) 1,365,030 -
MR REEER 2 L8 Operating profit/(loss) before impairment
A/ (B%) 3,646,051 963,316 221,002 (131,124) 4,699,245
ERRBF R EMBERE  Impairment losses (charged)/written back on
(B%),/ o B loans and advances and other accounts (1,351,735) (10,962) (29,095) 727 (1,391,065)
AHNEBFRERK Impairment losses on available-for-sale
securities - - (31,204) - (31,204)
LERA/(BX) Operating profit/(loss) 2,294,316 952,354 160,703 (130,397) 3,276,976
HEMEREEFEX Net loss on disposal of property
and equipment (22) (798) - (3,235) (4,055)
BEMESHNR Revaluation gain on investment properties - - - 14,290 14,290
BAER/(1B%) Profit/(loss) before taxation 2,294,294 951,556 160,703 (119,342) 3,287,211
FT15H Income tax - - - (478,774) (478,774)
KEERA/(BX) Profit/(loss) for the year 2,294,294 951,556 160,703 (598,116) 2,808,437
HitoEEA : Other segment items:
e Depreciation 12,825 17,116 1,012 169,713 200,666
THEE Segment assets 169,309,209 46,734,253 154,693,458 (26,428,236) 344,308,684
PHEE Segment liabilities 169,622,631 136,958,804 22,065,874  (27,895,785) 300,751,524
FEEEENEREY Capital expenditure incurred
during the year 38,265 10,698 9,050 256,137 314,150

104] RIERIT (EIFR)BRAF
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

15 2BER (&) 15 Segment reporting (continued)
(@) T2F|HHI (&) (a) Reportable segments (continued)
2016
YNSIPNS BAR
BIERER BIERIT HER
Wholesale and ~ Personal and REME
cross-border business  Treasury and Hit e
banking banking markets Others  Consolidated
BT BT BEFT BETFT BEFT
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
BRBUWA () Net interest income/(expense) 3,080,961 1,592,121 (612,425) 68,169 4,128,826
Hf TE%%%”W\/ Zi) Other operating income/(expenses) 872,446 789,951 543317 (51,443) 2,154,271
HERHRHERAFKRE  Netgain on disposal of
available-for-sale securities 19,155 - 110,574 - 129,729
A Operating income 3,972,562 2,382,072 41,466 16,726 6,412,826
mET Operating expenses (519,982) (705,162) (91,794) (1,499,251) (2,816,189)
DEE 2L () /WA Inter-segment (expenses)/income (434,956) (678,908) (138,239) 1,252,103 -
MK REERER 2 Operating profit/(loss) before impairment
&AL/ (1B%) 3,017,624 998,002 (188,567) (230422) 3,596,637
EFNBFNEMEEERE  Impairment losses (charged)/written back on
(18%),/ BB loans and advances and other accounts (321,918) (33,395) (198470) 824 (552,959)
BEERN,/(BX) Operating profit/(loss) 2,695,706 964,607 (387,037) (229,598) 3,043,678
HENERSEF Net (loss)/gain on disposal of property and
84%) /s equipment 22) (62) - 99 15
REMESHKE Revaluation gain on investment properties - - - 9,546 9,546
BiangFl/(BX) Profit/(loss) before taxation 2,695,684 964,545 (387,037) (219,953) 3,053,239
FriEH Income tax - - - (504,998) (504,998)
KERRR,/(BX) Profit/(loss) for the year 2,695,684 964,545 (387,037) (724,951) 2,548 241
Hiv»#EE - Other segment items:
neE Depreciation 11,263 18,732 495 119,730 150,220
NHEE Segment assets 157,373,422 43,454,369 126,017,263 (20428,099) 306,416,955
=¥ Segment liabilities 151,281,845 120,341,297 24,246,000 (21406,203) 274,462,939
KEEEEMNERHY Capital expenditure incurred during the year 9,276 17,669 3,650 163317 193912
—E—tFRK
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15 2EER (&)

(b) BEBHEHR

BIEHEROTRBIZMNB AR TR ER

PR - R EREXEXIHEENE

BEARARTTREDTTALE FIAREE

Notes to the Financial Statements

15 Segment reporting (continued)

(b) Geographical information

The geographical information analysis is based on the location of the

principal operations of the subsidiaries, or in the case of the Bank itself,

of the location of the branches responsible for reporting the results or

booking the assets and liabilities.

2017
"ERA HEEE
BATER (%) RAE
(#BX) HWEE weE Operating Contingent
Profit/(Loss) Total Total income/ liabilities and
before taxation assets liabilities (expenses)  commitments
BETT BETT BETT BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
B Hong Kong 2,928,158 323,505,089 280,773,786 7,099,804 74,249,031
A Mainland China (22,897) 17,592,204 15,909,898 219,926 2,934,196
e United States 150,985 11,781,864 11,593,690 236,070 1,888,554
#hns Singapore 190,098 14,074,332 13,840,590 273,261 24,802,931
Hit Others 40,721 2,863,100 2,824,018 44,252 1,646,739
DEEIER Inter-segment items 146 (25,507,905)  (24,190,458) (369) -
3,287,211 344,308,684 300,751,524 7,872,944 105,521,451

2016
gl A/ SHEE
FianaFl/~ () A
(1B%) BEE Py Operating Contingent
Profit/(Loss) Total Total income/ liabilities and
before taxation assets liabilities (expenses) commitments
BETT BETT BETT BB BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B Hong Kong 2,766,150 286,012,805 254,868,685 5,728,199 85,365,815
T E At Mainland China (66,184) 12,704,912 11,103,444 212,615 2,106,058
ES United States 219,745 9,862,043 9,641,057 257,558 1,701,100
I Singapore 86,651 17,215,939 17,114,713 141,716 29,873,335
HAth Others 46,873 2,662,933 2,612,354 73,096 2,861,463
DEEIER Inter-segment items 4 (22,041,677) (20,877,314) (358) -
3,053,239 306,416,955 274,462,939 6,412,826 121,907,771

FREIRT (B BRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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16 RERERT  PRETREMEH
BENEE

Notes to the Financial Statements

16 Cash and balances with banks, central banks and other

financial institutions

2017 2016

BET T BT

HK$'000 HK$'000

R Cash in hand 294,775 343,773
ERRIRITHAETE Balances with central banks 4,626,082 2,169,326
EIRTTETR Balances with banks 18,674,413 13,024,014
EHMERIEENETF Balances with other financial institutions 8,062,584 12,003,320
31,657,854 27,540,433

HZE2017F12 831 HBIEER RIBITIF|IN
V& & 1) FN 5 & BR il B9 #1582 8 15 956,962,000
7t (20164F © #¥#51,081,770,0007T) ©

17 ERIT PRETREMGESHBEN
FRE B

Included in the balances with central banks that are subject

to exchange control or regulatory restrictions, amounting to
HK$956,962,000 at 31 December 2017 (2016: HK$1,081,770,000).

17 Placements with and advances to banks, central banks

and other financial institutions

2017 2016
BET T BET T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FIRITHFER Placements with banks 46,898,050 22,275,290
EIRITHI B Advances to banks 504,388 614,423
47,402,438 22,889,713

ZIHAR - Maturing:
— & AR — within T month 34,613,848 6,663,169
—1MERZE1FERN — between 1 month and 1 year 12,788,590 16,226,544
—141& — after 1 year - _
47,402,438 22,889,713

HE2017F 20165128318 » NEFE LR
TREMS BN IWERELR
TMERL L Z DRI EE R R E 2 -

There were no impaired advances to banks and other financial

institutions at 31 December 2017 and 2016, nor were there any

individually assessed impairment allowances made for them on these

two dates.

—E—tFRH
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18 XEAREE

Notes to the Financial Statements

18 Trading assets

2017 2016
BET T BET T
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFRE Certificate of deposits 213,103 -
BEEES Debt securities 815,137 1,321,751
REES Investment funds 804 1,078
R HR®RES Trading securities 1,029,044 1,322,829
PTETAEMIERAARBEHFE38b0))  Positive fair values of derivatives (note 38(b)) 4,770,495 4,258,891
5,799,539 5,581,720
L EEE B THENT ! Issued by:
T T 4 Sovereigns 572 500
RITREM S BIE Banks and other financial institutions 829,164 1,153,365
% Corporate entities 199,308 168,964
1,029,044 1,322,829
RETMH BT Analysed by place of listing:
EmGE) Listed (Note) 1,020,468 1,156,255
JE M (FE) Unlisted (Note) 8,576 166,574
1,029,044 1,322,829
L= Note:

AEERFRAEHRBREHESFN LTRRD
B YHETHERESEN D BUTERFEER

25|—5 e

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

conform with the current year's presentation.

The Group has revisited the classification of listing status of debt securities
during the year and certain comparative figures have been reclassified to
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Notes to the Financial Statements

19 BEFEFRRBIAKRHEMERE 19
(a) EFERRBIRKEMERERHEER (a)

Loans and advances to customers and other accounts

Loans and advances to customers and other accounts less

impairment allowances

2017 2016
BET T BET T
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEER LB ERE Gross loans and advances to customers 196,286,922 183,764,241
B ZEME (FIEE19(b)) Impairment allowances (note 19(b))
— &R 5 H ~ Individually assessed (1,127,014) (627,498)
—4& A — Collectively assessed (395,843) (322,864)
194,764,065 182,813,879
FEEH R B K E A BRTE Accrued interest and other accounts 4,325,352 8,620,610
TEZEMRE (FFEE19(b)) Impairment allowances (note 19(b))
— BB EFA (B EE) — Individually assessed (Note) (102,478) (147,951)
4,222,874 8,472,659
198,986,939 191,286,538
BEERLRBAREDEE Included in loans and advances to customers are:
E5EE Trade bills 927,527 2,191,085
BB ZEE (MI5E19(b)) Impairment allowances (note 19(b))
— 426 - Collectively assessed (469) (1,762)
927,058 2,189,323

fii -

P27 FHEEETEEREIHRFERHEE
B UM IR BB 15101,710,0007T B IR (B EE B 1
BIAE AR O E R EEET (20165 @ B

147,182,0007T,) ©

Note:

In 2017, an impairment provision of HK$101,710,000 (2016: HK$147,182,000)
was included in the individual impairment provisions of the other accounts,
this was provided for the failure in settlement of expired or unwinding
transactions of certain derivative products.

=B LFH
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19 EFERKBRK

HAbfRE (&

(b) FFERRBREHMGRBRMEEFNEE

Notes to the Financial Statements

19 Loans and advances to customers and other accounts
(continued)

(b)

Movement in impairment allowances on loans and advances to

customers and other accounts

2017 2016
@RIt GETME [ERE AT
Individually ~ Collectively #%  Individually  Collectively k]
assessed assessed Total assessed assessed Total
BETT BMTr  B¥%Tx AT B¥Tr  A%Tx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
M1A18 At 1 January 775,449 322,864 1,098,313 496,575 399,376 895,951
FEWRRIIZFMERSL  Impairment losses charged to
(FtzE12) the income statement (note 12) 1,501,572 92,284 1,593,856 735,692 - 735,692
EWRROENREESL  Impairment losses released to
(FFzE12) the income statement (note 12) (198,725) (4,066)  (202,791)  (132,523) (50210)  (182,733)
ekt Amounts written off (832,257) (19,305)  (851,562) (334,175) (30,876) (365,051)
WEIAEFED R EN Recoveries of loans and advances
BERRBR written off in previous years 20,325 4,066 24,391 38,284 4,574 42,858
ERREBRNEEE Unwinding of discount on loan
(FizT4) impairment losses (note 4) (36,872) - (36,872) (28,404) - (28,404)
W12A31H At 31 December 1,229,492 395,843 1,625,335 775,449 322,864 1,098,313
Mk B (MEE190) Deducted from (note 19(a)):
ERERRET Loans and advances to customers 1,127,014 395374 1,522,388 627,498 321,102 948,600
HAi BRI Other accounts 102,478 - 102,478 147,951 - 147,951
ECES: Trade bills - 469 469 - 1,762 1,762
1,229,492 395,843 1,625,335 775,449 322,864 1,098,313

FREIRT (B BRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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19 BEFEXRREBERRHEMERE (& 19 Loans and advances to customers and other accounts
(continued)

(0 BROTEIHNEFERREX () Loansand advances to customers analysed by industry sectors
AR BETEETHN ST EREEESH The following economic sector analysis is based on categories and
ERR ([€ER])) FIEANBERERE definitions used by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority ("HKMA").

:j:ll o
2017 2016
EFEARR BEEF EFERR HERP
BREE  ERRER BRBE  BRRBN

Gross loans Impaired loans Gross loans  Impaired loans
and advances and advances andadvances and advances
to customers  to customers to customers to customers

BETT BT T BT BT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
TEem Industrial, commercial and financial
—MERRE - Property development 17,177,318 - 13,578,793 -
—WERE - Property investment 26,312,638 23,111 25,060,936 26,095
— TR - Financial concerns 16,250,264 - 9,171,320 -
— R4 - Stockbrokers 6,564,251 - 3,131,047 -
—HBELRTEE - Wholesale and retail trade 14,236,238 59,677 17,002,524 110,678
— B - Manufacturing 17,020,091 771,306 10,063,497 3,769
— B N EERE ~ Transport and transport equipment 2,356,396 - 2,946,243 -
—IRELEE - Recreational activities 813,764 - 1,205,638 -
—BEHE — Information technology 221,297 - 3,451,364 -
— HAt - Others 10,155,897 3,317 9,831,651 249,577
& A Individuals
-BEIREBEER — Loans for the purchase of flats under
2l TRAAEER the Home Ownership Scheme,
LEEEHEIR Private Sector Participation
[HEEEERE] Scheme and Tenants Purchase
HEFER Scheme 24,255 - 11,464 -
—BEHMEEWEHN - Loans for the purchase of
EEA other residential properties 14,439,796 20,950 13,407,510 23,517
—(ERRER - Credit card advances 503,789 812 445,821 550
— HAh, - Others 8,950,693 7,623 8,304,307 21,245
EEBFEANER M Gross loans and advances for
B AERE use in Hong Kong 135,026,687 886,796 117,612,115 435,431
EH5RE Trade finance 6,564,657 222,000 10,644,560 683,469
BB AIME AR Gross loans and advances for
BEREBEss use outside Hong Kong 54,695,578 1,355,216 55,507,566 647,766
BEFERRBNARE Gross loans and advances to customers 196,286,922 2,464,012 183,764,241 1,766,666
—Z—tFHK M
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Notes to the Financial Statements

19 BEFERKRBFRREMERE (& 19 Loans and advances to customers and other accounts

(d) BEFEFERRBR

(continued)

(d) Impaired loans and advances to customers

2017 2016
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
BEZEFER RSB Gross impaired loans and advances to customers 2,464,012 1,766,666
TEZEE— BRI FT S Impairment allowances - Individually assessed (1,127,014) (627,498)
1,336,998 1,139,168

MEER MR BEFEERS Gross impaired loans and advances as a %

BERRBEENE DR of total loans and advances to customers 1.26% 0.96%
BEERLBHREEERBENEARED Impaired loans and advances are individually assessed loans which
BB - UEERRETENERK - exhibit objective evidence of impairment on an individual basis.
LR ERREEBE T EAEE G E L Individually assessed impairment allowances were made after taking
ERRBRAFERAmO I ZREERE into account the realisable value of collateral in respect of such loans
#5812,652,0007T (20164 : & ¥&578,847,000 and advances of HK$812,652,000 (2016: HK$578,847,000) of the Group.

JT) °

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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(e)

EFERRBRREMERE (£)

MEHERSPARENNREFE
EFERNBRBREHNEHENAGHRE
HERBN S BNRENEREEPNA
BRRENREFE - BEAUNRIEE
Hi— AR AR EA20F S bA b - HIg Al IR HR R E
BEBAGLBEEEE - WREBRERDHN
A RN REHEE M RERE L ERED
T~

Notes to the Financial Statements

(e)

Loans and advances to customers and other accounts
(continued)

Net investment in finance leases and hire purchase contracts
Loans and advances to customers include net investment in motor
vehicles, and equipment leased to customers under finance leases
and hire purchase contracts which have the characteristics of finance
leases. These contracts usually run for an initial period of 20 years or
above, with an option of acquiring the leased asset at nominal value.
The total minimum lease payments receivable under finance leases
and hire purchase contracts and their present values at the year end
are as follows:

2017 2016
BEAE HEAE
FTREE BREAE NFRE HEHEE
Present value R4 %E  Present value ek
of the Total of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
BET T BET T BT T BT
HK’'000 HK’'000 HK'000 HK'000
1R Within 1 year 18,378 23,093 43,152 50,112
1FE5F After 1 year but within 5 years 55,998 71,552 78,201 97,568
5E1E After 5 years 148,240 168,125 210,608 237,374
222,616 262,770 331,961 385,054
BB Impairment allowances:
— (& Rl FE A — Individually assessed (1,186) (2,592)
—kRE R - Collectively assessed (108) (423)
REETEE My Hif 3k Net investment in finance leases
BRI E FRE and hire purchase contracts 221,322 328,946
—E—tFRK
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20 AEHEERSH

Notes to the Financial Statements

20 Available-for-sale securities

2017 2016
BETT BEETIT
HK$’000 HK$'000
FENERE Certificates of deposit held 10,622,679 15,922,277
BEBES Debt securities 36,950,662 29,074,574
BEH(BEIIMNEESRE) Treasury bills (including Exchange Fund Bills) 11,681,635 13,111,688
EmE s Equity securities 91,701 95,732
59,346,677 58,204,271
DEEEMNRTHENT Issued by:

ERIT 148 Sovereigns 12,796,288 14,664,781
SRIT R H M & miigiE Banks and other financial institutions 36,553,639 33,673,029
% Corporate entities 8,614,579 7,812,716
NEWE Public entities 1,382,171 2,053,745
59,346,677 58,204,271

RETH B AT Analysed by place of listing:
EmGE) Listed (Note) 32,193,830 24,069,686
LM (FE) Unlisted (Note) 27,152,847 34,134,585
59,346,677 58,204,271
ERREEBESFNAREER Fair value of individually impaired debt securities 125,042 27,631

G

ARERFNEHBREBEHO LTRRD
B BTURESENHBUAFA

—F

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

REFEHZT

Note:

conform with the current year's presentation.

The Group has revisited the classification of listing status of debt securities
during the year and certain comparative figures have been reclassified to
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2017128318 » TXHIHEAREBAE
B EENBBEEERAFENTENERR
15 - BRIERAFM - RRIFTFRMNERIH
BT -

Notes to the Financial Statements

21 Subsidiaries

The following list contains the particulars of the principal subsidiaries
at 31 December 2017 which materially affect the results, assets or
liabilities of the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless
otherwise stated.

SR BEBE ERERESR BERTRABERE FEROBEDZ
NEBE Place of incorporation/ Kind of legal FTEEK Particulars of issued  Proportion of shares
Name of company operation entity Principal activities share capital held by the Bank
ERARERLR B BREARA YERA BT 100%
Carford International Limited Hong Kong Limited Liability ~ Property holding HK$2
Company
PERTER(RE) ERAF hEARAMBE(HE])  AREEAR  HT ARH1,000000,0007C  100%
(T ERTER(RE)))
CITIC Bank International (China) People’s Republic of China Limited Liability ~ Banking RMB1,000,000,000
Limited (“CBI (China)") ("mainland China") Company
PERRRBER A BA BREARA  RiELR 785,000,007 100%
CITIC Insurance Brokers Limited Hong Kong Limited Liability  Insurance broker HK$5,000,000
Company
CKWB-SN Limited FEs,/ B8 BEREALDR BOEBRBENRE F2in 100%
Cayman Islands/Hong Kong ~ Limited Liability  Issue of structured notes US$1
Company and investments
CKWH-UT2 Limited VS BREARR BAKERE ET 100%
Cayman Islands/Hong Kong  Limited Liability Issue of US$1
Company subordinated notes
BRAEAMBARRA B BREMEAR HEREE 75 #200,000,0007C 100%
HKCB Finance Limited Hong Kong Limited Liability ~ Consumer financing HK$200,000,000
Company
ERBEART(RBA)BERAR  &E BREERR  HKEBARE AHS5,0007T 100%
The Hongkong Chinese Bank Hong Kong Limited Liability ~ Nominee services HK$5,000
(Nominees) Limited Company
RERTER)BRRT BE BEREARA RS 7 #3,000,0007C 100%
The Ka Wah Bank (Trustee) Limited ~ Hong Kong Limited Liability ~ Trustee services HK$3,000,000
Company
BREEERAA BE BREERR RIBRE BT 100%
Viewcon Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong Limited Liability ~ Mortgage financing HK$2
Company
—E-tFR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

22 YIERRE 22 Property and equipment
& BE
HERZE
REWE Hitysk Furniture, ER®RE
Investment Other fixtures and Computer HE
properties premises equipment equipment Total
BT BETFT BETFT BT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BASEE : Cost or valuation:
201751 A1H At 1 January 2017 138,490 689,009 961,215 527,868 2,316,582
20 Additions - - 69,166 244,984 314,150
ER R Reclassification (20,000) 20,000 - - -
k= Disposals - - (29,813) (5,520) (35,333)
EHE% Surplus on revaluation 14,290 - - - 14,290
(I Exchange adjustments - - 8,976 - 8,976
R2017%12831H At 31 December 2017 132,780 709,009 1,009,544 767,332 2,618,665
#2016%1 418 At 1 January 2016 185,944 632,009 910,161 403,345 2,131,459
bl Additions - - 69,379 124,533 193912
EFDE Reclassification (57,000) 57,000 - - -
HeE Disposals - - (13,129) (10) (13,139
EHARK Surplus on revaluation 9,546 - - - 9,546
[ 5 A Exchange adjustments - - (5,196) - (5,196)
2016F12A318 At 31 December 2016 138,490 689,009 961,215 527,868 2,316,582
ZIHE - Accumulated depreciation:
P2017F1 A 1H At 1 January 2017 - 319,530 758,550 342,626 1,420,706
REEHETEI0D) Charge for the year (note 10(b)) - 16,379 83,384 100,903 200,666
6 i 43 Written back on disposals - - (28,891) (2,330) (31,221)
(I Exchange adjustments - - 8,165 - 8,165
R2017%12831H At 31 December 2017 - 335,909 821,208 441,199 1,598,316
201651718 At 1 January 2016 - 305,709 690,762 291,771 1,288,242
AEZHE(HE0(b) Charge for the year (note 10(b)) - 13,821 85,534 50,865 150,220
(& H & i [o] 8¢ Written back on disposals - - (13,043) (10) (13,053)
[ 5 A Exchange adjustments - - (4,703) - (4,703)
201612 A318 At 31 December 2016 - 319,530 758,550 342,626 1,420,706
REEE Net book value:
20175128318 At 31 December 2017 132,780 373,100 188,336 326,133 1,020,349
1201612 H4318 At 31 December 2016 138,490 369,479 202,665 185,242 895,876

116] PERIT (EE) BRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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22 MERRE (B)

(a) REWEAABEFE

(i)

TREFREER  ARERELEMN
HEEURABEFENREDE R
B(RAMBHREER) F1387 1A
REBEFEIDBEA=ALRAEBERE
e RABEFENBRYBRRE
AR A ERA B @ A BRI SR
MEBSMEHORE

FR-2ER—AERHEREE
BTBIGNTIHEE GRiE
BE) o

FR-REAEERNEABIE MG
EEN CREFTEFER) - &
TRAEEMIFATEENH
5o BRAMSEUIRRY &
F AR B RBIE -

B —DABEATEMIFATEE

Notes to the Financial Statements

22 Property and equipment (continued)

Fair value measurement of investment properties

(i

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
investment properties measured at the end of the reporting
period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-level
fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, ‘Fair value
measurement’. The level into which a fair value measurement
classified is determined with reference to the observability and
significance of the input used in the valuation technique as
follows:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market price in active markets for
identical assets at the measurement date.

Level 2 - Valuation techniques based on observable inputs,
which fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs
for which market data are not available.

Level 3 - Fair value measured using significant unobservable

BB RETE © inputs.
2017 2016
BET T BT T
3 HK$'000 HK$'000
REMEAABENETEM Recurring fair value measurement using
FABENE significant unobservable input
REYHE Investment properties
—&B ~ Held in Hong Kong 90,001 99,601
— BB MR - Held outside Hong Kong 42,779 38,889
132,780 138,490
—E—tFR
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22 MERSZE (E)

(a) REMEAIAEBENE (B)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

DIEEER (E)

HE20177F FM20165F12 8318 » £ F1
WMANE 2R 2 W EERE KR BURES
WmEEAREL - NEBBUREEN R
LEHRERAAEBEERAEERNE
i °

2017128318 - 2B B8 =60
TERAEENREMESHRE -
MEGMBERUNAHAMEBEEAREER
e (BB BRELER) F1357 A
AREBEEFEIHSAREENER A
B AR B M E B sk A7 14,290,000
70 (2016%F : & 878 #9,546,00070) W
B REFAREBERRERT -

AF EEEREIERE LS, B 2

WML BEH BBREREEN
BB

Notes to the Financial Statements

22 Property and equipment (continued)

(a)
(i)

(i)

Fair value measurement of investment properties (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfer into
or out of Level 3. The Group's policy is to recognise transfers
between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the
reporting period in which they occur.

All investment properties of the Group were revalued and
assessed by the management of the Group at 31 December
2017 with reference to the property valuation report conducted
by an independent firm of surveyors. The basis of the property
valuation was market value, which is consistent with the
definition of fair value under HKFRS 13, ‘Fair value measurement’.
The revaluation surplus of HK$14,290,000 (2016: HK$9,546,000)
was recognised by the Group and has been credited to the
income statement.

Reconciliation of fair value measurements in Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy

The movements during the year in the balance of these Level 3
fair value measurements are as follows:

2017 2016
BET T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
R1A1A At 1 January 138,490 185,944
EMOBREEMME Reclassification to other property and
By equipment (20,000) (57,000)
DR BERE Fair value adjustment 14,290 9,546
®12A31H At 31 December 132,780 138,490
FEIBRHIAT BB EEN (i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
HEE FERIER R Y BN &[E
Valuation technique Unobservable input Range
BEME TRt B MEERNEE (R -15%E15%

Investment properties

EEBEXBEBAIMRAIREWEL
NABEIRAMGLEEAEE - A
SEZOEBMENE TS REEE
RAEE  LETHNHEEER
MABRAEEYEE E0R BRI
& REMBEHENEREERRE
FHREMBR L AIHE NMIEM - &

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Market comparison approach

Premium (discount) on quality of properties -15% to 15%
The fair value of investment properties located in or outside
Hong Kong is determined by using the market comparison
approach by reference to the recent sales price of comparable
properties on a price per-square-foot basis, adjusted for a
premium or a discount specific to the quality of the Group's or
the Bank's properties compared to the recent sales. The carrying
amount of the investment properties would be increased by
the same percentage increase in the price per-square-foot and
vice versa.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

22 Property and equipment (continued)

REVMERHLMBYENREFEINOT : (b) The analysis of net book value of investment properties and
other premises is as follows:
2017 2016
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
HE Leasehold
B Held in Hong Kong
—REBEE(BBS0FRER) — Long-term leases (over 50 years unexpired) 60,645 79,116
—FHBEEC0FE50F REm) — Medium-term leases (10 to 50 years unexpired) 402,456 389,964
BB @ Held outside Hong Kong
—FHFEE10FE50F R Em) — Medium-term leases (10 to 50 years unexpired) 42,779 38,889
505,880 507,969

KEMEELENH S W ABLE ABE
5,595,0007T (20164 : 7##57,143,0007T) °

20178 R2016FF 8 IR EMEL EME
¥

o

piiii

AEEETHOYESRBAFEERTE
i e INRBUMEZURNFEETINEA
B AREEMN20178F12 831 B EMYER
T 5 B & A 78 154,851,0007T (20164 : B
4,916,0007T) ©

BREERERENIERRE ()
AEBERBEEHEN T AHLREYE -
BERMENSNEER —MRm2E3F - A&

A EFEERER LB RN -

AEBR A ERRE MO ENEE
HERWNRRFIEHES AN

The gross rental income arising from investment properties is
HK$5,595,000 (2016: HK$7,143,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, no loss on
disposal of investment properties.

Some of the other premises of the Group were revalued in previous
years. The net book value of such other premises of the Group at 31
December 2017 would have been HK$4,851,000 (2016: HK$4,916,000)
had they been carried at cost less accumulated depreciation.

Property and equipment leased out under operating leases

The Group leases out investment properties under operating leases.
The leases typically run for an initial period of two to three years, with
an option to renew the leases after that date, at which time all terms
are renegotiated.

The Group’s total future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases for investment and subletting
properties are receivable as follows:

2017 2016
BT T BT

HK$’000 HK$'000

1FR Within 1 year 5,664 5,532
1FEE5F After 1 year but within 5 years 2,046 7,556
7,710 13,088

—E—tFRH
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Notes to the Financial Statements

23 Deposits and balances of banks and other financial

institutions
2017 2016
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
IRITNER RS Deposits and balances from banks 5,187,319 5,256,660
24 BEFER 24 Deposits from customers
2017 2016
BETT BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
TEHR R AR RER P F K Demand deposits and current deposits 37,989,050 22,124,842
REGTR Savings deposits 60,305,655 46,115,748
TEHA - BIHA I 50 HRam AN 13 50 Time, call and notice deposits 173,177,160 167,334,110
271,471,865 235,574,700
25 RS HAEREE 25 Trading liabilities
2017 2016
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
PTETEME QAL EEMTEE38((D)) Negative fair value of derivatives (note 38(b)) 4,824,483 3,996,444
26 CEITEFERE 26 Certificates of deposit issued
2017 2016
BETT ¥ T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
ERGA®E Non-trading 3,421,769 10,593,445
27 OR{TEERES 27 Debt securities issued
2017 2016
BT BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
BESHR AR At amortised cost 3,584,064 _

HE217F 128318 IEFE » AITIRBESEAK
AETEEBITERES - R2017F12A31H
BR ] 48 (8 /& 78 153,584,064,000 © PTEETTHYE

FIRF RN EA44%5T B+ BHIR B2020%F ©
will mature in 2020.

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Bank issued debt
securities which are measured at amortised cost with a total carrying
amount of HKS$3,584,064,000 as at 31 December 2017. The debt
securities issued bear a coupon interest rate at 4.4% per annum and
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28 BIBMR KT PTEH 28 Income tax in the statement of financial position
(@) BMBMRRRATHERBARIES : (@) Current taxation in the statement of financial position
represents:
2017 2016
BB R T
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEREH Hong Kong Profits Tax 461,736 176,022
YN IE Overseas Taxation 6,792 19,196
468,528 195,218
Hh Of which:
A] Uy Bl 7 18 Tax recoverable (29,047) (187)
NERFRTE Current taxation 497,575 195,405
468,528 195,218
(b) BERPELHEEERERE (b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised
ERBRNREROELERE (BE) The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised in the
BENESRAFEANESNT statement of financial position and the movements during the year

are as follows:

FERHE
BBAEH . . AHRHERS
g RARER BftE
Depreciation Bﬁﬁéﬁ MEE  Revaluation
allowancesin  Impairment #Z  adjustments
excess of allowances  Revaluation  for available-
related forloans  adjustments for-sale Hith kel
depreciation and advances for properties securities Others Total
BEFT BETT BB BETT BB BEFT
EEFERE . Deferred tax arising from: HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
R2017F181H At 1 January 2017 45,017 (51,568) 1,525 (12,815) 1,144 (16,697)
AR RNME, Charged/(credited) to income
(128 (FfE13(a)) statement (note 13(a)) 20,819 (47,878) 114 - (12,691) (39,636)
ER D Credited to reserves - - - (7,648) (211) (7,859)
[& 5 Rk H = Exchange and other adjustments (50) 52 - - (20) (18)
M2017%128318 At 31 December 2017 65,786 (99,394) 1,639 (20,463) (11,778) (64,210)
R2016F1A1H At 1 January 2016 34,501 (61915) 1614 (35) (8,760) (34,595)
BAWGERNE Charged/(credited) to income
(E18) (BT 130) statement (note 13(a)) 10,455 10,593 (89) - 9,587 30,546
EERmE/ (m%) Charged/(credited) to reserves - - - (12,780) 211 (12,569)
P& 5 & H bz Exchange and other adjustments 61 (246) - - 106 (79)
R2016F128318 At 31 December 2016 45017 (51,568) 1,525 (12,815) 1,144 (16,697)
2017 2016
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER AR R R FER A Net deferred tax assets recognised on
IR IEE A the statement of financial position (65,841) (18,217)
T T AR R T v Y Net deferred tax liabilities recognised on
FERERRIBEE the statement of financial position 1,631 1,520
(64,210) (16,697)
—E—tEH 2
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(c)

29

Notes to the Financial Statements

BMEMRR KRR AEHR (&) 28 Income tax in the statement of financial position
(continued)
RERWELEBBREE (c) Deferred tax assets not recognised
HRARRAIEELBERAR B AT BHEAD The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of
FERB AT AREEBER  ~EELK cumulative tax losses of HK$686,000 (2016: HK$641,000), as it is not
WREAFMBBENELCHBEERBE probable that future taxable profits against which the losses can be
686,0007T (20165F : & #641,0007T) ° 1R & utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The
WEMBIRS - EEHIBEIELBEREA - tax losses do not expire under current tax legislation.
BHEER 29 Loan capital
2017 2016
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FERE6875% A Subordinated notes with
500,000,000 7T B 1% (& 55~ US$500 million of 6.875% * 4,009,985 4,063,457
FEERE3875% ' EE Subordinated notes with
300,000,0003 LB 1% fE R &> US$300 million of 3.875% ** - 2,318,117
FBEE6.000% ' HE Subordinated notes with
300,000,000 7T B 1% 18 ZE 45+ US$300 million of 6.000% *** 2,330,207 2,324,263
6,340,192 8,705,837

* 2010F6 248 » RITIRIEF 200712 A 4
t£12,000,000,000% 7T &) A i R AF &) ([H
HAZ At | RA20105F6 A E B EE
BK - 17 H {E500,000,0003 Tt (FE B &
3,888,900,0007T) + 1T F B K £6.875%H]
BEZEE SLEREBEEMMNEIZIER
Na) ET o WS 20205F6 A24B BIHA o

**  D0129F9R27H » RITRIE A £/ E
= R R0FA B HNEER
BK - % 17 H {E300,000,0003 Tt (FE B &
2,326,100,00070) HUTE B - BITEEF
B EB3875%  FHFIREE2017F928
B EEZEER2017F12831HE 28
fE [ -

x o 201311 A7E - RITRIE A £/ E
ERTERR0B3FI0ARENBER
Bk - 3% 77 E {E300,000,0003 7T (FE B
2,325,800,0007T) MBERIE - ZEERE
HE(BERBE=) MZREREFRK - 18
EZEF M EEF I EER6.000% - FHF
KEZE2019F5878 1L HEBREITE
EOE - RROZEARFEEE RSFH]
ERHERFSFZELRMATISNFF REFH
Bi - GEZBREEBRIHIREEMBR
Nal b WigR2024F5 A7BEIE -

FREIRT (B BRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

*%

Under a USS$2 billion Medium Term Note Programme (“the Programme”)
issued in December 2007 and the new Offering Circular issued in June
2010, the Bank issued subordinated notes on 24 June 2010 with a face
value of US$500 million (equivalent to HK$3,888.9 million). The notes
bear an interest rate of 6.875% per annum, payable semi-annually. The
notes are listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited
and mature on 24 June 2020.

Under the Programme and the new Offering Circular issued in August
2012, the Bank issued subordinated notes on 27 September 2012
with a face value of US$300 million (equivalent to HK$2,326.1 million).
The notes bear interest at a fixed rate of 3.875% per annum, payable
semi-annually until 28 September 2017. The notes were fully redeemed
by the Bank during the year ended 31 December 2017.

Under the Programme and the new Offering Circular issued in October
2013, the Bank issued subordinated notes on 7 November 2013 with
a face value of US$300 million (equivalent to HK$2,325.8 million) and
which qualified as Basel lll-compliant Tier-2 capital. The notes bear
interest at a fixed rate of 6.000% per annum, payable semi-annually until
7 May 2019, and thereafter fixed at the interest rate of the prevailing
five-year US Treasury bonds yield plus 4.718% per annum if the notes
are not redeemed on the call date. The notes are listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange and mature on 7 May 2024.
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30 BEXK#E 30 Capital and reserves
(@ B’#&E (@) Share capital
() BEETREEZER () Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid-
2017 2016
[N [N
RAEE Share capital PEARERE  Share capital
Number BET T Number BT
of shares HK$'000 of shares HKS$'000
M1A1H At 1 January 9,083,341,176 9,366,271 7,283,341,176 7,566,271
FREBEITHRG Shares issued during the year
(MtEE@)()) (Note (a)(ii)) 3,027,780,392 9,053,063  1,800,000,000 1,800,000
12,111,121,568 18,419,334  9,083,341,176 9,366,271
B BT EER Less: Transaction costs arising
)N on shares issued - (15,321) - -
M12831H At 31 December 12,111,121,568 18,404,013 9,083,341,176 9,366,271
(i) FAZITHAR D (i) Shares issued during the year
AR 17 BA20174128158 ¢+ KA A% In 2017, the Bank issued a total of 3,027,780,392 ordinary shares
V& W&o 00 T [A) L HET IR B R 1T at HK$2.99 each to five new shareholders on 15 December 2017.
3,027,780,3920% T @AY - AN1TH2016%F In 2016, the Bank issued a total of 1,800,000,000 ordinary shares
1A268 » AT AR A 00T mIERE A at HK$1.00 each to its holding company, CITIC International
AR EER e RIZTE AR AR 3T Financial Holdings Limited on 26 January 2016.
1,800,000,000% & A% ©
(b) BE (b) Dividend

(c)

ATERCEEAPEREBSMIERERER
AREE Z2017F 12831 B ILFE 2 REAK
BB 808,437,143.797T (20164 © &) o

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HK$2,808,437,143.79 for the year ended 31 December 2017 to CITIC
International Financial Holdings Limited (2016: Nil).

Nature and purpose of components of reserves

The capital reserve is not available for distribution to

The general reserve was set up from the transfer of retained
earnings, and is available for distribution to shareholders.

HENEERBEN (c)
() BAXGFE () Capital reserve
BEAREETI AR TR -
shareholders.
(i)  —AREEE (i) General reserve
—RREEERRE EFEH 5K
583 WHA DR TR o
(i) FEH ERRREE (iii)

EXEZRFEREEEMARREBIINE
BOMBERAMEEWEL Z8 - I
RIBM 20 ISR ERERRIE

Exchange differences reserve

The exchange differences reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial
statement of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in note 2(p).

—E—tFRH
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30 BAXRKf#E (&)

() fREMHEREHN (&) ()
(v) YIREFHRE

PR B IR AN 20 BT BLRO B
SHECRAE - 3 AR 5 TIRE
R IR S (2 A (Fo622
) BT - BEHBETERE
BRI -

() BRREEEE
R e R B YRR RERIN R S
MR R T AN RH AA E
EFEDHEULS -

KEE
REBHRBEERGEEERANH
HEERBFN R FAABEED
I AR 55 B FE2(e) () P 80 Y & 5 UK B
i

(vi)

SEEBBNTE

RIEFEMBEBEGIRE - PEIRITE
B (hE) SERESFORILRENH
BRI 0%IE R TEED IR T IR ADEE &
BATE BERETBEBRAEERETE

IRZR 2 50089 7K

(vii)

JETE —ARGEE

RIBFERITER - RERTEEK
(PE) BRULATE — KRR - BBt
EFEENNBEOR  BEREREN—
i 2 5 LA 588 7 R 1252 TE OB FE TR R AL
2 RENZ BRENEREELSE
HHMWARIEM % HE < EE—K
AR AR B R R & o

(viii)

R EE o T
BREEEBGRITEKRD) BAEE
EENHE  AMIEEREREPSHE
HBBECHAMBEBLIANEE X
AREEEANERRERNREERL
TR KHACERE RENE
HEEEERBREMNABE - 1K2017
F12A318 - REBMNFBEEELE
BAUYB]RETARITRENESER
7 12814,520,0007T (2016%F = & #&
2,805,429,0007T) ° 1B 7K B BT A 1T 44
BEBATER o

(ix)

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

30 Capital and reserves (continued)

Nature and purpose of components of reserves (continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(vii)

(ix)

Property revaluation reserve

The property revaluation reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting polices set out in note 2(i) and is not
available for distribution to shareholders because it does not
constitute realised profits within the meaning of Part 6 of the
new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).

Cash flow hedging reserve

The cash flow hedging reserve comprises the effective portion
of the cumulative net change in the fair value of cash flow
hedging instruments related to hedged transactions.

Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve comprises the cumulative
net change in the fair value of available-for-sale securities
held at the end of the reporting period and is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies in note 2(e)(ii).

Statutory reserve

Under the relevant legislation of mainland China, CBI (China)
is required to transfer 10% of its profit after taxation to a
non-distributable statutory reserve until such reserve has
reached 50% of its registered share capital.

Regulatory general reserve

Pursuant to the banking regulations of mainland China, CBI
(China) is required to set up a regulatory general reserve through
a direct transfer from the current year's profit appropriation, as
determined based on the 1% of the total risk assets at the end
of the reporting period to cover its unidentified potential loss
exposures. The regulatory general reserve forms part of the
equity of the Group.

Retained profits

A regulatory reserve is maintained to satisfy the provisions of
the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance for prudential supervision
purposes by earmarking amounts in respect of impairment
losses recognised which the Bank will or may incur on loans
and advances. Movements in the reserve are earmarked directly
through retained profits and in consultation with the HKMA. At
31 December 2017, HK$2,814,520,000 (2016: HK$2,805,429,000)
was included in the retained profits in this respect, which
was distributable to equity holders of the Bank subject to
consultation with the HKMA.
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(d)

31
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30 Capital and reserves (continued)

R AT 2R (d) Distributability of reserve
2017512318 » REBEFHOEE (AR At 31 December 2017, the aggregate amount of reserves available for
By (FenE) WREIERFTE - Al DR distribution to equity shareholders of the Bank, as calculated under
F AT AR B A (R 4R BE 58 1515,014,858,000 the provision of Part 6 of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
70 (20165 7 ®12,534,568,0007C) ° A 93 (Cap. 622), was HK$15,014,858,000 (2016: HK$12,534,568,000).
Bic 6 1 48 BB B2 95 BE B 1 1 75 16 2,814,520,000 Included in the aggregate distributable reserve was an amount of
70 (20165 & & #2,805429,0007T) * 7% & HK$2,814,520,000 (2016: HK$2,805,429,000), which was regulatory
BERIRENATHVELEEARER - ULk reserve and distributable subject to consultation with the HKMA.
A] i 75 Ik &9 {6 455 4 1615,014,858,0007T (2016 The difference between the aggregate distributable reserves of
F 1 #B¥512,534,568,0007T) ERAR BRI 5E43(b) HK$15,014,858,000 (2016: HK$12,534,568,000) and the Bank's retained
P& A1 TIOR8 v A1 75 %617,915,869,0007T profits of HK$17,915,869,000 (2016: HK$15,414,382,000) as reported in
(2016%F : B%515,414,382,0007T) Z EHIZERE note 43(b) mainly represents the inclusion of general reserves and the
FTERBVEMRBEERIGEREVENKRE exclusion of unrealised revaluation gains on investment properties
WMEMW R EMAARITEEFE - and the above regulatory reserve of the Bank.
HIMERT A 31 Additional equity instruments
2017 2016
BETT BT T
HK$’000 HKS'000
TE{8300,000,0003 7T A 5Kk A& 7Y Undated non-cumulative subordinated capital
FRBREELREF securities with US$300 million* 2,310,168 2,310,168
T {E500,000,0003E 7T B sk A& AY Undated non-cumulative subordinated capital
FERBREEREFZ securities with US$500 million** 3,863,084 3,863,084
6,173,252 6,173,252

* 1R 3% 72007412 8 # 17 #92,000,000,0003
TRIPEIERET & ([Z5H &) F1m2014
FARAMMR N EERE - RITR20145F
AANAEETHA(EERBE =) BE
300,000,000% 7T (% 1 & #2,313,470,000
TT) KK BRI IE R BB EEIIN —RERFE
5 ([BIN—MEARFES]) o LB —
BARFEI 4 EFE R H A RR2019F4A
A HEEAED AR EEFEHNES
7.250% c AERABITFEERE  RHF
FIE SR E R F X EES B8R INE
FIES5627%FHF —REHEE] °

RIBIER RGN - BN —REARTIFH
ARASREIEZR D IRAERN (ZEBE
EMIEAIITHBER L REBERAE) B
FEERTHNEASIKRE  RREFMH4
A2BFNM0A2BIR¥EF B —IK o AT7H]
LABITARE @ RIBEUH 2R 5k B B 5
IN—REX  BEFINSERNELER
B E - HE2017F12A31BERND IR
FH X 521,750,000 7T (& R E B
169,426,0007T) (20164F : 21,750,000% 7T
(FRE A #168,7350007T) ) °

* Under a USS$2 billion Medium Term Note Programme (“the
Programme”) issued in December 2007 and the new Offering Circular
issued in April 2014, the Bank issued a Basel Ill compliant Undated
Non-Cumulative Subordinated Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities (the
"AT1 Capital Securities”) on 22 April 2014 with a face value of US$300
million (equivalent to HK$2,313.47 million). The AT1 Capital Securities
are perpetual and bear a 7.250% coupon until the first call date on
22 April 2019. The coupon will be reset every five years if the AT1
Capital Securities are not redeemed to a fixed rate equivalent to the
then-prevailing five-year US Treasury rate plus 5.627% per annum.

According to the terms and conditions, the AT1 Capital Securities
confer a right to receive non-cumulative distributions (each a
Distribution) on the principal amount (subject to adjustments following
the occurrence of a non-viability event as defined) from, and including,
the issue date at the applicable distribution rate, payable semi-annually
in arrear on 22 April and 22 October each year. The Banks may, at its
sole discretion, elect to cancel the distribution payment or redeem
the AT1 Capital Securities, which are subject to prior written consent
of the HKMA. A distribution payment of US$21,750,000 (equivalent to
HK$169,426,000) was paid during the year ended 31 December 2017
(2016: USS$21,750,000, equivalent to HKS$168,735,000).
—E-tFR
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31

BHIMERTH (&

*%

R 3% 72007412 8 # 17 #92,000,000,0003
TCRI R BRI AT EI R 201658 A M9 A &
BEEMAFBEEBATNERBE - KT
R2016F9F829H BT E(EERBHTE =)
500,000,0003 7T B 2k A& U FE R AE 14 EBE SN
—REAFER ([BIN—RELXFHRD T
B UHEBEEEZHRNORERE -
It T {8} AN 42500,000,00055 7T (55 (B 7 #
3,877,8600007T) BN — MM ERFZHE N B
BHAT AR QG L& ERET R
B R2021F 10811 B E{ERRIER B H
BT R B R BFFERL25% o BEEEERE
TEERE - D REERNERNEBIZE
B 54 HA 2% B B0 B 15 5 B SR N 4F 1) 3.107%
BREXEFER] -

RIBGE G - BN —RERE THE
ANRRSWEGERFT DR (BXDIK) B
o BEARTANEADKE  ERE
FEH4ANMBMOAN BIREFES —IK » &K
TAILABITRE - BERUE D R R E
EIZEIN—RER - BEFBHEERNEL
EERE - NTARIEMEE R IR /TS
SRR KT E R R G REREERR
IN—MEBRMEE - BREBETE(SRIEE
(REHH)) 50 (Fe628%F) T B E
71 EIERITH B AR - AITA{TE
HEEBRERBITAEARKREEREIN
—RBAREEE - B E2017F12A31BFR
B 73 R S B 2 A B521,250,0003 7T (R &
R #165,532,0007T) ©

FREIRT (B BRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

31

Additional equity instruments (continued)

*%

Under a USS$2 billion Medium Term Note Programme (“the Programme”)
issued in December 2007 and the new and supplemental offering
circulars issued in August and September 2016, respectively, the Bank
priced its US$500 million Basel Ill compliant Undated Non-Cumulative
Subordinated Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities ("AT1 Capital
Securities”) with the legal binding subscription agreements signed on
29 September 2016. The AT1 Capital Securities with a face value and
principal amount of US$500 million (equivalent to HK$3,877.86 million)
are perpetual and listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
and bear a 4.25% per annum distribution rate until the first call date
on 11 October 2021. The distribution rate will be reset every five years
if the AT1 Capital Securities are not called by the Bank to a fixed rate
equivalent to the then-prevailing five-year US Treasury rate plus 3.107%
per annum.

According to the terms and conditions, the AT1 Capital Securities
confer a right to the holders to receive non-cumulative distributions
on the principal amount from, and including, the issue date at the
applicable distribution rate, payable semi-annually in arrear on 11 April
and 11 October in each year. The Bank may, at its sole discretion, elect
to cancel the distribution payment or redeem the AT1 Capital Securities
subject to prior written consent of the HKMA. The outstanding amount
of AT1 Capital Securities can be written down by the Bank following
the occurrence of a non-viability event as defined and set out in the
terms and conditions. At the sole discretion of the relevant Hong Kong
Resolution Authority following a non-viability event, the outstanding
amount of AT1 Capital Securities can be adjusted upon the exercise of
Hong Kong Bail-in Power in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial
Institutions (Resolution) Ordinance (Cap.628). A distribution payment
of US$21,250,000 (equivalent to HK$165,532,000) was paid during the
period ended 31 December 2017.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

32 Staff retirement scheme

The Group has a defined contribution provident fund scheme
(“the Retirement Scheme”) under which it contributes 10% of the
employees’ basic salaries. The Retirement Scheme is a Mandatory
Provident Fund ("MPF") exempted scheme and covers all permanent
full-time employees of the Group. No employee contributions are
required. Contributions forfeited by leavers prior to vesting fully may
not be used by the Group to reduce the existing level of contribution,
but are transferred to a separate welfare fund which shall be applied
for the welfare of the Retirement Scheme'’s members.

In addition to the Retirement Scheme, the Group has also participated
in an approved MPF scheme effective from 1 December 2000 to
provide a choice of schemes to both existing and new employees.
Mandatory benefits are provided under the MPF Scheme.

During the year, the Group contributed approximately HK$ 101,689,000
(2016: HKS91,652,000) (note 10(a)) to these schemes.
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33 BERBEEEER 33 Notes to consolidated cash flow statement
2017 2016
BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000

(a) BERAE(BR),HEH (a)Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash flow
REER RS FENER (used in)/from operating activities

mE K Operating activities
Tt A& A Profit before taxation 3,287,211 3,053,239
RSB AR Adjustments for:
EREBR R EMIRIE Impairment losses on loans and
VERIER=ES advances and other accounts 1,391,065 552,959
Al EEASREE K Impairment losses on available-for-sale securities 31,204 -
o A] B A F I S Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale securities (126,794) (129,729)
DEY SRR T Net loss/(gain) on disposal of property and
Bk, (W) equipment 4,055 (15)
KEMEEHRE Revaluation gain on investment properties (14,290) (9,546)
IEE S H#5Y Amortisation of deferred expenses 29,010 36,571
W NREITE Depreciation on property and equipment 200,666 150,220
PE TR RS AT B A Dividend income from equity securities (6,390) (6,008)
BEFERFE XL Interest expense on loan capital 483,425 504,064
EH =58 Foreign exchange differences 464,957 (107,715)
EEESEE AL EF Operating profit before changes in working capital 5,744,119 4,043,950
REEEGEM) WD (Increase)/decrease in operating assets
JREES AR 8318 A R fE iR Placements with and advances to banks,
17~ ARIBITREMSE central banks and other financial institutions
AT 7 R M B R with original maturity beyond 3 months 3,907,003 3,096,013
REIER A B BE3E A/ Treasury bills with original maturity
Bl E % beyond 3 months 3,440,148 5,851,710
[REIER B A3 (E A 1Y Certificates of deposit held with original
RBFRE maturity beyond 3 months 5,620,195 (4,081,411)
RGHBREE Trading assets (217,819) (1,304,181)
BEEFERRBIN Loans and advances to customers and
HAnBR1E other accounts (9,121,405) (18,412,937)
AEHERS Available-for-sale securities (7,811,555) (6,746,042)

(4,183,433) (21,596,848)

128] HIERIT(BEIFR)BRAF
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33 HeRkBELEEER (&) 33 Notes to consolidated cash flow statement (continued)
2017 2016
BET T BT T
HKS$'000 HKS'000
(a) B RAE(BR),HTEE (a)Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash flow
BERCHSFENYEER (used in)/from operating activities (continued)
(%)
rEa/EEM CRL) Increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities
RIT R E M S mEED Deposits and balances of banks and
TR EETT other financial institutions (69,341) 2,598,359
BPER Deposits from customers 35,896,468 14,883,011
RE5RBaE Trading liabilities 828,039 440,830
BT 7 AE Certificates of deposit issued (7,260,490) 201,380
Ht & Other liabilities (4,797,264) (2,298,988)
24,597,412 15,824,592
BB (AR)EEEEN Cash generated from/(used in)
ReRnEBH operating activities 26,158,098 (1,728,306)
2MEHR Income tax paid
B EBFEH Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (101,049) (197,426)
BATEINEIR Overseas tax paid (139,966) (62,553)
KRB (AR CEEEN Net cash flow generated from/(used in)
ReRmETHE operating activities 25,917,083 (1,988,285)
REEBREENR S Cash flows from operating
REBKE: activities include:
2 AR Interest received 8,670,430 6,891,019
EAHLE Interest paid (2,916,111) (2,599,419)
bREREESEEIER (b)Analysis of the balances of cash
WEFIW and cash equivalents
R REIRTT ~ PFRIFITR Cash and balances with banks, central banks and
Hih & ET other financial institutions 30,700,892 26,458,664
TEiRTT ~ PRIB|IT R HAMS Placements with and advances to banks, central
B R R R BR banks and other financial institutions with original
(FER3ME A REIE) maturity within 3 months 46,599,596 18,304,676
BlE % R H 7 AE Treasury bills and certificates of deposit held
(ERAA3ME A AR ER) with original maturity within 3 months:
—AHEEES — Available-for-sale securities 12,084,624 9,753,931
89,385,112 54,517,271
—E_tEH P2
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33 BEeRBELEEER (&)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

33 Notes to consolidated cash flow statement (continued)

(c) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

REXBHNESE
Liabilities from financing activities
ERTEEES ERES
Debt securities Loan
issued capital
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
201751818 At 1 January 2017 - 8,705,837
RARFEZERIEIT New issue during the year 3,397,843 -
Em Redemption - (2,342,981)
fEH =% Foreign exchange differences 196,973 65,980
HibIEIR R Other non-cash adjustments (10,752) (88,644)
2017%12A31H At 31 December 2017 3,584,064 6,340,192
34 AEAEEANEERERARESE 34 Assets pledged as security for liabilities and collateral
RIEREE accepted as security for assets
2017 2016
BET T BT T
HKS$’000 HK$'000
AEABEARANEE Assets pledged as security
RE RERIT ~ PRIRITR Cash and balances with banks, central
Hib e &1 banks and other financial institutions 13 -
VR IR A B E A Available-for-sale securities pledged
ETFR (KR for statutory deposit (Note) 140,660 85,304
140,673 85,304
BfE - Note:
RERMMNEERENEE AR T EREBE The assets pledged represented statutory deposits pledged by the overseas
BERAEEGTK ° branches of the Bank to the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency in the

35 BERBEBAIRS

United States.

35 Material related party transactions

MR SRR B D I BRI 5 M SR In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere
N REBEITTATER@EH TS - in these financial statements, the Group entered into the following

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

material related party transactions.
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(a)

Notes to the Financial Statements

EXBBARS () 35 Material related party transactions (continued)
HEEQRNRS (@) Transactions with group companies
REER - NEBEEBBRITERBREFR During the year, the Group entered into a number of transactions with
Eﬁifﬁﬂ T T ZIER S - ARERIBEE related parties in the normal course of its banking business; including,
B BEXRERRZEER Qﬁfﬁ.{é%\ . inter alia, lending, acceptance and placement of interbank deposits,
FERIBITRHIINER 5 - BERHHE 4 participation in loan syndicates, correspondent banking transactions
EERERBEETR %%WHF«%%%IJ and foreign exchange transactions. The transactions were priced
MmiE @ WERHGEAREHEMR ST REP based on relevant market rates at the time of each transaction, and
HEFMER - EFERA - BERFHEIZIE were under the same terms as those available to other counterparties
B EGRUEST - and customers of the Group. In the opinion of the Directors, these
transactions were conducted on normal commercial terms.
REERN - BB ARZNBELNEERD The amount of related party transactions during the year and
ERIAT - outstanding balances at the end of the year are set out below:
BAERR Benq BELE
HHERELT (M) (K Gi)
Ultimate holding and ERBERBAT AZENELT Associates Related companies
intermediate parents Immediate parent Fellow subsidiaries (note (i)) (note (ii))
(i)
(Restated)
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
BT BETr  B¥TR  E¥Tr BETn BETr  A¥TR EETn BETn BT
HK$'000 HKS000  HK$'000 HKS000  HK$'000 HKS'000  HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
HEHA Interest income 61,032 45342 - - 79,834 46,352 22,435 15601 5379 -
RS Interest expense (193,062) (99309 (3907) (@134 (S1557) (9387 (24345)  (12419) (1428)  (7.466)
BRRESRA/ () Fee and commission income/
(expenses) (3,165) (21.842) - - - 29 4,624 2,734 - -
EfmelA Other operating income - - - - - - - 1760 - -
g Operating expenses - - - 573 (9,048) (5.469) - - - -
SHERITANE/(BX)  Trading gain/oss) on derivatives  (426,079) 180393 - - (2,988) 854 12,344 (25,528) - -
BE Assets
mihERs Available-for-sale securities - 196,391 - - - - 173064 17453 - -
RHBE Trading assets 54,127 - - - - - - . _ ,
fTELRIE Derivative financial instruments 29223 72187 - - - - 10,185 27538 - -
HitEUERA Other recelvables 2,896 3178 - - 3,667 3875 331 1,59 - -
8 Liabilities
TEERIE Derivative financial instruments 351,294 40,188 - - 18,455 401 - 25259 - -
ERERER Other payables 13,625 12842 900 886 11,748 10611 4,647 3 - 279
RS Lending activities
M2A31H At 31 December 2,432,965 320358 - - 1178127 2707688 1,095,420 600,000 - -
REEFIRE Average fo the year 1733455 2016340 - - 8078 2013141 8870 577446 - -
BRER: Acceptance of deposits
R2A318 At 31 December 10,667,653 8,559,965 243,710 415929 9,465,073 11465328 5,532,947  3,148578 39,988 677,293
TEETHEE Average for the year 12,442,225 7653279 372,866 413580 6334452 5704280 4,587,592 4480058 10,034 871947
BERRRMER Off-statement of financial
position items
RREZ R Acceptances, quarantees
RiERE and letters of credit
-EfAHEE - contract amounts payable - - - - (115158)  (107,077) - - - -
HEAE Lease commitments - - - - 15,401 1552 - - - -
HihEiE Qther commitments - - - - 1,442,054 145489 896,764 1134273 - 222,861
fEeBIR Derivative financial instruments
-45%8 -notional amounts 23,846,041 6,867,094 - - 922,185 387,744 186,863 2,495,188 - -
—E—tFR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

35

(a)

(b)

Material related party transactions (continued)

Transactions with group companies (continued)
No impairment allowances were made in respect of the above loans
to and placements with related parties.

Note:

(i) Associates of the Group include the associates of the ultimate
controlling party and immediate parent respectively.

(i) In 2017, related companies refer to common shareholders of the
intermediate parent. In 2016, related companies refer to companies
with common key management personnel of the intermediate parents.

Transactions with key management personnel

The aggregate amount of remuneration of key management
personnel of the Group, including the amount paid to the Bank's
Directors as disclosed in note 11, are as follows:

2017 2016

BET T BT IT

HK$’000 HKS$'000

EHEBEREA Short-term employee benefits 92,996 97,340
BB 2B A Post-employment benefits 3,419 3,122
96,415 100,462

Mo st A TEIRA ] (FHEE106)) ©

RERER - ATARTTRRBREZER AR
T EEIEA B A PIHT RN i A PR I X
RMPEAFENRARRBEERE - 8
BMEREREFRHBRETREME  WHRH DA
AT (ER) EEAREEETA L]
R ZEOGEHABAAR -

FREIRT (B BRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Total remuneration is included in ‘staff costs’ (note 10(a)).

During the year, the Bank provided credit facilities to key management
personnel of the Bank and its holding companies and their close
family members, as well as to companies controlled or significantly
influenced by them. The credit facilities were provided in the ordinary
course of business and on substantially the same terms as for
comparable transactions with persons of a similar standing, or where
applicable, with other employees.
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EXBBAIRS (&

Notes to the Financial Statements

35 Material related party transactions (continued)

HFIEEEBEAENRE (&) (b) Transactions with key management personnel (continued)
2017 2016
BEET T BT T
HKS$'000 HKS'000
M1 ATRER S At 1 January 21,404 21,058
B12A31 B At 31 December 17,444 21,404
FANRmAERERE Maximum amount during the year 23,559 27,981

REBREREEZEBRABNFANGERE
EREMRERSL  EEREREEAR
R PT AT A B AR B 45 IR BB BE 8k {18 1 A
B EER -

EEEX

BE(AT (RBEEZFEER) RED(F
622GE) F171& - AT BELZE2017F12016%F
NAJNBEBRESNERER -

(c)

No impairment losses were recorded against outstanding balances
with key management personnel during the year, and no individually
assessed impairment allowance was made on balances with key
management personnel and their immediate relatives at the year end.

Loans to directors

Particulars of loans to directors disclosed pursuant to Section 17 of
the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation (Cap.622G) for the year ended 31 December 2017 and
2016 are shown as below.

2017 2016
BT BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
K12 A3 BARTTIRER G Aggregate amount of relevant loans made by
B R BEE the Bank at 31 December
—BHRERRBR - Loans and advances 10,787 9,213
—AGHEER — Committed facility 21,398 20,795
KEFRNRITIRENBHER Maximum aggregate amount of relevant
BeiEREE loans made by the Bank during the year
—BENE R B — Loans and advances 14,920 12,532

2017 2016512318 » REBIRAB A
ELE TR R o

There were no impairment allowances made against these loans at

31 December 2017 and 2016.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Financial risk management

The Group manages its risks under the oversight of the Board of
Directors and its delegated committees. The Risk Management
Group has been entrusted with the ongoing responsibilities of
driving and implementing the Group's risk management framework
and governance encompassing the identification, quantification,
monitoring, reporting, and mitigation of the risks to which the group is
exposed.

The Group adopts the Standardised Approach for credit and market
risk measurement, and the Basic Indicator Approach for operational
risk measurement. The Group has established policies, procedures
and processes to identify and set appropriate risk limits, as well as
to analyse, control and monitor these risks. The Group continually
strives to enhance its risk management framework and infrastructure
in keeping with the market, product offerings and international best
practices. The Group's internal auditor performs regular independent
audits to ensure due compliance with internal policies and regulatory
requirements.

The Group manages the following main types of risk:

Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss due to the failure of a customer
or counterparty to fulfill its contractual obligations. Credit exposure
principally arises in loans and advances, debt securities, treasury bills
and trading derivatives, as well as in the credit risk from financial
arrangements in the off-statement of financial position such as loan
commitments. The Group has developed standards, policies and
procedures to measure, monitor and mitigate the risk of its lending
business. The policies and procedures are reviewed as required, to
respond quickly to the changing market environment to better reflect
the risk factors for the Group's credit considerations.

In 2017, the Group has implemented a number of new credit risk
initiatives to reinforce the risk management system, practices and
culture. The Bank has developed new credit rating models for
corporate and retail segments. The Group has enhanced the credit
rating framework by adopting a new and more granular 24-grade
Rating Master Scale. Furthermore, the Group has implemented
an automated solution for computing the Expected Credit Losses
(ECL) towards a more forward looking and accurate provisioning
in compliance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 9
(HKFRS 9).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

36 Financial risk management (continued)

(a)

Credit risk management (continued)

Credit risk is controlled and managed by the Risk Management Group
("RMG") under the oversight of the Credit Committee, and is reported
to the Credit & Risk Management Committee ("CRMC") at the board
level on a quarterly basis. These committees provide appropriate
oversight of the Group's risk management practices by defining the
Group's policies and risk appetite, and providing the RMG with the
means to implement measures to mitigate credit risk arising from the
Group's adopted strategy.

Credit risk embedded in products is identified and measured in
product programmes. Credit risk pertaining to individual customers is
identified and measured by credit officers utilising internal risk rating
models. Credit applications are approved by credit officers under
delegated authorities or by the Credit Committee.

The Group mitigates credit risk by taking collateral and entering into
offsetting or netting agreements with borrowers and counterparties,
as the case may be, should such clauses and agreements be legally
established and enforceable.

Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in geographic,
economic or industry factors similarly affect groups of counterparties
whose aggregate credit exposure is material in relation to the Group's
total exposures. The Group's portfolio of financial instruments is
diversified among geographic, industry and product sectors.

Credit risk for treasury transactions is managed in the same way as the
Group manages its corporate lending risk. Risk grading is applied to
the debt issuers, with individual credit limits set.

Credit and counterparty risks related to countries and financial
institutions are assessed and monitored regularly according to the
Group’s Country Risks and Financial Institution Risks policies. The
policies are implemented together to effectively assess and control
credit limits and tenors made available to the respective financial
institutions under an umbrella country risk limit for each country.

The Group applies the same credit policy in respect of contingent
liabilities as in respect of financial instruments recorded on the
statement of financial position, based on loan approval procedures,
use of limits to reduce risk and monitoring. Credit risk is also mitigated
by obtaining collateral in the form of pledged assets and guarantees
from borrowers and third parties.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

36 Financial risk management (continued)

(a)

Credit risk management (continued)

(i

Credit quality

The Group has adopted a new and more granular 24-grade
(formerly 14-grade) internal risk rating system (Grades GO1-G21
for performing loans and Grades G22-G24 for non-performing
loans) that maps to external agencies’ Master Scales, providing
calibrated internal ratings. The integration of this framework
into the Group's reporting structure has enabled more accurate
risk reporting, thus enhancing the internal management. The
risk rating tools are calibrated according to differing customer
segments (manufacturing, trading, property development/
investment, etc.) which enables the ranking of the credit quality
of each customer and the governing of the credit exposure for
individual customers or counterparties.

Customers' risk ratings are reviewed regularly and amendments,
where necessary, are implemented promptly, particularly
in times of fluctuating market conditions. The Group also
maintains a committee to regularly oversee weaker credits
(which have lower risk ratings of G19-G21) to preserve the
Group's quality portfolio. The table below outlines the Group's
rating scale benchmarked against external credit agencies:
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36 SRIAMER (2) 36 Financial risk management (continued)

(@) FERRERE (&)
() EEEX (&)

1Lt IN Y
Obligor Grade

(@) Credit risk management (continued)
(i) Credit quality (continued)

SEECAIR
Reference ECAI Rating
B BELE EEER  TRES
Moody'’s S&P Fitch Rating Description

GO1

Aaa AAA AAA BERARANGBEARSNBELMEE D BRI REREE
A BRBRBUTOERSFNERT - AR SERRERRK
FR&E -
Obligations are judged to have the highest intrinsic, or standalone,
financial strength, and thus subject to the lowest level of credit risk
absent any possibility of extraordinary support from an affiliate or
government.

G02 - Go4

Aal/Aa2/Aa3 AA+/AA/AA- AAH/ANAA- BRERR/AT EEBRSNBILMEE SN - AMEr s8R B EM
PR A HB AR S RIS B ERT - A NERRRIE
s
B
Obligations are judged to have high intrinsic, or standalone,
financial strength, and thus subject to very low credit risk absent
any possibility of extraordinary support from an affiliate or
government.

G05 - GO7

AT/A2/A3 A+/A/A- A+/INA- BBEBRRAAFAFRRERANBELIBE S - BEAIEER
AERMBARIBANSAFNERT - AXHNERR
@ AERR -
Obligations are judged to have upper-medium-grade intrinsic, or
standalone, financial strength, and thus subject to low credit risk
absent any possibility of extraordinary support from an affiliate or

government.

G08 - G10

Baal/Baa2/Baa3  BBB+/BBB/BBB-  BBB+/BBB/BBB- EMSIKRAAANHEATEFHBUMNMBKE Y  BEREHEX
LR EERE - MR A EA MBS BURT R H 5 5 S %
HERTHAXHNERRRRER -
Obligations are judged to have medium-grade intrinsic, or
standalone, financial strength, and thus subject to moderate credit
risk and, as such, may possess certain speculative credit elements
absent any possibility of extraordinary support from an affiliate or

government.

Bal/Ba2/Ba3 BB+/BB/BB- BB+/BB/BB- (EMKA ARG AERKIEIBUNMBE S - BMEAER
AN BB RBUFRER R SFNERLT - BEEERAN
ERER -
Obligations are judged to have speculative intrinsic, or standalone,
financial strength, and are subject to substantial credit risk
absent any possibility of extraordinary support from an affiliate or
government.
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36 SRIRKMER (& 36 Financial risk management (continued)
(@ FERKBRER (&) (@) Credit risk management (continued)
() 1EEEZX (&) (i) Credit quality (continued)
ZEECAIFTR
Reference ECAI Rating
LI B BEER EEER  TEFEH
Obligor Grade Moody'’s S&P Fitch Rating Description
G14-G16 B1/B2/B3 B+/B/B- B+/B/B-  BEREAR/LGEAREUENBINMBEE S - BAIRERE
M EEERBFRESINZHNNELT - §&XSER
[\ B o

Obligations are judged to have speculative intrinsic, or standalone,
financial strength, and are subject to high credit risk absent any

possibility of extraordinary support from an affiliate or government.

G17-G18 Caal/Caa2 CCC+/CCC CCCH/CCC BEBERR/AFEBRBIEIBINABESN - BALAR
B AR KB MEMRHSBOERLT - @AZERSH
EREMR

Obligations are judged to have speculative intrinsic, or standalone,

financial strength, and are subject to very high credit risk absent
any possibility of extraordinary support from an affiliate or

government.

G19 Caa3 ccc- ccc- BEBRRAAFEARENRENY - WERAIRENSENE

HRET 2 BINE—ENAEN BRI R

G19 Special Obligations are judged to have highly speculative intrinsic, and

Mention are likely in, or near, default, with some prospect of recovery of
principal and interest.

G20 Ca de cC BEHERARRFEARERE  WERAIRENENNFES

FEWI BREOMMEE - BINE —ENRS A S EKHAIR -

G20 Special Obligations are judged to have highly speculative intrinsic, and are

Mention likely in, or very near, default, with some prospect of recovery of
principal and interest.

G21 C C C BHARRRE  BEEBELD  DRRS A SRR

FERT /e

G21 Special Obligations are the lowest rated and are typically in default, with

Mention little prospect for recovery of principal or interest.

G22 D D D IRAR - IRIBEE D BHR

XA Substandard. In accordance with the Asset Classification Policy.

G22

Substandard

G23R% D D D R REBEDELE

G23 Doubtful Doubtful. In accordance with the Asset Classification Policy.

G4 % D D D B - REBEEDEBE

G24 Loss Loss. In accordance with the Asset Classification Policy.

138] RIERIT (B BRAF
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REERAZNEERR LR - K&t
REMBAENERmAEMBERRE
Tt RBMBIRAKRTEREREER
R AR EERRORE SR - 5

B RN T

Notes to the Financial Statements

36 Financial risk management (continued)

(@) Credit risk management (continued)

(i) Exposure of credit risk

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting

period, without considering any collateral held or other credit

enhancements, is represented by the carrying amount of

each financial asset in the statement of financial position after

deducting any impairment allowances. A summary of the

maximum exposure is as follows:

2017 2016
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HKS$'000
Re RIEIRIT ~ ARIFITR Cash and balances with banks, central banks

Hih e MsBnET and other financial institutions 31,657,854 27,540,433
EIRIT ~ PRIBITREM SR Placements with and advances to banks,

BN FER BT central banks and other financial institutions 47,402,438 22,889,713
RGRBEEE Trading assets 5,798,735 5,580,642
BEEFRNRBF L EMERTE Loans and advances to customers and

other accounts 198,539,113 190,887,812
AT &5 Available-for-sale securities 59,254,976 58,108,539
HEEREEMEEER Financial guarantees and other credit-related

BN EAR contingent liabilities 6,221,870 7,671,843
BERAERAEMEEE Loan commitments and other credit-related

BB EIE commitments 99,299,581 114,235,928

448,174,567 426,914,910
—E—tFR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

36 Financial risk management (continued)

(a)

EFHEFRGE R HRNARE R
AR BEFE  EheREHEAE
BEEReREEMT R B ENERH

Credit risk management (continued)

(iii)

Master netting arrangement

The Group enters into enforceable master netting arrangements
with counterparties. If an event of default occurs, all outstanding
transactions with the counterparty are terminated and all
amounts outstanding are settled on a net basis. Except for
the event of default, all outstanding transactions with the
counterparty are settled on a gross basis and generally do not
result in offsetting the assets and liabilities in the statement of
financial position. The Group discloses information for financial
statement users to evaluate the effect or potential effect of
netting arrangements, including the rights of set-off associated
with the Group’s recognised financial assets and recognised

TR o financial liabilities, on the Group’s financial position.
2017
EBBERRERA
REESENERYE
ERERRE ReI::ed .amc}:unts thatare f
REB noto f‘set ln.t Ie sta.t.emento
SRTESE inancial position
Derivative financial BE
instruments BEEA
presented in ¢RIEA Cash
the statement Financial collateral B
of financial position instruments received Net amount
BET T BETT BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SREE Financial assets
—THESR T A (ME18) — Derivative financial
instruments (note 18) 4,770,495 (3,087,306) (466,466) 1,216,723
LRER Financial liabilities
— TSR T A (Pf5E25) - Derivative financial
instruments (note 25) 4,824,483 (3,087,306) - 1,737,177

140) PERIT (EIE) BRAH
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(a)

Notes to the Financial Statements

36 Financial risk management (continued)

EERKER (&) Credit risk management (continued)
(i) FEFEEE i (B) (i) Master netting arrangement (continued)
2016
B BARREA

(iv)

REEIE R

Related amounts that are

RS IN R
HERAORTA not offset in the statement
ST EEE of financial position
Derivative financial #E
instruments bR i
presented in SRTA Cash
the statement Financial collateral FE
of financial position instruments received Net amount
BEFT  BBTT BRFR BT
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
TREE Financial assets
—TESBIAHE8) ~ Derivative financial
instruments (note 18) 4,258,891 (2,051,890) (154,756) 2,052,245
TRERE Financial liabilities
— T m T A(HEE25) - Derivative financial
instruments (note 25) 3,996,444 (2,051,890 - 1,944,554

RS B R e — B m RE (5 1
I

RE BB AR E R AT R 77 2R A&
EERER - —&ME  NEENER
mEETE T*%TE}H//\/UZZ&W T#E\IJ?&
AR AR - REBSEBRTREE
ERBEEKT - WRNRFEEEE -

AEBEBEERRBRMEH K ER
mIZEERE HeEF RIB
BEERANR S Emr R - &
WERFEE - mREREREERA
MERES - £—LBERT - AEE
BRFEPHHRMEBFNEETER
B B R EAEEROE
HHER -

(iv)

Mitigation of credit risk — Collateral and other credit enhancements

The Group dedicates to mitigating credit risk, and this takes
many forms. In general, risk to the Group’s ultimate credit
exposure is mitigated by recognised collateral and credit risk
enhancement. The Group continuously seeks to enhance its
level of credit risk mitigation, and it was particularly successful at
safequarding its credit quality.

The principal collateral received to secure loans and advances
includes mortgages, cash collateral, equities listed on a main
index/recognised exchanges, accounts receivable assignments,
standby letters of credit and listed debt securities acceptable
to the Group. In some cases, depending on the customer’s
position and the types of credit products, some loans may be
granted and backed by corporate or personal guarantees only.

—E—tFRH
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FERBER (&)

(iv)

v)

BRI B R SR — A R A 15 FHHE
7t (&)

AEEA - ERFENERLNFZEE
ARBER R LERRANAREE
REMBESH - ZEELBERARST
W& 1EEBRimat - REBYEBILE
75 MK (15 BRI T5) 16 Hitmad
AR e BN aBRIBERR
BEEMREREEERRETNE
2 AEEBRAFBEATP R
5 ¥ F BIE TR EE N R AN T A IF B ALK
SRS -

N ER20179F M2016F12A31H &
EIHRAEERRE DM (FNEREER
R AEER) AT

Notes to the Financial Statements

36 Financial risk management (continued)

(a)
(iv)

Credit risk management (continued)

Mitigation of credit risk — Collateral and other credit enhancements
(continued)

The Group has guidelines on the acceptability of specific classes
of collateral or credit risk enhancements accompanied by the
determination of valuation parameters. Such parameters are
expected to be conservative and reviewed regularly. Security
structures and covenants (financial and non-financial) are
subject to regular review to ensure they comply with the
stipulated conditions. The collateral is important to mitigate
credit risk, but it is the Group’s policy to assess the repayment
ability of individual customers or counterparties rather than just
solely relying on securities.

The Group's collateralised credit risk at 31 December 2017 and
2016, excluding impaired exposure, is broken down as follows:

2017 2016

BT T BT T

HK$'000 HK$'000
ERRBFREREBIEERER Lower of gross loans and advances and

EEZKFGEEMEREAN fair value of collateral and other credit
ARBEMEZREER enhancements held against financial
assets that are:

— R BB RE — neither past due nor impaired 89,089,655 90,310,100

— @R BIRE -~ past due but not impaired 1,498,422 2,570,029

90,588,077 93,380,129

B EELERETE
ERHEAER

— PARLR 2 H) TE (B il E AR AL

AR B BR A DA B A AN O TE (B R R AR
REREFASERENAD —AE
e AEEHLEBEMEEBEL
Z BE P M b H) ELR I8 52 B SR
OREEXRARBER  BRKWER
TR L ®R (BIEEE) - AREE
HETRBE R - EREHEER
ZE#ME THEFENEEMAR
EELEERB -

FREIRT (B BRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

(v)

Portfolio management and risk concentration

Portfolio management

- Risk-based Pricing Model

As part of the Group's portfolio management practices, the
Risk-based Pricing Model has been adopted with the aim of
improving the overall return for the Group (value creation), after
taking into account the risks of the customers and facilities,
and thus the capital required to support the loan exposure and
other costs. Stress tests on the Group's credit risk are conducted
regularly. The result is approved by the Credit Committee and is
endorsed by the Board through the CRMC.
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RS+ E
AEECDHITRRESTEEERRL
KERBERMAONEEER
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FIRERR
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RREBEBIEFANER - AEEHA
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Notes to the Financial Statements

36 Financial risk management (continued)

(@) Credit risk management (continued)

(v)  Portfolio management and risk concentration (continued)

Risk concentration

A Credit Risk Concentration Policy is in place and the

Group constantly reviews its loan exposure to monitor the

concentration of credit risk relating to customers, countries,

market segments and products.

(vi)  Credit quality of loans and advances

The Group manages and monitors its risks, and has a Asset

Classification Policy and Impairment Assessment Policy in

place to govern this aspect. The Group has a professional team

dedicated to handling recovery works of non-performing

loans, which include loan restructuring, taking legal action,

repossession and disposal of collateral, etc.

At 31 December 2017 and 2016, all loans and advances to banks
were not impaired. The credit quality of loans and advances to

customers is analysed as follows:

2017 2016
BET T BETIT
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
EREERRBFRETE Gross loans and advances to customers
— R EEHSRE — neither past due nor impaired 192,075,803 178,645,249
—BRHERERE — past due but not impaired 1,747,107 3,352,326
—ERE ~ impaired 2,464,012 1,766,666
196,286,922 183,764,241
Hepo: Of which:
2017 2016
BET T BETIT
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
REBESRENTFER Gross loans and advances to customers
NER R that are neither past due nor impaired
— EFEBEFRGO1EG18 — Pass: Grades GO1to G18 187,461,309 177,106,459
— BB REFRGIOEG2 - Special Mention: Grades G19 to G21 4,614,494 1,538,790
192,075,803 178,645,249
—E—tEg
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Notes to the Financial Statements

36 Financial risk management (continued)

(@ FERKBRER (&) (@) Credit risk management (continued)

i) BHRBHGEEELE (&) (vi)  Credit quality of loans and advances (continued)
EEEERBERENEFERRBR The ageing analysis of loans and advances to customers that are
HIERER DT T - past due but not impaired is as follows:

2017 2016
B¥TT BT T
HK$’000 HKS'000
EEHELERENTFPEH K Gross loans and advances to customers

BB that are past due but not impaired

— BB EAIAT - Overdue 3 months or less 1,747,107 3,239,738
— @ e fE A LA N E3E A LA & — Overdue 6 months or less but

over 3 months - 112,588
1,747,107 3,352,326

(vii)

R2017512 8318 » BB HEFRER
BREEFER MK ABEEHETH
B3R B A 537,979,0007T (2016
& BH32180007T)  LEHEEKT
BER LB ERERENE P
ERRBR - FERREEZBR
BERMWFEOFZ3 -

BITEREE - ITREER R
HABER DRI 25190 BARE
FIXA M ERMIEED) °

ERRBALUN e HEENEEEE
MEXZEERBRNEE - EHAR
SEEECXEERBRN AR -
WRFESEFEITANERFL - &
FEfER R EEE

TREVNELEBIETTRHBYEE
BELNREZEEEZ M- £
2017F12A3BEFE - AKEER
BEBIEFNBITREITAENTE
ZEBEREFNEETHR AT
ERAFRATHE THREED AE
BHARFE ANERI K — B

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

(vii)

Loans and advances that would have been past due or impaired,
but the terms had been re-negotiated and became rescheduled
loans amounted to HK$537,979,000 at 31 December 2017 (2016:
HK$3,218,000). The rescheduled loans are not included in the
above gross loans and advances to customers that are past
due but not impaired, the details are provided in note (F) of the
unaudited supplementary information.

Further detailed analyses of the impaired loan by industry sector
or by geographical location are provided in note 19(c) and note
(D) of the unaudited supplementary information, respectively.

Credit quality of financial assets other than loans and advances
The credit risk of treasury transactions is managed in the same
way as the Group manages its corporate lending risk. Risk
grading is applied to the debt issuers, with individual credit
limits set.

The following table presents an analysis of the credit quality
of investments in debt securities by rating agency designation
at the end of the reporting period. During the year ended 31
December 2017, the Group has reassessed the credit ratings for
these debt securities in according to their issue or the issuer,
certain comparatives for the following credit rating analysis
have been restated accordingly in order to conform with the
current period’s presentation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

36 Financial risk management (continued)

(@) Credit risk management (continued)

(vii)  Credit quality of financial assets other than loans and advances

(4&) (continued)
2017
AHHERES
RERAREE Available-for-sale waxE
Trading assets securities Total
BET T BET T BET T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
Aaa Aaa - 2,490,087 2,490,087
Aa3EAaT Aa3 to Aal 36,473 13,423,924 13,460,397
A3ZEAT A3 to Al 59,980 30,084,326 30,144,306
{RRRAA3 Lower than A3 739,541 10,977,542 11,717,083
835,994 56,975,879 57,811,873
REFAR Unrated 192,246 2,279,097 2,471,343
ek Total 1,028,240 59,254,976 60,283,216
2016
AIHHEES

THRBREE Available-for-sale 4a%E
Trading assets securities Total
BETIT BEETIT BETIT
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
Aaa Aaa 165,496 5,573,226 5,738,722
Aa3ZEAal Aa3 to Aal 489 16,313,083 16,313,572
A3ZEAT A3 to Al 79,016 23,976,774 24,055,790
1KHA3 Lower than A3 412,290 10,641,765 11,054,055
657,291 56,504,848 57,162,139
REFAR Unrated 664,460 1,603,691 2,268,151
Rk Total 1,321,751 58,108,539 59,430,290
—E LR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

36 Financial risk management (continued)

(b)

Market risk management

Market risk is the risk of loss caused by an adverse change in valuation
associated with holding either long or short market positions. The risk
arises as a result of market making, underwriting, principal position
taking and asset/liability management in interest rate, foreign
exchange, equity, credit and commodity markets and their associated
derivatives instruments. The Group manages its market risk exposures
mainly through its trading and treasury business. The trading business
is to facilitate customer activities, but as a result, takes on principal
positions. The treasury business performs asset/liability management
function including liquidity risk management, with securities positions
intended for liquidity management and investment purposes under
available-for-sale ("AFS") treatment. The change in valuation for
trading positions affects the income statement as profit-and-loss
while for asset and liability related positions, as reserve.

The objective of market risk management is to consistently measure
and monitor market risk on a timely and unbiased basis in order to
better manage the portfolio’s and, by doing so, optimize financial
performance. The business is responsible in managing market risks
for meeting corporate performance objectives within the market risk
limit parameters. The Risk Management Group ("RMG") is responsible
to independently monitor and report all market risks.

Market risk framework

The Board of the Group allocates capital or risk appetite through
the limit process. The Board delegates Credit & Risk Management
Committee ("CRMC") to establish limits for the different businesses.
CRMC further delegates market risk limit establishment to Market
Risk Committee ("MRC") which then to RMG. RMG is responsibility
in designing and drafting the market risk limits and framework and
reviewing and updating the limits on a regular basis. The market
risk limits are to be approved by MRC and endorsed by CRMC. In
addition, the Board also establishes a set of risk indicators under the
risk appetite statement (“RAS") in measuring different types of risks
including market risk.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

36 Financial risk management (continued)

(b)

Market risk management (continued)

Market risk framework (continued)

RMG is an independent function reporting to the Chief Risk Officer
("CRO"). RMG uses both quantitative and qualitative measures in
analysing market risk. The analysis includes, but not limited to,
Value-at-Risk ("VaR"), stress testing, risk sensitivities, market events,
product liquidity and volatility, underlying quality, hedging strategy,
performance including P&L, accuracy of valuations and balance sheet
and capital consumptions. The results are regularly reported to senior
management and CRO and to MRC and CRMC.

In addressing newly introduced risks, all new products are governed
by the “New Product Evaluation and Approval Policy” approved
by CRMC. Prior to execution, each of the new products are to be
reviewed and concurred by various functions including the senior
management of the business, the Financial Management Group,
the Operations and Technology Group, the Legal Department, the
Compliance Department, the Internal Control Group and RMG. After
the concurrence, the sponsoring business head obtains an approval
from the CEO/Deputy CEO/Alternate CEO, CIOO and CRO for the new
product.

Methodology and characteristics of market risk model

Value-at-risk (“VaR")

VaR is a technique in estimating the potential losses that could
occur on market risk-taking positions due to market rates and prices
movement under normal market conditions over a specified time
horizon within a given level of confidence. The model is designed
to capture different types of risk including interest rate risk, foreign
exchange risk, credit spread risk, equity risk, commodity risk and
volatility risk.

The VaR model used by the Group is based on the historical
simulation technique. The technique predicts the value at risk by
simulating or constructing position returns over time arise from the
historical changes in rates and prices in the interest rate, foreign
exchange, equity, credit and commodity markets.

N i
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Notes to the Financial Statements

36 Financial risk management (continued)

(b) Market risk management (continued)
Methodology and characteristics of market risk model (continued)
Value-at-risk (continued)
For the calculation of VaR, the Group uses the most recent two years
of historical market rates, prices and volatilities.

- For the trading positions, the VaR is calculated at 99%
confidence level for one-day holding period.

WEARBE -2017F X5 AREASREBRE
Trend in Market Risk - Trading Portfolio VaR in 2017

TISERESE -20165X 3 ARASRKE
Trend in Market Risk - Trading Portfolio VaR in 2016
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- For the AFS and related positions, VaR is calculated at 99%
confidence level for 250-day holding period.

TISAKREE —2017F A ER S HN250 K ARE
Trend in Market Risk - AFS Portfolio 250 Days VaR in 2017

TISAKREE —2016F A SR FH250 X ARE
Trend in Market Risk - AFS Portfolio 250 Days VaR in 2016
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cHERER (&) 36 Financial risk management (continued)
mERAKRER (&) (b) Market risk management (continued)

5 R S iR i 7 A b B (48)
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Methodology and characteristics of market risk model (continued)

Value-at-risk (continued)

- The Group back-tests the accuracy of its VaR model by
comparing the actual and hypothetical daily profit and loss,
adjusted for items including fees and commissions, against
the corresponding VaR figures. Statistically, the Group should
only expect losses in excess of VaR less than 1% of the time
over a one-year period. For the period from 1 January 2017 to
31 December 2017, there was 1 exception in the back-testing
results (for the period of 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2016,
there was 1 exception), which corresponds to the green zone
specified by the HKMA and the international Basel principles.

20178 A EEEEIAEENER KRB RIB L
The Group’s actual profit and loss back testing model in 2017
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2016 F A EEBEEAFAEENERKRERIBL
The Group's actual profit and loss back testing model in 2016
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36 Financial risk management (continued)

(b)

BZE2017F12A31B L FERTENERAZER S fiE

Histogram of daily mark-to-market revenue for year ended 31 December 2017
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Market risk management (continued)

Methodology and characteristics of market risk model (continued)
Value-at-risk (continued)

For the year ended ended 31 December 2017, the average daily
mark-to-market revenue from the Group's trading portfolio was a gain
of HK$389,000 (31 December 2016: gain of HK$784,000). The standard
deviation of the daily revenue was HK$2,300,000 (31 December 2016:
HK$3,626,000). The graphs below show the histograms of the Group's
daily mark-to-market revenue for the year ended 31 December 2017
and 2016, respectively.

BZE2016F12A31 8 L FERTEERAZER DB

Histogram of daily mark-to-market revenue for year ended 31 December 2016
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SRERERE (& 36 Financial risk management (continued)
mERBERE (&) (b) Market risk management (continued)
55 B R R B 5 £ & () Methodology and characteristics of market risk model (continued)
RE (& Value-at-risk (continued)
TRER T RZEMAMAIHEHEREFASH The tables below decomposes VaR by risk factors for the trading
[EPRELSFET positions and the AFS-related positions.
FERZBNMEAR - —XKEME%
1-day 99% VaR for the Trading Positions
2017 2016
) & T  EZE128318 35 &K 5 BE1A3A
Maximum  Minimum Mean At 31December  Maximum Minimum Mean At 31 December
BETr A%Tn B¥Tn BT A%Tr BT A%Tn BETT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
HME R Foreign exchange risk 11,517 1,633 4,212 6,541 10,209 1,736 5,750 5218
FIEE R Interest rate risk and
credit spread risk 11,402 3,043 5,284 8,560 18,777 1,839 9,203 7,535
Rk EELEE Total VaR 14,497 3,600 7,064 9,419 17,834 5456 10,241 8,548
HEAEHERFERNER - 250K EMEII%
250-day 99% VaR for the AFS-related Positions
2017 2016
) R ¥  #HE12A31R 35 &i& T #HE1AVA
Maximum  Minimum Mean At 31December  Maximum Minimum Mean At 31 December
BT  A%Tr BT BETT AT AETT  EETx BRI
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
MEE R Interest rate risk 699,840 489,706 581,892 633,987 716,878 454,445 567,496 516,111
EENERR Credit spread risk 760,070 521,472 674,459 698,877 695,030 357,681 568,628 652,742
BOREREESE Totl 250-day VaR 703,373 530,965 588,403 688,443 651,859 476,344 575,259 548314

R R

BAHRAHNERRESERREREH
7 BERNREERERRERENEN -
AEBERKERNGREMELITRETHS
RREDAH - ARERFASRELRE -
mEREREZEENEENARERZESF

HFER

Stress testing

Stress testing is implemented as a compliment of the VaR model in
order to capture remote, but plausible events. The Group uses both
sensitivity-based and historical-based scenarios for market risk stress
testing. The results are reported to senior management, MRC and
CRMC.

—E—tFRH
Annual Report 2017

151



152

B TSR MY

36

(b)

Notes to the Financial Statements

cHERER (&) 36 Financial risk management (continued)
mSRAKER (&) (b) Market risk management (continued)
SNE [ B Currency risk
REBEHIMNER IR B RN EE KGN T The Group's foreign exchange risk stems from taking foreign exchange
MBARIMNEERS « INEBHFIRE K EE positions from commercial dealings, investments in foreign currency
HIYNESET o NSRBI INE SR~ PR EEIT AL securities, and operations of the Group and its overseas branches and
BMSEREE g% E - AUEEINERR subsidiaries. The Group's foreign exchange positions are subject to
IR IEE R B MRS A SR NS exposure limits approved by the MRC. Methods adopted to measure
REMAEBEETE CERRINERRE) - BZE foreign currency risk exposure against corresponding limits include
201712 A31AIEEE - AEERIINEEE individual currency positions, overall foreign exchange positions and
BERMNFHEAERARBE1700007T1E K sensitivities such as Greeks (for foreign exchange options). For the year
(201645F : smF) B #4200007T) + HIZERZE ended 31 December 2017, the Group's average daily trading profit
7 7 3,319,0007T (20165F 7 4,218,000 and loss from foreign exchange positions was a loss of HK$ 170,000
JT) ° (2016: profit of HK$429,000) with a standard deviation of HK$3,319,000
(2016: HKS4,218,000).
REEBERIMNERRIAT ! Significant foreign currency exposures at the end of the reporting
period were as follows:
2017 2016
BER Equivalent in % ARY  Hfpgx ag % ARE  HpE% a8
BB HK$'000 usD RMB Others Total UsD RMB Others Tota
BEEE Spot assets 141,268,736 37,959,720 15,988,499 195,216,955 114088679 22567587 21,109,286 157,765,552
BEEE Spot liabilities (109,407,468) (31,800,014) (15,182,196)  (156,389,678) (100,045,764)  (23,601,752)  (18,447495) (142,095,011)
RHE A Forward purchases 242,910,664 118,395,468 26,779,741 388,085,873 136,317,842 82,003,097 22,741,690 241,062,629
RHEH Forward sales (275,877,590) (123,928,048) (25,342,446)  (425,148,084) (147,252316)  (81,995,171)  (25,026,979) (254,274,460)
HigEgRE Net options position 1,835,468 685,596  (2,379,021) 142,043 (1,864,206) 2126441 (281,536) (19,301)
5/ (B)BEE Net long/(short) position 729,810 1,312,722 (135,423) 1,907,109 1,244,235 1,100,202 94,966 2439403
EERTFE Net structural position - 718,963 48,676 767,639 - 668,583 48530 717,113

,HHEE:;%/ %E/_\ET
BEAE -

e T RATZER R fEH

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

The net option position is calculated using the Model User Approach,
which has been approved by the HKMA.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

36 Financial risk management (continued)

(b)

Market risk management (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis on foreign exchange exposures

() At 31 December 2017, if the HKD had weakened by 10%
against other currencies (other than the USD) with all other
variables held constant, the Group's profit after tax for the year
would have been higher by HK$98,305,000 (2016: higher by
HK$99,797,000), mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains
on the translation of non-HKD denominated financial assets
compensated by foreign exchange losses on the translation of
non-HKD denominated financial liabilities.

Conversely, if the HKD had strengthened by 10% against other
currencies (other than the USD) with all other variables held
constant, the Group'’s profit after tax for the year would have
been lower by HK$98,305,000 (2016: lower by HK$99,797,000).

(i) The Group is exposed to currency risks arising from financial
instruments that are denominated in USD, excluding structural
foreign exchange positions of RMB600,000,000 and MOP
50,000,000. As the USD is pegged to the HKD, the Group
considers the risk of movements in exchange rates between the
HKD and the USD to be insignificant.

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arise from its banking and trading
book. For the banking book, ALCO and RMG are responsible in
overseeing the interest rate exposure arised from its assets and
liabilities management. The treasury function ("CTU") is responsible
in managing the interest rate risk using different financial products
including interest rate derivatives, under which hedge accounting
treatment is adopted. The interest rate risk includes repricing risks,
basis risks, yield curve risks and embedded option risks, and are
governed by the Interest Rate Risk Management Policy for the Banking
Book.

For the trading book, MRC and RMG are responsible in overseeing
the interest rate exposure from its trading portfolio. Global Markets
is responsible in managing the interest rate risk using different
financial products including derivatives, under which mark-to-market
treatment is adopted. The interest rate risk includes basis risks, yield
curve risks and embedded option risks, and are governed by the
Market Risk Policy.

N i
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Notes to the Financial Statements

36 Financial risk management (continued)

(b)

Market risk management (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group's average daily
trading profit and loss related to interest rate and fixed income
trading strategy was a profit of HK$559,000 (31 December 2016: a
profit of HK$355,000), with a standard deviation of HKS$2,703,000 (31
December 2016: HK$2,427,000).

Sensitivity analysis on interest rate exposures

The Group measures the interest rate risk of the banking book by
conducting a sensitivity analysis of the interest rate exposure on a
quarterly basis. In the sensitivity analysis, the potential impacts of
movements in interest rates on the Group's earnings are assessed
assuming that the interest rates of three major currencies (HKD,
RMB and USD) will rise by 200 basis points on the repricing dates
(the midpoint of the corresponding time bands) of each asset and
liability. Nevertheless, the Group does not expect the interest rates of
these three major currencies to decrease by 200 basis points on the
repricing dates because of the current low level of interest rates. The
impacts on both the on- and off-statement of the financial position
items are included in the assessment.

2017 2016
BT AR EH B ARE ETT
HERBYETT Equivalent in HK$'000 HKD RMB usD HKD RMB usD
F = F3E200EE 2 Impact on earnings over the next
HARK12ME A 8 12 months if interest rates rise
AN E by 200 basis points 745,744 44,480 (316,985) 311482  (92,545)  (27,577)
A _E382001EE 25 Impact on economic value if interest
HIOEEENZE rates rise by 200 basis points 6,938  (95,328) 913,199 13,427 35942 571,177

FREIRT (B BRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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36 Financial risk management (continued)

(b) Market risk management (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis on interest rate exposures (continued)

This sensitivity analysis, which is based on an interest rate risk profile
of assets and liabilities, is used for risk management purposes only.
The analysis is based on the following assumptions:

(i) Thereis a parallel shift in the yield curve and in interest rates.

(i) There are no other changes to the portfolio.

(i) No loan prepayment is assumed as the majority of loans are on

a floating rate base.

(iv) Deposits without fixed maturity dates are assumed to be

repriced the next day.

Actual changes in the Group's net interest income and the economic
value resulting from the increase in interest rates may differ from the
results of this sensitivity analysis.

- FR
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Financial risk management (continued)

Market risk management (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The following tables indicate the mismatches of the expected next

repricing dates (or maturity dates, whichever are earlier) for the

interest bearing assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting

period.
2017
fEAR
(BfEEH) 33EANMEL 1550 E
3 months 21E B5E FiE
or less Over Over S5EDE Non-
#%  (including 3 months 1 year Over interest
Total overdue) tolyear  to5years 5 years bearing
BETT BETR  E¥Tr B%Tr  BETR  B¥Tn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Assets
B RERIT PRIFITH Cash and balances with banks, central
HiSREENET banks and other financial institutions 31,657,854 31,363,079 - - - 294,775
BT RRBITREM  Placements with and advances to banks,
TRMENTER XD central banks and other financial
institutions 47,402,438 46,983,043 419,395 - - -
RHMEEE Trading assets 5799539 213,287 103,983 630,309 80,661 4,771,299
RFPERREHR Loans and advances to customers and
HinEE other accounts 198,986,939 182,506,189 10,182,511 1,218,377 4,859 5,075,003
AL EES Available-for-sale securities 59,346,677 23,336,436 8,359,325 24,579,792 2,975,423 95,701
it BEE Non-interest bearing assets 1,115,237 - - - - 1,115,237
BELE Total assets 344,308,684 284,402,034 19,065,214 26,428,478 3,060,943 11,352,015
af Liabilities
BIREMEREERN Deposits and balances of banks and
BRkER other financial institutions 5,187,319 2,347,302 - - - 2,840,017
ZEER Deposits from customers 271,471,865 233,956,908 26,491,435 373,932 8,300 10,641,290
THRRERE Trading liabilities 4,824,483 - - - - 4,824,483
BRI E Certificates of deposit issued 3,421,769 3,421,769 - - - _
EBES Debt securities 3,584,064 - - 3,584,064 - -
EBER Loan capital 6,340,192 - - 6,340,192 - -
HingE Other liabilities 5,422,626 221,161 - - - 5,201,465
FHEERE Non-interest bearing liabilities 499,206 - - - - 499,206
BELEE Total liabilities 300,751,524 239,947,140 26,491,435 10,298,188 8,300 24,006,461
FZGREZE Interest rate sensitivity gap 44,454,894  (7,426,221) 16,130,290 3,052,643

156 HIERTT (EIR) BRA R

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Financial risk management (continued)

Market risk management (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

2016
MEAR
(BEAH) 3EANUE E N
3 months kS B5F it
or less Over Over ST E Non-
@E (including 3 months 1 year Over interest
Total overdue) to 1 year to 5 years 5 years bearing
BT A%t  A%Tr  A%Tr AT A%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EE Assets
B4 REFT  RRFITR Cash and balances with banks, central
Hib o mikEnNET banks and other financial institutions 27540433 27,196,660 - - - 343,773
ERIT PRFBITREM  Placements with and advances to banks,
SRBENTRRBR central banks and other financial
institutions 22889713 20486490 2403223 - - -
RHBLEE Trading assets 5,581,720 452,006 176,791 692,954 - 4259969
RFERREHR Loans and advances to customers and
Hi8RE other accounts 191,286,538 163,883,063  16441,680 1,263,069 6931 9691795
AfHERES Available-for-sale securities 58204271 23202930 16504459 15810998 2,586,152 99,732
FHEEE Non-interest bearing assets 914,280 - - - - 914,280
BEAR Total assets 306416955 235221149 35526153 17,767,021 2593083 15,309,549
af Liabilities
RITREM S BEER Deposits and balances of banks and
BRRER other financial institutions 5256660 3,622,130 227,753 - - 1406777
BPEX Deposits from customers 235574700 204,607,360 20,761,208 151,679 - 10054453
RHBRARE Trading liabilities 3,996,444 - - - - 399,444
BETERE Certificates of deposit issued 10593445 6400275 4,193,170 - - -
BEBER Loan capital 8,705,837 - 2308602 6397,235 - -
HiaE Other liabilities 10,138,928 416,816 - - - 9722112
FHRERE Non-interest bearing liabilities 196,925 - - - - 196,925
2fE8E Total liabilities 274462939 215046581 27490733 6548914 - 25376711
FZGREZE Interest rate sensitivity gap 20174568 8035420 11218107 2,593,083
.

Annual Report 2017
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Notes to the Financial Statements

36 Financial risk management (continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group may not be able to fund
an increase in assets or meet obligations as they fall due without
incurring unacceptable losses. Such funding liquidity risk arises from
the maturity mismatch of the assets and liabilities that the Group
manages. Market liquidity risk is a risk that occurs when additional
costs are involved in disposing of a position in the market under
abnormal or stressed market conditions. Under these conditions, the
bid-ask spreads for the position are much wider than usual or there
could even be an extreme lack of buyers. As a result, the Bank will
incur extra costs to dispose of the position.

The liquidity risk management framework is as follows:

- The management of the Group's liquidity risk is governed by
the Liquidity Management Policy, approved by the Asset and
Liability Committee (“ALCO") and endorsed by the CRMC.

- The CRMC is delegated by the Board of Directors to oversee the
Group’s liquidity risk management. Its main responsibilities are
to review and approve policies, set strategies, and define risk
appetite and tolerance limits.

- The ALCO is established by the Chief Executive Officer and
approved by the CRMC as the governing body responsible for
formulating and implementing policies, strategies, guidelines
and limit structures. It also identifies, measures and monitors
the Group’s liquidity risk profile to ensure current and future
funding requirements are met. In addition, the ALCO monitors
a set of risk indicators for liquidity risk. Daily liquidity stress
testing, which includes general market, institution-specific
and combined (general market and institution- specific) stress
scenarios, is conducted by the Risk Management Group, and
the stress results are regularly reviewed by the ALCO to assess
the current risk tolerance level and the level of the liquidity
cushion. A Contingency Funding Plan is established which sets
out the strategies for addressing liquidity stress situations. The
plan contains a set of policies, procedures and action plans, with
clearly established lines of responsibility, as well as invocation
and escalation procedures. This plan is reviewed and approved
by the ALCO on a regular basis.
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36 Financial risk management (continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk management (continued)

- Daily liquidity management is managed by the Central
Treasury Unit to monitor funding requirements. This unit is
supported by other functional departments including the
Financial Management Group and Risk Management Group,
which monitor the liquidity risk and provide regular reports
to the management, committees and local regulatory bodies.
Limits for net cash flow per different time bucket under stress
scenarios have been set to ensure that adequate funding and
liquid assets are available to meet liquidity needs. Moreover,
limits, triggers or alerts are set for other liquidity risk indicators
such as the statutory liquidity ratios, the loan-to-deposit ratio,
the currency mismatch ratio and the maturity mismatch ratio.
Both quantitative and qualitative measures are employed to
identify and measure market liquidity risk. Limits and alert levels
related to market and funding liquidity risk are monitored
and reported by the Financial Management Group or Risk
Management Group to the ALCO to review and approve on a
regular basis. The Audit Department performs periodic reviews
to ensure liquidity risk management functions are carried out
effectively.

Liquidity management is conducted at the Group and the Bank
levels, and at individual overseas branches and subsidiaries. Financial
subsidiaries and overseas branches are responsible for implementing
their own liquidity management policies under the framework
established by the ALCO and local regulatory requirements, taking
into account their different liquidity risk characteristics. The liquidity
situation of overseas branches and subsidiaries falls under the
overall supervision of the ALCO. Policy and respective counterparty
limits are set for overseas branches and subsidiaries in respect of
the funding support extended from the head office. The Group
expects all business units to contribute to the success of managing
liquidity under normal and contingency situations by maintaining a
rapport with depositors, customers, interbank counterparties, related
companies and the HKMA.

N i
Annual Report 2017

159



160

B TSR MY

36 SEERER (&)

() RBESEBRERE (&)
MBECERZBRRETRER KBRS
AR ER - REESARNEEER
BN EEEZRBIEENR - Btk - RNEE
BUATzRBESEERER

- EERRENMETHARGRE
FIRAEREHEBROFHESE
LB

— EERRBABETHABETRTIH
HEOREFERM - WEA AR
1R

~ ERABR NEEREOET B
PR RBIILE - LR - B
KRS E

— HREEEFEAAEBRIBEM - A
ERBENZ T2 BEE KR

- EMBEAEHEGSAERSIELL
F-DEREMEFRERABERE X
FERLL RIDEE BR R AFEE 2R

- REFBEIEARET BAESFILKL
Bl UHRRTTESNEEE
i)

— HEHMEMEHELA - BIRETE
KRB R R FHA R

- RENEZBEAZEZTR AEE
RBERERBDEE BRAZLAR
BRI zES - BN AEBER2RE
EERMRENEE SRR AER - MR
ERBARERPDEENHE

— FEERRERETS

- EHARSEREINBESRR
)

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

36

(c)

Financial risk management (continued)

Liquidity risk management (continued)

The objective of liquidity management is to meet obligations payable
under normal and emergency circumstances, to fund asset growth
and to comply with the statutory liquidity requirements. To achieve
this, the following liquidity management processes are in place:

- Projecting cash flows in normal and various stress scenarios,
using the net mismatch gap between assets and liabilities to
estimate the prospective net funding requirement

- Factoring potential drawdown on irrevocable committed
facilities into our normal and stress scenarios to cater for
contingent liquidity risk

- Monitoring the statutory liquidity ratio, the loan-to-deposit ratio,
the currency mismatch ratio and the maturity mismatch ratio
against internal and/or regulatory requirements

- Ensuring a sound and diversified range of funding sources,
through monitoring the structure and the stability of the
deposit portfolio

- Projecting the statutory liquidity ratios regularly for the short to
medium term to permit early detection of liquidity issues and to
ensure the ratios are within statutory requirements and internal
triggers

- Projecting a high-level funding requirement and funding
structure during the annual budget process to ensure sufficient
funding and an appropriate funding mix

- Conducting liquidity risk assessment before launching a new
product

- Maintaining High Quality Liquid Assets ("HQLA") comprising
cash and investment grade securities as a cushion against
unexpected funding needs. The amount of HQLA that the
Group maintains is determined with reference to the statutory
requirement and the results of the liquidity stress tests

- Maintaining access to the interbank money market

- Maintaining a funding programme to tap debt funding on a
regular basis
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36 Financial risk management (continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk management (continued)

- Monitoring the Group's collateral requirement. Periodically
assess and review the additional collateral required under
derivative contracts and credit downgrade events. Based on
the positions at 31 December 2017, in the event of a 2-notch
downgrade, the impact on the Group's additional collateral
requirement is minimal.

- Maintaining a Contingency Funding Plan, which integrates
with the results of the scenarios and assumptions used in the
stress test, including setting early warning indicators (including
internal and market indicators), and describing actions to be
taken in the event of a stress crisis, so as to minimise adverse
long-term implications for business.

The Group funds its operations through a diversified funding source,
primarily from the retail and corporate customer deposits. At the same
time, it also participates in the wholesale funding market through the
issuance of certificates of deposit ("CDs") to secure another source of
term funding and to enable diversification of funding sources. Deposit
tenor mix and debt maturities are regularly monitored to ensure there
is an appropriate funding maturity mix.

The Group was designated by the HKMA as Category 1 institution with
effect from 1 October 2017. As a result, under the Banking (Liquidity)
Rules, the Group being a Category 1 institution is required to maintain
a Liquidity Coverage Ratio ("LCR") above the statutory minimum
requirement, which superseded the regulatory requirements on
the Liquidity Maintenance Ratio (“LMR"). An appropriate level and
currency mix of HQLA has been maintained to ensure that the
Group could handle sudden drains in market liquidity due to adverse
or unexpected economic events under the HKMA's regulatory
framework. The liquidity position of the Group remained strong in
2017. As of 30 September 2017, the Group's average LMR was 59.6%
(for the year ended 31 December 2016: 60.8%) and as of 31 December
2017, the Group's average LCR was 177.6%.
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36

(c)

Financial risk management (continued)

Liquidity risk management (continued)

The Group always maintains sufficient cash and liquid positions as
well as a pool of HQLA as a liquidity cushion that can be liquidated in
stress scenarios. The majority of HOLA included in the LCR is Level 1
assets as defined in Banking (Liquidity) Rules. The below table shows
the composition of the Group’s HQLA in the LCR framework.

nrEREE (FHE)
R20175F
12B31BFEER
Weighted amount
(average value)

at quarter ended
31 December 2017

BT T

HK$'000

—REE Level 1 assets 28,917,610
—REE Level 2 assets 7,142,153
4azg Total 36,059,763

RIBECRTTR (BER) RAD > ARERAS
EREENEERBERREEAEASER
BESHER  YAERTREANEEE
AEEE ] #BIVETES °

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

For the purposes of compliance with Banking (Disclosure) Rules,
information relating to the Group's liquidity are published by using
standard disclosure templates as specified by the HKMA and they
can be viewed in the Regulatory Disclosures section of our Bank's
corporate website at www.cncbinternational.com.



B TSR MY

36

(c)

TREREE (&)

Notes to the Financial Statements

36 Financial risk management (continued)

RBELRERER (&) (c) Liquidity risk management (continued)

() IREER THIREIELL B E KRB EST (i) Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity
NTEBHESMEAEEREZESGHE The following maturity profile is based on the remaining period
RS THRAZE - at the end of the reporting period date to the contractual

maturity date.
BN AT EER Be A 2 R AT As the trading portfolios may be sold before maturity, or
HE - MEPER J 2B HEEX deposits from customers may mature without being withdrawn,
WA TR - Bt - S43EA the contractual maturity dates do not represent the expected
PREFETEERRRSRENBE - dates of future cash flows.
2017
MEAML 3EANLE  1ENE
E3f8R E1E 13
3 months 1year 5 years
IREE 1EAR or less or less orless  SEHNE BHE
@5 Repayable Within ~ butover  butover  butover Over AH
Total ondemand ~ Tmonth ~ Tmonth  3months 1year 5years  Undated
BSTn  RMTR  B¥Tn  AMTn  BMTn  EMTn  BETR  BMTn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Assets
REREST PRBFTR  Cash and balances with banks, central banks

EhEBUENLER and other financial institutions 31,657,854 30,700,892 - - - - - 956962
AT pRFAREM Placements with and advances to banks,

SREENETRER central banks and other financial institutions 47,402,438 - 34613848 12369195 419,395 - - -
THRREE Trading assets 5799,539 4,770,495 213,103 - 103,779 630,698 80,660 804
REENRBIR Loans and advances to customers

EfEE and other accounts 198,986,939 5964803 18,761,646 17,521,562 57,021,544 71,587,931 23,104,398 5,025,055
THIERS Available-for-sale securities 59,346,677 - 7005308 15018183 8,689,867 25466195  2,975423 91,701
AEYHE Tax recoverable 29,047 - - - 29,047 - - -
EIHRSAE Undated assets 1,086,190 - - - - - - 1,086,190
BESE Total assets 344,308,684 41,436,190 60,693,905 44908940 66,263,632 97,684,824 26,160,481 7,160,712
af Liabilities
BREMERERED Deposits and balances of banks and

k&R other financial institutions 5187319 2931754 693491 1535988 26,086 - - -
EFER Deposits from customers MATIEE5 98294705 76423268 69880222 26491435 373935 8,300 -
THRREE Trading liabilities 4824483 4,824,483 - - - - - -
EETRHE Certificates of depost issued 3,421,769 - 1406774 2,014,995 - - - -
EEER Debt securities 3,584,064 - - - - 3,584,064 - -
KHHE Current taxation 497,575 - - - 491575 - - -
Efpafk Other liabiltes 5,422,626 - MTSE1 4I5TT 117846 - - 413964
BRER Loan capital 6,340,192 - - - - 6,340,192 - -
EHRARER Undated liabiliies 1,631 - - - - . - 1,631
AR Total liabilities 300,751,524 106,050,942 78,941,094 74,178,782 27,132,942 10,298,191 8300 4141273
BE-BEEE Asset-liability gap (64,614752) (18,247,189) (29,269,842) 39,130,690 87,386,633 26,152,181

—E—tFRH
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Notes to the Financial Statements

36 Financial risk management (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk management (continued)

(i) Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity (continued)

(%)
2017
WEARL 3fEAMLE 1ML
E3f8A BE E5F
3 months 1year 5years
IBEE  1EAR orless o less orless  SELE B
B% Repayable  Within  butover  butover  butover Over A&
Total ondemand  Tmonth  Tmonth 3 months 1year Syears  Undated
BT RBETn BETn B¥Tn B%Tn A%Tn  AETn  A%Tx
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
H: Of which:
BENENE Certificates of deposit held
-BHARSRREE - included in trading assets 213,103 - 213103 - - - - -
-BE AT SRS ~included in available-forsale securities 10,622,679 - 1924650 6,853,106 1750317 94,606 - -
10,835,782 - 2137753 6,853,106 1,750,317 94,606 - -
BENERRS Debt securities held
-BHARGRREE - included in trading assets 815,137 - - - 103,779 630,698 80,660 -
- ATHLEES - included in available-for-sale securities 36,950,662 - 608831  1,055269 6939549 25371590 2975423 -
37,765,799 - 608,831 1055269  7,043328 26,002,288 3,056,083 -
BRIEEE Certificates of deposit issued 3,421,769 - 1,406,774 2,014,995 - - - -

FREIRT (B BRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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36 Financial risk management (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk management (continued)

RIZER THIRITEL B ER B EST (i) Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity (continued)
(&)
2016
WEANE SEAME  1ENE
Z3fiA EE E5%
3months 1 year 5years
FEEE  1ERR or less or less oless  SEMLE B
@%  Repayable Within -~ butover — butover  butover Over =)
Total ondemand  Tmonth  Tmonth  3months 1 year Syears  Undated
AETT BRTR AT AT A%Tn A%t AT AETr
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
& Assets
BERAERT PRFITR Cashand balances with banks, central banks

Ht e RkENER and other finandial institutions 27540433 26,458,664 - - - - - 1,081,769
EHT RABTRER  Placements with and advances to banks,

SRMENETRET central banks and other financial institutions 22,889,713 - 6663160 13803935 2422609 - - -
RERGEE Trading assets 5581720 4258891 170724 280825 176901 693301 - 1078
EPERRBAR Loans and advances to customers

LR and other accounts 191,286,538 1341078 12227333 22008904 72222835 5839140 20273375 4816873
AREEERS Available-for-sale securities 58204271 - 133325 10658003 16631015 16910044 2586152 95732
AEYEE Tax recoverable 187 - - - 187 - - -
BIRARAE Undated assets 914093 - - - - - - 914093
EEAE Total assets 306416955 32058633 30384551 46751667 91453547 75999485 22859527 6,909,545
&f Liabilities
BRE e BEED Deposits and balances of banks and

ERRER other financial institutions 5,256,600 1,340,355 2416424 1272128 27753 - - -
REFS Deposits from customers 235574700 68240590 60,100,353 84,046,888 23,035,189 151,680 - -
R5MBARE Trading iabiltes 399444 3996444 - - - - - -
BETERE Certificates of deposit ssued 1059345 - 855 1950935 7703508 100446 - -
;A Current taxation 195,405 - - - 195,405 - - -
Hit B Other liablites 10138928 - 1849287 181G 2070550 891443 - 3516013
EHER Loan capital 8,705,837 - - - 2318117 6387700 - -
EXRAMAE Undated liabilities 1520 - - - - - - 1520
BE4E Total liabilities 2714462939 73577389 65204620 89,081,586 35550522 7,531,289 - 351753
EE-REEE Asset-liability gap (41518,756)  (34820069) (42329919) 55903025 6846819 22859527

—E—tFR
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36 SRIAMER (2) 36 Financial risk management (continued)
(0 FRBESRBREE (&) (c) Liquidity risk management (continued)
() RIZERTHIEELEBEER B ESIT (i) Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity (continued)
(&)
2016

MEANLE 3EAMLE  1EME
23(HA ks 25F

3months 1 year 5 years
MEEE @AM or less or less oless  SEMLE B
@%  Repayable Within -~ butover — butover  butover Over =)
Total ondemand  Tmonth  Tmonth  3months 1 year Syears  Undated

BRTT RETT R%Tn A%t BBt BMTn A%Tn A%Tn
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000

A Of which:
BENETR Certificates of deposit held
—~BE AT L EES -included in available-for-sale securities 15,922,277 - 1673112 5670032 8182340 396,793 - -
BRENERES Debt securities held
—BHARSAFEE  -included in trading assets 1321751 S04 8085 176901 693,301 - -
—BHATMEEERS  —includedinavalablefor-sale securities 29,074,574 S 1804479 1309320 6861372 16513252 2586151 -
30396325 S 197503 1590045 7038273 17006553 2586151 -
BROERE Certificates of deposit issued 10,593445 - 838556 1950935 7703508 100446 - -

166] RIERIT(EIFR)BRAF
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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36 SRIRAKMER (& 36 Financial risk management (continued)
(0 RBESEAMREE (&) (c) Liquidity risk management (continued)

(i)  ZEEBEFERE AT E ST (i) Analysis of the residual contractual maturities of financial liabilities
INTHRBGBRSTERAEEN S The following maturity profile shows the undiscounted cash
BMEENEREARESONNBRAZHET flows of the Group's financial liabilities on the basis of their
HRAENARITRBASRE - earliest possible contractual maturity.

2017
AR MEANE 1EHE
£3fAA 353 333
BeTBMAN PEEE EAR 3months 1year 5 years SERE
Gross Repayable Within or less but o less but orless but Over
cash flows on demand Tmonth  overTmonth  over3months over 1 year 5 years
AR LA AR BRI BT AR ARt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FOIRAMEREES  Deposits and balances of banks
FRRsR and other financial institutions 5,197,200 2,931,754 695,349 1,543,800 26297 - -
ZEHH Deposits from customers 272,486,804 98,294,705 76,596,642 70,218,250 26,972,929 394,609 9,669
BRTEE Certficates of deposit issued 3,438,116 - 1414119 2,023,997 - - -
BRIERES Debt securities issued 4,069,332 - - - 158,172 3,911,160 -
ERER Loan capital 7,134,721 - - - 409,317 6,725,404 -
TEeRIA Derivative financial instruments 1,686,747 - 42,081 183,451 499,816 814,513 146,886
294,012,920 101,226,459 78,748,191 73,969,498 28,066,531 11,845,686 156,555
2016
1EAVE 3ERME 1ENE
X6l 2% 5%
Renegg DEEE AR 3months 1 year 5 years SEUE
Gross Repayable Within or less but or less but or less but Over
cash flows ondemand Imonth  overTmonth  over 3months over T year 5 years
YT BT BT BT YT BETT BT
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK9000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK'000 HK9'000
RIREMAREREE  Deposits and balances of banks
FaRER and other financial institutions 5,270,341 1,340,355 2,418,966 1,281,734 229,286 - -
LS Deposits from customers 236467871 68,240,590 60248353 84403210 234169% 158,724 -
BRTEE Certficates of deposit issued 10,748,944 - 845306 1,993,068 7809851 100719 -
[EFEx Loan capia 9902501 - - 45075 2771702 7079724 -
EeRIE Derivative financial instruments 1936933 - 141,993 197,068 594036 865,242 138,39
264,326,590 69,580,945 63654618 87,920,355 34,827,869 8,204,409 138,394

—E—LER 67
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36

(d)

Financial risk management (continued)

Capital management
The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are:

- to comply with the capital requirements set by the banking
regulators in the markets where the entities within the Group
operate;

- to maintain a strong capital base to support the development
of its business; and

- tosafeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders.

The HKMA sets and monitors capital requirements for the Group as
a whole. An individual banking subsidiary is directly regulated by its
local banking supervisor. The HKMA requires that the Group maintain
three prescribed minimum risk-weighted capital ratios: Common
Equity Tier 1 ("CET1") capital ratio, Tier 1 capital ratio and total capital
ratio. In accordance with the Banking (Capital) (Amendment) Rules
2014 which came into effect on 1 January 2015, the Basel Il capital
buffers, namely capital conservation buffer ("“CCB") which is designed
to ensure that banks build up capital outside periods of stress of
2.5% of risk-weighted amounts and countercyclical capital buffer
("CCyB") which is set on an individual country basis and is built up
during periods of excessive credit growth, came into operation. Both
would be gradually phased in from 1 January 2016 to 1 January 2019.
The HKMA announced a CCyB ratio for Hong Kong of 0.625%, 1.25%,
1.875% and 2.5% of risk-weighted amounts from 1 January 2016, 1
January 2017, 1 January 2018 and 1 January 2019 respectively. Basel
Il framework also introduced a leverage ratio as a non-risk-based
backstop limit, to supplement risk-based capital requirements. It
provides for a parallel run period from January 2013 to January 2017.
On 1 January 2018, the Banking (Capital) (Amendment) Rules 2017
came into operation and prescribed the statutory minimum leverage
ratio of 3%.

The Group adopts the standardised approach of calculating market
risk in its trading portfolios and risk weightings for credit risk, and
the basic indicator approach for operational risk. Banking operations
are categorised as either trading or banking book, and risk-weighted
amounts are determined according to specified requirements
that seek to reflect the varying levels of risk attached to assets and
off-balance sheet exposures.



B TSR MY

36

(d)

TREREE (&)

EXREE (&)
AREBER S E R ME B E NGRS
AR S AR W A e AR R & KA B
HETR R A B AT RV E RN 2 IS
E 2 EBE - - R ETR LA
BERGRE - RTELERAENER SR
REVEATRENR  AEEETALERT
RABREFUATEHEE - ERBKNE R
Ko BAMETERE -—XHERE ST TNE
ARER o I  AFERERNEEBEREFH —
MOARBRANEEEFTEEAER - IE
BEFETEANRE BT ERERITER
RESER  RREBER - Bllwis MEE
EXR - BARENBRERBREETZIEARAT
B DHERAKENEAT R L ERESRA
R EETRKE REEE Bk - NEREITE B
TR - ARERESRIRIER RIBE IR
BHBERT - HRBRMERNRANZED K
R - BOARRRSAKBIRME TEAT
NMEHNBEZEZ R - AKRFE 2 E6H
RIEE o

BRRITEEBREME  AERELERT R X
EREENER - NER - ARENERNE
BRI ESKED -

201712 A3 BNEARTREERTIRAE
EREeEREEHRTAREE THEAR
REREEE FFIETE - WS BB (RITE
&G T CERITEE (BAR) #HA)) BU#RE o

B E2017F 2016512 A31H IFEE - A&
B &k HER X EENER—HETAEIN
A EAES - AEMEALRESR
SERERNFIELTAKFE -

Notes to the Financial Statements

36

(d)

Financial risk management (continued)

Capital management (continued)

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might otherwise be possible with greater gearing, and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes
in economic conditions. In order to comply with the risk-based
supervisory framework of capital adequacy stipulated by the HKMA,
the Group conducts ICAAP, which assesses the capital requirement
for Pillar 2 risks and hence the capital requirement for Pillar 1 and 2
is derived. Moreover, as part of the capital management policy and
to ensure capital adequacy, the Group conducts capital planning
annually, which takes into account the strategic focus, future business
growth, risk appetite and regulatory requirement. The plan covers
the issuance of capital instruments, if required, to ensure the Group's
capital ratios are well above their respective internal monitoring levels
and regulatory requirement. Regular stress testing is performed to
ensure that the impact of extreme but plausible scenarios on the risk
profile and capital position is considered. Stress testing also gives an
insight into the potential impact of significant adverse events and
how these could be mitigated.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its capital
structure on the basis of the capital adequacy ratio. There have been
no material changes in the Group'’s policy on the management of
capital during the year.

The capital adequacy ratios at 31 December 2017 were computed on
the consolidated basis of the Group and some subsidiaries as specified
by the HKMA for its regulatory purposes, and are in accordance with
the Banking (Capital) Rules of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.

The Group and its individually regulated operations have complied
with all externally imposed capital requirements throughout the year
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, and the Group's capital ratios are
well above the minimum required ratios set by the HKMA.
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36 Financial risk management (continued)

(e)

Operational risk management

Definition of operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed
internal processes, people and systems or from external events.

Governance framework

The Group has established an Operational Risk Governance
Framework ("ORGF") to identify, assess, mitigate, control, monitor
and report operational risk. The ORGF encompasses every member
within the Group and is governed by policies and guidelines which
document the minimum requirements to ensure a consistent
approach to manage operational risks. Operational risk management
("ORM") relevant matters are under the oversight of the Credit & Risk
Management Committee ("CRMC"), a subcommittee of the Board of
Directors, and the Operational Risk Management Committee ("ORMC"),
a committee led by management. Implementation of ORM plans and
tools is driven by the Operational Risk and Control department and
senior management of business and support units.

Management of operational risk

Day-to-day operational risk management lies with our business units,
support units and the Operational Risk and Control Head ("ORCH") of
each unit assists the respective heads in this regard.

The Operational Risk and Control department assists management
in meeting their responsibility of understanding and managing
operational risk and ensures the development and consistent
application of operational risk policies, processes and procedures
throughout the Group. Business and support units are responsible for
monitoring operational risks and tracking Key Risk Indicators in their
areas. The Operational Risk and Control department monitors the
Group's overall operational risk exposures and ensures that all material
risks are promptly and appropriately escalated to the ORMC, CRMC
and senior management of the Group for their attention.

The Audit department examines and evaluates the adequacy and
control effectiveness of the ORGF on an ongoing basis.
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36 Financial risk management (continued)

(e)

Operational risk management (continued)

Management of operational risk (continued)

A web-based learning programme on operational risks is required
for all new joiners and an annual refresher training on ORGF is
compulsory for all staff. Training workshops led by the Operational
Risk and Control department are offered to business and support units
with the objectives of raising operational risk awareness, familiarizing
with the ORM tools and enhancing employees’ understanding of the
ORGF along with their roles, responsibilities and accountabilities. This
is further reinforced by strong, visible management support which
encourages staff to embrace and pursue operational excellence. In
December 2017, a Fraud Risk Management team was established to
further enhance the Group’s fraud risk management framework.

Risk assessments are conducted on all outsourced activities, new
products and large projects.

Tools and methodologies
The Group identifies, assesses, monitors and reports on operational
risk through the ORM tools and systems as set out below:

- Operational Risk & Control Self-Assessment (“RCSA”) is a tool to
identify and assess the level of operational risk and effectiveness
of control. RCSA has been rolled out across the business and
support units under the guidance of the Operational Risk
and Control department. RCSA leaders are nominated by the
management of each business and support unit to conduct
self-assessments and identify key risk factors in their daily
business and support functions. Each key risk factor is assessed
and quantified for financial impact, in terms of the estimated
loss impact of each occurrence and estimated number of
occurrences. In addition to the financial impact assessment,
non-financial impacts including customer, regulatory and
reputation impacts are also assessed taking into considerations
of both likelihood of risk materializing and severity of impact.

- Key Risk Indicators ("KRIs") are statistical metrics that take various
risk factors into consideration and serve to provide early warning
signals for management’s monitoring and action. Through
regular monitoring of these KRIs, areas of potential operational
control weaknesses can be identified at an early stage and
addressed promptly. KRIs are developed at two levels, namely
the group and the unit level. Unit level KRIs are developed by
the respective units, and are monitored and tracked for progress
towards completion of applicable mitigation plans. Thresholds
are established for each business unit/service support unit KRl
by reference to the business’ acceptable risk level for each risk
factor.
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36

(e)

Financial risk management (continued)

Operational risk management (continued)

Tools and methodologies (continued)

- Operational risk incidents are reported into a centralized
operational loss database called the Incident Reporting System
("IRS"). Through the IRS, the Operational Risk and Control
department ensures all material operational risk incidents are
registered, properly investigated, with corrective and preventive
actions promptly executed according to agreed timelines.
The IRS data serves as a centralized database to produce
regular reports for senior management, ORMC and CRMC
review of impact of significant incidents and monitoring of the
operational risk trends. An escalation protocol is in place to
ensure that operational risk incidents with significant impact
are reported to the regulatory authorities, if deemed necessary.
Lesser impact operational risk events are also collected to assist
trend analysis and provide a more forward looking perspective
of potential risk issues that warrant for closer attention.

- Operational Risk Dashboard ("ORD") provides management with
an overview of the key operational risk issues including but not
limited to the progress of the RCSA reviews and KRI evaluation
results. This information is submitted to the ORMC monthly
and relevant summarized information is submitted to the
CRMC quarterly as part of the Group-wide Risk Status Update
Report. The Group-wide Risk Status Update Report captures
the implementation status of ORM initiatives, contains analyses
on the trend of operational losses, highlights operational risk
incidents that have a material impact on the Group, and lists
incident details during the reporting period.

The Group will continuously fine-tune and enhance its operational risk
management framewaork in line with industrial developments.

The Group’s long-term goal is to cultivate a proactive, responsible
and accountable culture on ORM, and achieve operational excellence
through robust and continuous operational risk management.
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36 Financial risk management (continued)

(f)

(9)

Legal risk management

The Group remains abreast of all legal and regulatory requirements
applicable to its governance and operations, and continuously
seeks to develop its people, enhance its systems and processes, and
implement changes as necessary to meet the demands and create
awareness of such requirements. Regular reviews are conducted with
respect to the Group's policies and procedures to ensure the same
reflect the latest legal and regulatory requirements. Issuance of new or
substantially revised policies and procedures are often accompanied
by relevant training. There is a strong process in place to ensure legal
and regulatory risks are identified, monitored and mitigated. Any
significant matters that arise relating to such risks are reported as
appropriate by either the Legal or Compliance function to the Group's
Audit Committee, the CRMC or senior management.

The Legal Department (“Legal”) and Compliance Department
("Compliance”) have been key partners in the business, providing
legal and compliance advice and support to all parts of the Group and
working with business and support units to ensure relevant controls
are in place. In 2017, Legal and Compliance were actively involved
in new product launches and new business initiatives, strategically
important transactions and commercial agreements, outsourcing
arrangements as well as day-to-day matters arising from the Group's
business. Legal and Compliance will remain heavily involved in
monitoring and ensuring compliance with changing regulatory
requirements in various areas impacting the Group, and will continue
to advise and support the Group in meeting the legal and regulatory
challenges that lay ahead.

Strategic and reputation risk management

Strategic risk management refers to the Group's efforts to develop,
uphold and implement strategic decisions related to its long-term
growth and development. Reputation risk management refers to
the Group's efforts to protect its brand name and business franchise
from any potential damages arising from negative publicity and
information about its business practices, conduct or financial
condition.

The CRMC of the Group meets regularly to monitor and oversee the
Group's strategic and reputation risks. Senior management places
high priority on ensuring that the Group’s business and operational
strategies are appropriately defined and are executed professionally
and promptly. Such strategies are reviewed regularly to enable
the Group to respond efficiently to changes in its operating and
regulatory environment. Business priorities, set on a bank-wide basis,
as well as for individual business and functional units, are aligned to
support the Group's strategies, and measurable targets are assigned
to ensure execution excellence. Great care is also taken to protect the
Group's reputation and to maximise its brand equity. This includes
ongoing efforts to monitor and ensure high standards of customer
satisfaction, operational efficiency, legal and regulatory compliance,
public communication and issues management.
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(a)
(i)
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Fair value hierarchy

Financial instruments measured at fair value

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

Fair value estimates are generally subjective in nature, and are

made at a specific point in time based on the characteristics

of the financial instruments and relevant market information.

Fair value is determined according to the following fair value

hierarchy:
R2017812831 BN A A BEHE
Fair value measurements at 31 December 2017 using
HREER TEM
#Z12A31A ERMSEE HIE  FTEENHE
MEE (E18) TRRNEE (%34)
(#%)  Quoted pricesin ($280) Significant
Fair value active market for Significant other unobservable
at 31 December identical assets ~ observable input input
(Total) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
BETR BETT BETT BETT
BERAREBENE Recurring fair value measurements HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Assets
RHBREE Trading assets
—BENENE - Certificate of deposits held 213,103 213,103 - -
- EHES - Debt securities 815,137 785,249 29,888 -
-REES - Investment funds 804 - - 804
—{TETANERAEE ~ Positive fair value of derivatives 4,770,495 1,743 4,768,752 -
5,799,539 1,000,095 4,798,640 804
HHEES Available-for-sale securities
~BENERE - Certificates of deposit held 10,622,679 125,199 10,497,480 -
-BEH(BENMNEALEE) ~Treasury bills (including Exchange Fund Bills) 11,681,635 11,681,635 - -
-EBES - Debt securities 36,950,662 34,344,626 2,602,036 4,000
—EnES - Equity securities 91,701 - - 91,701
59,346,677 46,151,460 13,099,516 95,701
65,146,216 47,151,555 17,898,156 96,505
=L Liabilities
RHBEaE Trading liabilities
—-TETANBRREE - Negative fair value of derivatives 4,824,483 478 4,824,005 -

FREIRT (B BRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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37

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

(continued)

(a)
(i)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

016F 1231 B AL BEE

Fair value measurements at 31 December 2016 using

HREER TE7
HZ12A318 EEMISHE EHIE  FUBRENEER
“rfEE (FE1R) ERNEE (E38)
(%) Quoted pricesin (F28) Significant
Fair value at active market for Significant other unobservable
31 December identical assets observable input input
(Total) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
BT BT BETT BETT
REMANEETE Recurring fair value measurements HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
EE Assets
RHBREE Trading assets
-EHES - Debt securities 1,321,751 649,073 672,678 -
-REHES - Investment funds 1,078 - - 1,078
—fTETAMENLER - Positive fair value of derivatives 4,258,891 494 4258397 -
5,581,720 649,567 4,931,075 1,078
M EES Available-for-sale securities
-BENERE - Certificates of deposit held 15,922,277 28065 15,894,212 -
-AEH BENEELER) ~Treasury bills (including Exchange Fund Bills) 13,111,688 13,111,688 - -
-EBES - Debt securities 29074574 24,822,266 4248308 4,000
-EEES ~ Equity securities 95,732 72,236 - 23,49
58,204,271 38,034,255 20,142,520 274%
63,785,991 38,683,822 25,073,595 28574
af Liabilities
RHRBEE Trading liabilities
—{TETAMNARAER - Negative fair value of derivatives 3,996,444 - 3996444 -

HZE2017F K2016F12A31BEIE - &
ABEBLREIFMER ZELIRE

BANTRITAER -

For the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, there were
no significant transfers of financial instruments between level 1
and level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

—EtER 7S
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37

(a)

Fair value measurement of financial instruments
(continued)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

(i)

Determination of fair value

The Group measures fair value using the following fair value
hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in
making the measurements:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market price in active markets for
identical instruments at the measurement date.

Level 2 -

() Quoted market price for identical or similar instruments
that are not active;

(i) Valuation techniques based on observable inputs, either
directly or indirectly, where all significant inputs are
observable from market data. This category includes
financial instruments with quoted prices in active markets
for similar instruments; or quoted prices in markets that
are considered less than active for identical or similar
instruments.

Level 3 — Valuation techniques using significant unobservable
inputs where the valuation techniques include one or more
significant inputs that are unobservable. This category includes
financial instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for
similar instruments where significant unobservable adjustments
or assumptions are required to reflect the differences between
the instruments.

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are
traded in active markets are based on quoted market prices
or dealer price quotations. For all other financial instruments,
the Group determines fair value using valuation techniques.
Valuation techniques include net present value, discounted
cash flow models and other valuation models. Assumptions
and inputs used in valuation techniques include risk-free and
benchmark interest rates, credit spreads and other parameters
used in estimating discount rates, bond price and foreign
currency exchange rates.
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(a)

AREEFENESHITE (&) 37 Fair value measurement of financial instruments
(continued)

LUAREBEFENERIA (&) (@) Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

(i) A EENET (B) (i) Determination of fair value (continued)

(iii)

AEERETERIANDABER
RA&ERNGETEMMEME Kie
H GRS BEmSH
B WAFEEIRE RN G REG
Ao BIRERMELNE ARER
Al AR MEA WA ESF MR E
o SNEBEROTA TAMBE BN
SN B OTE T AMA R - 2ATH
A ERE A B TS E R ME AR

The most common valuation techniques applied by the Group
to determine the fair value of financial instruments are from
interest rates and currency swaps, which are observable market
data with high reliability, and do not require the significant
involvement of management’s judgement and estimation.
Observable prices and model inputs are usually available in the
market for listed debt and equity securities, exchange-traded
derivatives and simple over-the-counter ("OTC") derivatives
like interest rate swaps. However, the availability of observable
AR TRMERMME  TeRE market prices and inputs varies depending on the products and
IS E R E MM —RIBERMETE markets, and is prone to changes based on specific events and
Bk o general conditions in the financial markets.

RLeMTANBERAFTE AR
ZEBFABEN I ER ARE  Ei
TR TABRGERMERE - flIHIH
ROEBENTETE > R—EREE
BMSNES - xEFRANHEEEMIE
ABENBENGERS  FEEE
BRNHIE SRR B BB B & A0
BEEN  YREENESRTRARER
BHNRFRERE  XHUFED
FUERESAE - PUREREE 0T

Certain financial instruments need to be employed with
valuation techniques where one or more significant market
inputs involved are not observable. Examples of these financial
instruments are structured investments, OTC structured
derivatives and certain securities for which there is no active
market. For valuation models involving significant unobservable
inputs, a high degree of management judgement or estimation
is required to select the appropriate valuation model, determine
the expected future cash flows on the financial instruments
being valued, determine the probability of counterparty default

WEE o and prepayments, and select the appropriate discount rates.
E3ERE) A BEGEEF (iii)  Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
FAIBENBEN
ARBEFAEZHRE
REERER FTEMFABRENEE Fair value measurement sensitivity

Valuation techniques Significant unobservable inputs to unobservable inputs

REES® R WRE ANiE B AN B

Investment funds Broker quote Not applicable Not applicable

EE RN REE T

(EO ECES RenEFRER TEETIR & i B A 5T R L B ) = SIMRENAREE
Debt securities Discounted Forecasted cash flows and Significant increase in the
cash flow model estimated risk-free rate estimated risk-free rate

would result in a lower fair value

BB S (3) (3) TNEMA
Equity securities See note below See note below Not applicable
B Note:

REERAARBEFENERT S K
FRERTHIEBERES  BXIFNERTS
EITEE - HIRREIRFENTIS - B

Equity securities under level 3 fair value measurements are generally
classified as available-for-sale and are not traded in the active market.
In the absence of an active market, the fair value is estimated on the
AR BEENGESREBERESROM BN basis of an analysis of the investee’s financial position, results and other
oo EENEMEZAON - Bt 0 Z75 factors. Accordingly, it is not practical to quote significant unobservable
HREZMIFATBROEER L TERL o inputs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

37 Fair value measurement of financial instruments

(continued)

(@) Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

(i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements (continued)
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening to

&ﬁﬁ*ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ’]ﬁ@b 15> the closing balance for fair value measurements in Level 3 of the
fair value hierarchy:
RERBEE MHLERS &g
BE Assets Trading assets Available-for-sale securities Total
REES EHES ERES
Investment funds Debt securities  Equity securities
BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R2017E1818 At 1 January 2017 1,078 4,000 23,496 28,574
BEA Purchases - - 18,500 18,500
%ﬁ Sales (172) - - (172)
REGREANER Gains or losses recognised in the
income statement (102) - 72 (30)
REMZEBEPREANDABEZE  Change in fair value recognised in
other comprehensive income - - 49,633 49,633
20175128318 At 31 December 2017 804 4,000 91,701 96,505
REERIEENEE Total gains or losses for the year included
REREBRET in the income statement for assets held
AMBEREE atthe end of the reporting period recorded in:
- EEINEIERER - Gains less losses from dealing in
foreign currencies - - 72 72
-EBERNGRRERIGRBE - Gains less losses from trading securities (102) - - (102)
REM 2 E R TR Total change in fair value recognised in
ArEEEHRE other comprehensive income - - 49,633 49,633
RHRBEE A ERS an
BE Assets Trading assets Available-for-sale securities Total
REES EBES s
Investment funds Debt securities Equity securities
BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
#0161 818 At1 January 2016 1489 4,000 23515 29,004
%{Hj Sales (253) - - (253)
REEREZNER Gains o losses recognised in the
income statement (158) - (19) (177)
R2016512A318 At 31 December 2016 1,078 4,000 23,49 28574
REERHENEE Total gains or losses for the year included
REREEZET in the income statement for assets held
RANERLT at the end of the reporting period recorded in:
-BENElERER - Gains less losses from dealing in
foreign currencies - - (19) (19
-EERFAREFNEREL - Gains less losses from trading securities (158) - - (158)

178] HIERIT (BEIFR) BRAF
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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(@) UAAREEIENESEIA (&) (a)
(v) HEZMIFAEENRZNE ZELE
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Fair value measurement of financial instruments
(continued)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

(iv)

Effects of changes in significant unobservable assumptions to
reasonable possible alternative assumptions

The fair value of Level 3 financial instruments is measured using
valuation models that incorporate assumptions that are not
based on observable market data. The following table shows
the sensitivity of Level 3 fair value measurements due to the
parallel movement of plus or minus 10% of change in fair value
to reasonably possible alternative assumptions.

2017%12A31H
31 December 2017

NG e TS REMDEK SRR
Effect on Effect on
income statement other comprehensive income
BA (FF) BA (RF)
Favourable (Unfavourable) Favourable (Unfavourable)
BETT BETT BETT BETT
BE Assets HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RHABEE Trading assets
-REES - Investment funds 80 (80) - -
A HERE Available-for-sale securities
—EBESH - Debt securities - - 400 (400)
—EREH - Equity securities - - 9,170 (9,170)
2016F 128318
31 December 2016
PR R A EL At 2 T L 2
Effect on Effect on
income statement other comprehensive income
BH (1 F) BH (R F)
Favourable  (Unfavourable) Favourable  (Unfavourable)
BB BB BETT BETT
EE Assets HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RORBEE Trading assets
—REES — Investment funds 107 107) - -
AIHEEFES Available-for-sale securities
—ESES - Debt securities - - 400 (400)
—ERESs — Equity securities - - 2,350 (2,350)
HARXEERELRAEHRTANAR The Group believes that their estimates of fair value for the
fﬁﬁﬁu‘l‘EL 8 BN R T above financial instruments are appropriate but the use of

CEOEZEGNEED

BEE -

different methodologies or assumptions could lead to different
measurements of fair value.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

37 Fair value measurement of financial instruments
(continued)

(b)

Fair values of financial instruments measured at other than fair

value

All financial instruments are stated at fair value or carried at amounts

not materially different from their fair value at 31 December 2017 and

2016 unless otherwise stated.

0]

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets mainly include cash; placements
with banks, central banks and other financial institutions;
loans and advances to customers; investments; and financial
derivative instruments.

The fair value of placements with banks, central banks and other
financial institutions is mainly priced at market interest rates,
and mature within one year. Accordingly, the carrying value
approximate the fair value.

The fair value of loans and advances to customers, taking into
account the relevant market interest rates and being mostly
priced at floating rates close to the market interest rate which is
mainly repriced within 3 months, approximately equal to their
carrying amounts.

Trading assets, securities designated at fair value through profit
or loss and available-for-sale securities are stated at fair value in
the financial statements.
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37

(b)

Fair value measurement of financial instruments
(continued)

Fair values of financial instruments measured at other than fair

value (continued)

(i) Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are stated at fair value or carried at
amounts not materially different from their fair value at
31 December 2017 and 2016, except as follows:

2017
IRE$5
Carrying AREE ERE F2 38,
amount Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
BT T BET T BET T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
cRAasE Financial liabilities
B BITIF G Certificates of deposit issued
—¥ERXFHE - Non-trading 3,421,769 3,421,510 - 3,421,510 -
BEITEBRES Debt securities issued 3,584,064 3,531,079 - 3,531,079 -
BIEER Loan capital 6,340,192 6,642,421 6,642,421 - -
13,346,025 13,595,010 6,642,421 6,952,589 -
2016
RA&5E
Carrying INIXELEN EF B2 B3
amount Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
BT BT T BT T BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
cRAaE Financial liabilities
B 21717 5K Certificates of deposit issued
— R GAE - Non-trading 10,593,445 10,538,350 - 10,538,350 -
BEER Loan capital 8,705,837 9,066,351 9,066,351 - -
19,299,282 19,604,701 9,066,351 10,538,350 -
—E—LER |18
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Notes to the Financial Statements

38 Derivatives

The use of derivatives for proprietary trading and sales to customers
as risk management products is an integral part of the Group's
business activities. These instruments are also used to manage the
Group's own exposure to market risk as part of its asset and liability
management process. The principal derivative instruments used by
the Group are interest and foreign exchange rate-related contracts,
which are primarily OTC derivatives. The Group also participates
in exchange-traded derivatives. Most of the Group’s derivative
positions have been entered into to meet customer demand and to
hedge these and other trading positions. For accounting purposes,
derivatives are classified as either held for trading or held for hedging.

PTETANERSH (@) Notional amounts of derivatives
PTHETHARERE B ZEEBEEESRIE Derivatives refer to financial contracts whose value depends on
HHEERETEBENVEELH - BLT the value of one or more underlying assets or indices. The notional
ENEBHERKKRTHHNZZE » TR amounts of these investments indicate the volume of outstanding
FEREEE o transactions and do not represent amounts at risk.
NWTRASEESBEFEZMMATANEREH The following is a summary of the notional amounts of each
M - significant type of derivative entered into by the Group:
2017 2016
BEM® BEH
¥E #E

Held for Hity “m Held for Hit B

hedging Others Total hedging Others Total

BETT BETT BETR BETL BETTL BETTL

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
ER{TETA Currency derivatives
BERR S Forwards - 64036378 64,036,378 - 61417578 61417578
BHR S Swaps - 455,766,010 455,766,010 - 206,534,675 206,534,675
BB Options purchased - 17431861 17,431,861 - 21,199,511 21,199,511
Bt Options written - 17,000,340 17,000,340 - 1979145 19,191,456
FEfTETR Interest rate derivatives
BERRBERS Forwards/futures - 6,490,462 6,490,462 - 38,774 38,774
2R 5 Swaps 11,767,566 63,403,485 75,171,051 15,698,972 26,714,391 42,413,363
B Options purchased - 1,000,000 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 1,000,000
B Options written - 1,078,151 1,078,151 - 1,077,549 1,077,549

11,767,566 626,206,687 637,974,253 15,698,972 337,173,934 352,872,906

REOEAERNSRTAGEEEAR -
MHTES R BES AR EHREHME
SRS URAHH R STEMRE
A -

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Trading includes the Group's proprietary positions in financial
instruments, positions which arise from the execution of trade orders
from customers and market making, and positions taken in order to
hedge other elements of the trading book.
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38 {TEIH (&) 38 Derivatives (continued)
(b) FTETIEMNAABEREERSMESE (b) Fair value and credit risk-weighted amounts of derivatives
2017 2016

FERR EERR
DMRERE AREE MERE AR ERE AR {ERE -3¢
BE B  Creditrisk- BE =1 Credit risk-
Fair value Fair value weighted Fair value Fair value weighted
assets liabilities amount assets liabilities amount
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EXRTETA Currency derivatives 4,511,710 4,705,217 5,405,671 3,987,522 3,946,546 4447 257
FEATETR Interest rate derivatives 258,785 119,266 152,750 271,369 49,898 196,481
4,770,495 4,824,483 5,558,421 4,258,891 3,996,444 4,643,738

(Ff&E18) (KHsE25) (Fizx18) (Wt5E25)

(note 18) (note 25) (note 18) (note 25)
EERBINELSZEIHEILZRE (R1TE (BXR) The credit risk-weighted amount is the amount which has been
RADBREARTENENR - WEURRR 5 calculated in accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules on capital
HF BB KB HA B TETE o 3 adequacy, and depends on the status of the counterparty and the
BB ERAE RS INEHE150%T%F maturity characteristics. The risk weights used range from 0% to 150%
(20165 : 0%ZE150%) + 1M [& & « F| K &K H (2016: 0% to 150%) for contingent liabilities and commitments, and
HATHE T EA 4B H0%ZE150% 1% (2016 from 0% to 150% (2016: 0% to 150%) for exchange rate, interest rate

F 1 0%ZE150%) © and other derivatives contracts.
REESREEFNE L EMEEFRLEEL The Group did not enter into any bilateral netting arrangements
PE o AL - EMEEE R AERRYIR - during the year, and accordingly, these amounts are shown on a gross
basis.
-t e

Annual Report 2017



184

B TSR MY

38 {TEIHE (&)

(0 EERHHIIANTETIANAIAEE
AN R SR B RS R a1 A TRIRE
mBRIE SRR EBEME

Notes to the Financial Statements

38

(c)

Derivatives (continued)

Fair value of derivatives designated as hedging instruments
The following is a summary of the fair value of derivatives held for
hedging purposes by product type entered into by the Group:

2017 2016
AREE AREE ~REE “RrEE
BE a& BE afE
Fair value Fair value Fair value Fair value
assets liabilities assets liabilities
BET T BT T BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HKS$'000

FEEL Interest rate contracts

— AR {BEYT — Fair value hedge 147,493 21,811 223,306 25,520
—REmEBE A ~ Cash flow hedge - - 1,441 -
147,493 21,811 224,747 25,520

DA BELE EREAERES TETH
FEESBEH DA BERTENERDT
BB I s

RenSEPEEZRENEREL - BEMR
Bz a2 FIRTENIERSHGEE U
SABEMNERASHSRELREGME
AR - BE2017F 12831 B I FEEEE
KakMReREENRESLEFRIHK
A B H1,279,0007T (2016%F © £E) o 720164
BRIFW B H1,2790007C B 5F AR EZS
HAMRESREEFFEBEAN - R2017FHER
SREH P TAMES ZERBADHHIE
S #5154,0007T (201645 + Wzs i %5162,000
7T) BRFAARSEENIKERA °

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Fair value hedges principally consist of interest rate swaps that are used
to protect against changes in the fair value of certain fixed rate assets
or liabilities due to movements in the market interest rates.

Cash flow hedges principally consist of interest rate swaps that are
used to protect against exposures to variability in future interest and
principal cash flows on non-trading liabilities which bear interest at
variable rates. During the year ended 31 December 2017, the amount
of cash flow hedging reserve transferred to the income statement
consist of HK$1,279,000 (2016: Nil) in net trading income. Net gains
of HK$ 1,279,000 recognised in the cash flow hedging reserve of the
equity in 2016 for effective. There was a loss of HK$154,000 (2016:
a gain of HK$162,000) of ineffectiveness recognised in the Group's
income statement which arising from cash flow hedge during 2017.
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38 Derivatives (continued)

(d) Remaining life of derivatives

The following tables provide an analysis of the notional amounts of
derivatives of the Group by relevant maturity grouping, based on the

remaining periods to settlement at the end of the reporting period:

2017
BTEMNEESE
Notional amounts with remaining life of
1B E
1FEHUT B545 5L
Wz 1year  Over1year Over
Total or less to 5 years 5years
BETT BT BETT BETT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EERHTET A Currency derivatives 554,234,589 531,212,264 22,835,977 186,348
FM=EPTAETA Interest rate derivatives 83,739,664 44,272,259 36,619,831 2,847,574
637,974,253 575,484,523 59,455,808 3,033,922
2016
BTEHNEESE
Notional amounts with remaining life of
19 LA £
TFAT Z5E S E
4= 1 year Over 1 year Over
Total or less to 5 years 5 years
BETIT BT T BT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
[EXTHETA Currency derivatives 308,343,220 292,085,731 15,873,128 384,361
MESTETEA Interest rate derivatives 44,529,686 24,307,839 18,041,043 2,180,804
352,872,906 316,393,570 33,914,171 2,565,165
—E—tFRH
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Notes to the Financial Statements

39 Contingent assets, liabilities and commitments

(@) Contingent liabilities and commitments to extend credit
The following is a summary of the contractual amounts of each

WME - significant class of contingent liabilities and commitments:
2017 2016
BT T BT
HK$'000 HKS$'000
BEEREERE R Direct credit substitutes 3,869,439 4,368,584
B 5Bk EEE Transaction-related contingencies 365,203 535,590
HE FHEBANEIER Trade-related contingencies 1,987,228 2,767,669
H b Other commitments:
— IRIT AT AR BB — which are unconditionally cancellable
WIEE KA or automatically cancellable
EER R EER due to deterioration in the
] B #EUH creditworthiness of the borrower 92,291,172 105,242,666
—REBFREIFRAT — with an original maturity of not more than 1 year 3,021,463 5,232,137
—REEBAEIFUE — with an original maturity of more than 1 year 3,986,946 3,761,125
105,521,451 121,907,771
EE R INESER Credit risk-weighted amounts 5,445,027 5,205,562

SEREMAEREEEMEBENTA 81
EHFR - ERABMEREEER K
o W hHEREAR ERET PR ERE
BRSPS ANEERRAR - BHSBREEE
BRRBERREETPRR M B AERR
MEHE - HRNEBEREAEEIHRKDARS
A BENSRTIFERRRRSRE -

R E = B R N #E S5 A9 2 5 hAE /B
0%Z150% (2016%F : 0%ZE150%) T o

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Contingent liabilities and commitments are credit-related instruments
which include forward deposits placed, letters of credit, guarantees
and commitments to extend credit. The risk involved is essentially
the same as the credit risk involved in extending loan facilities to
customers. The contractual amounts represent the amounts at risk
should the contract be fully drawn upon and the client default. As the
facilities may expire without being drawn upon, the contract amounts
do not represent expected future cash flows.

The risk weights used in the computation of credit risk-weighted
amounts range from 0% to 150% (2016: 0% to 150%).
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39

(b)

Contingent assets, liabilities and commitments
(continued)

Capital commitments

Capital commitments for the purchase of properties and equipment
outstanding at 31 December 2017 not provided for in the financial
statements are as follows:

2017 2016

BET T BET T

HK$'000 HK$'000

ISR R ETH Authorised and contracted for 170,569 166,037
HERIE (c) Lease commitments

R2017FE 128318  BIB ARG EEE
JERRARRFER S LN ¢

At 31 December 2017, the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

2017 2016
BT BT
HK$’000 HKS$'000
WEBER T BB Property leases expiring:

1R Within 1 year 289,265 252,477
1FE5F After 1 year but within 5 years 682,739 593,418
SR After 5 years 20,108 105,493
992,112 951,388

REEEN U THBRER Equipment leases expiring:
148 Within 1 year 5,594 5118
1FE5F After 1 year but within 5 years 8,704 13,175
14,298 18,293
1,006,410 969,681

AEEBEAKLEHENTAEEZRYER
& - BEMELRENSNEER KRR
1295 - AINE IR ERTREE AT K o A
FHEGPISRIARE °

EBLERRNSEEE
720172016512 8318 » REBIRAE
AT ] R BT BAR R B E A E R
ESSEIK

(d)

The Group leases a number of properties and items of equipment
under operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of
one to nine years, with an option to renew the lease when all terms
are renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

Contingent liability in respect of legal claim
The Group is not involved in any legal action that would be significant
to the financial position of the Group at 31 December 2017 and 2016.

—E—tFRH
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CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

40 Trust activities

11

42

The Group commonly acts as a trustee and in other fiduciary
capacities that result in the holding or placing of assets on behalf
of individuals, trusts, retirement benefit plans and other institutions.
These assets and income arising therefrom are excluded from these
financial statements as they are not assets of the Group.

Immediate parent and ultimate controlling party

At 31 December 2017, the Directors considered the immediate
parent of the Group to be CITIC International Financial Holdings
Limited, which is incorporated in Hong Kong, and the ultimate
controlling party of the Group to be CITIC Group Corporation, which is
incorporated in mainland China.

Accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires that management
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities; the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of these financial statements; and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses for the years presented. Changes in
assumptions can have a significant impact on the financial statements
in the periods when the assumptions are changed. The application
of assumptions and estimates means that any selection of different
assumptions could cause the Group's reporting to differ. The Group
believes that the assumptions that have been made are appropriate,
and that the financial statements therefore present the financial
position and results fairly, in all material respects.

Management held a discussion with the Audit Committee about
the development, selection and disclosure of the Group’s significant
accounting policies and estimates, and the application of these
policies and estimates.



B TSR MY

42 EEHEFRAE (&)

T T ARER RN EBRRR
7S AN SR LA AR BENRR
REBEZE - Bt Al EER RN ERK
RAR

() JRIEIEX
-G ONELD N
BERAAe TR - AT ERIER
REGE - AEBEHEHEFRAES
EAGETARENTEEE (G
AERERESHRERDRD) - BENE
BB B S5 BUR M EE2() - 1B
B EREE AR RENTEEE
- AIEHARRERESRER
SERNEEBEUNEERRSEENE
EHBABRERREL G - BE
BRERZUBAMMATBREE AR
MEHFAR - EEESTHRAGE
KRB REMEAN T ERBE -
PUR 8K st R BB R 2 M
MEAELR -

A ERE S
ERAHLERFN QA BEANELS
BTHRZENERAS  NEERESHE
FEUERELRRFE - BEQAAEE
AR e TKERRKAN NEESIE
RrRR AU El 8 # T 1S - SR s A=
LEHIETHERMARE

Notes to the Financial Statements

42 Accounting estimates and judgements (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Note 37 contain information about the assumptions and their risk
factors relating to the fair value of financial instruments respectively.
Other key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(i) Impairment losses

Loans and advances

Loan portfolios are reviewed periodically to assess whether
impairment losses exist. The Group makes judgements as to
whether there is any objective evidence that a loan portfolio
is impaired, i.e. whether there is a decrease in estimated future
cash flows. Objective evidence for impairment is described in
the accounting policy note 2(l). If management determines,
based on their judgement, that objective evidence of
impairment exists, expected future cash flows are estimated
based on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to those of the Group. Historical loss
experience is adjusted on the basis of the current observable
data. Management regularly reviews the methodology and
assumptions used in estimating future cash flows to reduce any
difference between loss estimates and actual loss experience.

Available-for-sale securities

The Group determines that available-for-sale equity securities
are impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value below cost. The determination of when
a decline in fair value below cost is not recoverable within a
reasonable time period is judgement-based by nature, so profit
and loss could be affected by differences in this judgement.

N i
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CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

42 Accounting estimates and judgements (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(i)

Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value estimates are generally subjective in nature, and are
made at a specific point in time based on the characteristics
of the financial instruments and relevant market information.
Where available, quoted market prices are used. If a quoted
price is not available on a recognised stock exchange, is not
from a broker or dealer for non-exchange traded financial
instruments or from a readily available latest trading price, the
fair value on level 3 financial instruments is estimated using
the present value or other valuation techniques using current
market parameters.

All valuation models are validated before they are used as a
basis for financial reporting. Wherever possible, the Group
compares valuations derived from models with quoted prices
of similar financial instruments, and with actual values when
realised, in order to further validate and calibrate the models.

These techniques involve uncertainties and are materially
affected by the assumptions used and judgements made
regarding the risk characteristics of various financial instruments,
discount rates, estimates of future cash flows, future expected
loss experience and other factors. Changes in assumptions
could materially affect these estimates and the resulting fair
values. Derived fair value estimates cannot necessarily be
substantiated by comparison to independent markets and,
in many cases, could be realised in an immediate sale of the
instruments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

of the Bank

(@) Statement of financial position of the Bank

At 31 December 2017

Statement of financial position and reserve movement

(LAB¥E REEAL) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2017 2016
M5 BT T BT
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
BE ASSETS
Re RAERTT » PRIBITR Cash and balances with banks, central banks

Hih S RIsIENETF and other financial institutions 27,982,125 25,830,962
TERIT ~ PRIBITR Placements with and advances to banks,

H o pilEnTaRRaR central banks and other financial institutions 45,906,979 21,931,411
THRBEE Trading assets 5,799,333 5,550,317
BEERNRAT R E MRS Loans and advances to customers and other accounts 182,125,244 176,268,864
AHEERES Available-for-sale securities 57,571,177 57,303,459
e B A mIFRIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 11,914,437 7,843,080
MEBARIRE Investments in subsidiaries 1,245,418 1245418
LEYE ] Property and equipment

—REYE - Investment properties 101,624 109,517

—Hib ~ Other premises 373,100 369,479

7%&1% — Equ|pment5 486,565 379,016
AT UK 15 18 Tax recoverable 25,117 -
EEFIEEE Deferred tax assets 50,744 12,250
EEHSE Total assets 333,581,863 296,843,773
BERES LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
afE Liabilities
IRIT R E A& B Deposits and balances of banks and

ERNETF other financial institutions 5,187,319 3,919,496
BEE#R Deposits from customers 262,179,037 229,285,512
TH5HREEE Trading liabilities 4,817,633 3,988,231
DT IE Certificates of deposit issued 3,421,769 10,593,445
BEETERES Debt securities issued 3,584,064 _
AEAFETE Current taxation 499,934 192,807
EmafE Other liabilities 4,845,153 8,825,108
NI EEPNGIE S Amounts due to subsidiaries 174,803 330,023
BIEER Loan capital 6,340,192 8,705,837
BERE Total liabilities 291,049,904 265,840,459
s EQUITY
f% 2R Share capital 30(a) 18,404,013 9,366,271
= Reserves 43(b) 17,954,694 15,463,791
RRESEEE Total shareholders’ equity 36,358,707 24,830,062
BIMES T A Additional equity instruments 31 6,173,252 6,173,252
ESEEE Total Equity 42,531,959 31,003,314
EnkEEEE Total Equity and Liabilities 333,581,863 296,843,773
BEELR2018F3 23 B W LA -

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Director on 23 March 2018.
TG WRRE
ZHANG Xiaowei KAN NG Chau Yuk Helen
HITEFE  (TRFTEKAEH HITEFFREFTHABAE
Executive Director, President and Executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer Alternate Chief Executive Officer
—E—tFR PN
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43 BITZHMBRRERFEEES (& 43 Statement of financial position and reserve movement
of the Bank (continued)
BITRERSHERIBDNEE (b) Movement in components of equity of the Bank
ARATEVME R HE 25 AR BS99 I SR ) I SR AR ) Details of the changes in the Bank's individual components of equity
EFFYIT ¢ between the beginning and the end of the year are set out below:
Af
The Bank
BiMER
ng  ReNE k& I8
Efffie  WMBE  EfEE Additional
BE EABE -REE Popety  Cashflow  Investment  REER  HELE equity
Share Capital General  revaluation hedging  revaluation Retained Total ~instruments ERAE
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits reserves  (Hfi/note30)  Total equity
AeTn  AMTr  A¥Tn  B¥Tn B%Tn A%Tn AMTn RMTR AETr  AMTR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R2017£1R18 At1January 2017 9,366,271 2,903 100,000 55 1,068 (54,617) 15414382 15,463,791 6,173,252 31,003,314
BE017ENEREH : Changesin equity for 2017;
ERHE Profitfor the year - - - - - - 2836445 2,836,M5 - 2836445
A rER=LE Other comprehensive
income for the year - - - - (1,068) (9,516) - (10,584) - (10,584)
KEEREBHEEE  Total comprehensive
income for the year - - - - (1,068) (9516) 2,836,445 2,825,861 - 2825861
EIREERR Issue and allotment of shares 9,037,742 - - - - - - - - 9037IR
BOTEN—RERES  Issue of ATI Capital Securities - - - - - , - _ i} _
SIE—RERES  Distribution payment for
28 AT1 Capital Securities - - - - - - - - (334,958) (334,958)
BAREET Transfer from retained profits - - - - - - (334,958)  (334,958) 334,958 -
20175128318 At 31 December 2017 18,404,013 2,903 100,000 55 - (64,133) 17,915,869 17,954,694 6,173,252 42,531,959
0161 A18 At T January 2016 7,566,271 2,903 100,000 5% - (28075) 12,788,138 12,863,021 2,310,168 22,739,460
HZWI6FREREE:  Changesin equiy for 2016:
FERHE Profit for the year - - - - - - 2794979 2794979 - 2794979
A2 ENREE Other comprehensive
income for the year - - - - 1,068 (26542) - (25474) - (25474)
RERRENEEE  Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - - 1,068 (26542) 2,794979 2,769,505 - 2,769,505
BIREERD Issue and allotment of shares 1,800,000 - - - - - - - - 1,800,000
TR RAERES  Issue of AT Capital Securites - - - - - - - - 3863084 3863084
TEI—RERES  Distribution payment for
B AT1 Capital Securities - - - - - - - - (168,739) (168,735)
EEREER Transfer from retained profits - - - - - - (168739) (168,739) 168,735 -
#2016E12831H At 31 December 2016 9,366,271 2,903 100,000 b3 1,068 (54617) 15414382 15,463,791 6,173,252 31,003,314

44
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44 Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by

the Board of Directors on 23 March 2018.



RIEEZM T EER  Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(BR¥FRIFIBASN - BB R L) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(A) SRITRMRHNERERIEE (A) Capital information available on the Bank’s corporate
website

REGHRITE (BHR) A8 XEESHRA For the purposes of compliance with Banking (Disclosure)
EERERNTERREE AN KNER Rules, information relating to the Group's regulatory capital and
MEEEATANEMFEEE - HERE other disclosures are published by using standard disclosure
A LA 38 8 2N 17 B9 48 whwww.cnebinternational. templates as specified by the HKMA and they can be viewed in
comN [EE B EE | S0 #ETTER] - the Regulatory Disclosures section of our Bank's corporate website

www.cncbinternational.com.
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(B) EAXZRE

() BEXER

BEARRLEEZRBELERELN GRITE

(BEX) RAD WKE  LREE %EEJZE’J
AITREETHEBR TE!’J%T/.:.\ HEFFHE - K
THRA [RER] St EEERR K TSR

2R IR - M5 {’EH B Bl ER

[EARIERE] -

Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(B) Capital adequacy

(i) Capital base

Capital adequacy ratios ("“CARs") are complied in accordance with the
Banking (Capital) Rules issued by the HKMA. The CARs are computed
on a consolidated basis covering the Bank and some of its subsidiaries
as required by the HKMA. The Bank has adopted the “standardised
approach” for calculating the risk-weighted amount for credit risk

and market risk and the “basic indicator approach” for calculating

operational risk.

2017 2016
BETT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
ZERE-RELATARRE Common Equity Tier 1 (“CET1”) capital
instruments and reserves
BERRTEERNL EmRE Directly issued qualifying CET1 capital instruments
*ﬁ&ﬁﬁlﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂx@m{% plus any related share premium 18,404,013 9,366,271
REBRF Retained earnings 18,728,874 16,259,623
RERE Disclosed reserves 251,021 154,870
KR EERBEALTERE—RER CET1 capital before regulatory deductions 37,383,908 25,780,764
LZERE—QRER  EERHE CET1 capital: regulatory deductions
BRI EERBELHIES E T Deferred tax assets net of deferred tax liabilities 65,841 18,217
BensshmE Cash flow hedging reserve - 1,068
AEEEG L MLy M EER Cumulative fair value gains arising from
ZF AR EEET the revaluation of land and buildings
CREBRREKREYME) (own use and investment properties) 84,333 87,873
—RIRITRREEEE Regulatory reserve for general banking risks 2,814,520 2,805,429
HEAE Valuation adjustments 7,138 7,013
BBATETEANNERESEMERE  Debt valuation adjustments in respect of derivative contracts 1,285 1,878
ZERE-REREITERBREE Total regulatory deductions to CET1 capital 2,973,117 2,921,478
EERE-REX CET1 capital 34,410,791 22,859,286
BH—REX Additional Tier 1 capital 6,177,015 6,177,015
—REX Tier 1 capital 40,587,806 29,036,301
ZREXRTEREBE Tier 2 capital instruments and provisions
SRR ZTERREBR D RE Qualifying Tier 2 capital instruments plus
any related share premium 4,687,678 6,044,744
BENTHLEEYREESHEMESL  Reserve attributable to fair value gains on
AR BERHOEGFEE revaluation of holdings of land and buildings 37,950 39,543
BRERZFER-RIRTRR Collective impairment allowances and
TEREEENEERE regulatory reserve for general banking risks eligible for
inclusion in Tier 2 capital 2,732,777 2,431,093
HNBRER RN ZHER Tier 2 capital base before deductions 7,458,405 8,515,380
ZHRER D EERE Tier 2 capital: regulatory deductions
ZREREETERIE Regulatory deductions to Tier 2 capital - -
—HRER Tier 2 capital 7,458,405 8,515,380
BEREE Total capital 48,046,211 37,551,681

194] RERIT (BEFR) BRAF
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(B)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

EXZR (&) (B) Capital adequacy (continued)
BB I RE B KR (i) Risk-weighted assets
2017 2016
BT T BET T
HK$’000 HK$'000
—EERR - Credit risk 219,918,986 195,100,156
— ISR — Market risk 4,425,300 5,050,513
— B [ b — Operational risk 12,572,238 11,405,438
236,916,524 211,556,107
BEAZE D= (iii) Capital adequacy ratios
2017 2016
— IR — R E AR & — CET1 capital ratio 14.5% 10.8%
—— BN = — Tier 1 capital ratio 17.1% 13.7%
— BB R R — Total capital ratio 20.3% 17.8%

PR EEARLRUAREBHETEAR LR

H2016F1ATERERN THEFHERNL
. MAKERGEEEAENT

(iv)

buffer ratio

Capital conservation buffer ratio and countercyclical capital

With effect from 1 January 2016, the capital buffer ratios applicable to

the Group on a consolidated basis are as follows:

2017 2016

PreEss @& ANt = Capital conservation buffer ratio 1.250% 0.625%
wIRREEE AR R Countercyclical capital buffer (“CCyB") ratio 0.707% 0.334%
1.957% 0.959%

AEERBEERBERZGERAREGH
ize b PR S WA TN A RN e o)l
INFEERE N EL (8 Rl DA S % 1% P A )38 1B
M@ A AL R - WRRBAITHIEA (&
EWE| —HHhEE -

The detail relevant disclosure of the CCyB ratio for each jurisdiction

and the geographical breakdown of risk-weighted assets in relation

to private sector credit exposures using the standard templates as

specified by the HKMA can be viewed in the Regulatory Disclosure

section of our Bank's website.

=B LFH
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(B) Capital adequacy (continued)

(v) Capital instruments
The following is a summary of the Group's CET1, Additional Tier 1
Capital Securities and Tier 2 capital instruments.

2017 2016
BT T BETIT
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FOIBRTHNEERE-—RELTA CET 1 capital instruments issued by the Bank
LR Ordinary shares:
BT R 9,083,341,176 issued and fully paid
A% 9,083,341,176/% ordinary shares 18,404,013 9,366,271
2017 2016
BT T BT
HK$’000 HKS$'000
B —REXES Additional Tier 1 Capital Securities
M {8300,000,0003 JLHY Undated non-cumulative subordinated
KEFIIERIEREERFES capital securities with US$300 million 2,310,168 2,310,168
E{E500,000,0003E 7T HY Undated non-cumulative subordinated
KERIERBRBREELRES capital securities with US$500 million 3,863,084 3,863,084
6,173,252 6,173,252
2017 2016
BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
“HREXRTEH Tier 2 capital instruments
RITEAT Issued by the Bank
- FR2020F B HR1Z (B ik - Subordinated note due 2020
(BRTEE : 500,000,00037T) (nominal value: US$500 million) 4,009,985 4,063,457
— FA2022F B HA1R (B R - Subordinated note due 2022
(BRTI{E : 300,000,00037T) (nominal value: US$300 million) - 2,318,117
~ PA2024F B HAB (B 21 — Subordinated note due 2024
(BRMI{A : 300,000,000%7T) (nominal value: US$300 million) 2,330,207 2,324,263
6,340,192 8,705,837
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REEZ TR BER Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(B) EXZXR (&) (B) Capital adequacy (continued)
(vi) 1ERRLE®E (vi) Leverage ratio
ﬁ@tbwE@?ﬁﬁ%*ﬁﬁi\%ﬁ%ﬁiﬁ$ﬁ& The Bank is required to disclose its leverage ratio calculated on a
RITETHB ARG ERTE - consolidated basis covering the Bank and some of its subsidiaries.
2017 2016
B Leverage ratio 11.3% 9.1%
KRA®E RRENTERREEFBIERRR The detail relevant disclosure of the leverage exposure using the
7%19%6%5%7&21&17”5@ [BEE 1R standard templates as specified by the HKMA can be viewed in the
B HEITEE ° Regulatory Disclosure section of our Bank's website.
(vi) ZREER (vii) Basis of consolidation
BRI RIZIRAAN - Ki?ﬁﬁﬂiﬁiﬂ’ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ Unless otherwise stated, all financial information contained in the
BEHIUM G 5 NG E ERGER - 75 annual financial report is prepared according to the consolidation
ERgtesrtms BpEEms E’JIEA Jpés basis for accounting purposes. The main difference between the
REIEBREAITRAITHENRB AR - mig consolidation basis for accounting and regulatory purposes is that
ERRBERTRATETHEBAR - 5518 the former includes the Bank and all its subsidiaries whereas the latter
PN includes the Bank and only some of the Group’s subsidiaries, which
are discussed as follows:
A%%Eﬁt)&ﬁﬁﬁﬁg GGR1TZ% (BAX) B The HKMA has granted approval under section 28(2)(a) of the Banking
Al Z828(2)(a) 6 + Tt T FIPT B A A B — 4R (Capital) Rules for the Bank to calculate its CAR on a solo consolidated

B ERE #ZIK TRERT B E - EIRIR basis instead of on a solo basis in respect of the following subsidiary:
B —EfEtHE

20175128310
At 31 December 2017

BERE EREE

Total assets Total equity

BETR BT

MEARER Names of subsidiary TEER Principal activities HK$'000 HK$'000

EBREEBRAT Viewcon Hong Kong Limited —ZBEE - Mortgage financing 1,365 1,314
—m L& 197
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

B) BEXZRE (&) (B) Capital adequacy (continued)
(vii) HZEERE (&) (vii) Basis of consolidation (continued)
S—FHmE - ATEABBERTE (BXR) K On the other hand, the Bank is required under section 3C(1) of the
By EE3CE - BT B A RILALR & £ b Banking (Capital) Rules to calculate its total capital on a consolidated
STEHBENR basis in respect of the following subsidiaries:
2017%12A318
At 31 December 2017
BELE BRAE
Total assets Total equity
BT BETR
WEAREE Names of subsidiaries FEEK Principal activities HK$'000 HK$'000
ERERERARA Carford International Limited -MERE - Property holding 37,386 14,684
RERTER (PE )W A CITIC Bank International (China) Limited —R1T - Banking 17,549,046 1,717,449
HERBRBBERART CITIC Insurance Brokers Limited — Rl - Insurance broker 279,082 56,542
CKWB-SN Limited CKWB-SN Limited — BT - Issue of structured notes
FEMRE and investments - -
CKWH-UT2 Limited CKWH-UT2 Limited —BITBEZE - Issue of subordinated notes - -
éﬁf%%/\ﬁﬁiﬁ@“ HKCB Finance Limited - HBlEE - Consumer financing 6,144,933 506,426
REARUBERA Ka Wah International Merchant Finance Limited — R A% - Inactive 3,904 3,859
%%ﬁﬂ”ﬁﬂﬁ@Aﬂ The Ka Wah Bank (Trustee) Limited —{EFE AR - Trustee services 5,488 5,473
EREBERLA Viewcon Hong Kong Limited —IZBRE - Mortgage financing 1,365 1314

REREARBOMBERRIHEHEE FTTEN

EERBHAEREER MISFEELHE
(R1TE (BX) KA BEB ERITEEDD
BB RER TR E AR AR RREE) 2 &

Subsidiaries not included in consolidation for regulatory purposes
are mainly nominee services companies that are authorised and
supervised by a regulator and are subject to supervisory arrangements
regarding the maintenance of adequate capital to support business

BIARAE - ot - R <<fEﬁ¥ (i%%) HAD activities comparable to those prescribed for authorised institutions
FE33 Zliﬁlz/kiﬁ/\ B H 4 E R under the Banking (Capital) Rules and the Banking Ordinance. The
W ABIEATHEBE A following subsidiaries are deducted from the Bank's capital base
under Part 3 of the Banking (Capital) Rules:
20176128318

At 31 December 2017
EEAE BREE
Total assets Total equity
BETT BRI
WEARER Names of subsidiaries TEER Principal activities HK$'000 HK$000

BREART(REAN)ERAT The Hongkong Chinese Bank ~REARH - Nominee services

(Nominees) Limited 4 4
%%fﬁﬁ(&@)ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂ The Ka Wah Bank (Nominees) Limited _&@/\Eﬁ% - Nominee services 3,434 -
Security Nominees Limited Security Nominees Limited - REARE - Nominee services - -
REBLBEERDNE Sino-Allied Development Limited -REEE - Inactive 10 10

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL

LIMITED
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(@)

20178128318 » REEIRABHE R A
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(B) Capital adequacy (continued)

(vii) Basis of consolidation (continued)
At 31 December 2017, no subsidiaries were included within both
the accounting scope of consolidation and the regulatory scope of
consolidation but for which the method of consolidation differs.

There are also no subsidiaries which are included within the regulatory
scope of consolidation but not included within the accounting scope
of consolidation.

I RB AL R (C) Average liquidity coverage ratio
2017 2016
HZE2017F9A308 IHEARE & Average LMR for the period ended
2016%F12A31HIEFE 30 September 2017/year ended
AR B 4 RF L R 31 December 2016 * 59.6% 60.8%
HZE2017F12A3181EFE Average LCR for the quarter ended
T RB B S R 31 December 2017 ** 177.6% N/A
* R MR R T EERARREFT * The average value of liquidity maintenance ratio (“LMR”) is being

RS AR % BT
B RESE BEREE T ATRAT
E BHBA NG EiE

» BE017FI0AIBRAEER B RIEER
F1ERE B BERT(RBES)
RA AEERSERBARSRBES
BEEIRNEERERER WK T RS
MEELENETER -

RBCGRTTE (BE) KA AEEKRR
CEREENERERBEERRESBAE
BERBESMNER  XAEATHER
[EEEEAIE | S EITEE -

calculated based on the arithmetic mean of the average value of LMR
for each month during the reporting period, which is also computed on
the consolidated basis covering the Bank and certain of its subsidiaries as
required by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (“HKMA”).

** The Group was designated by the HKMA as Category 1 institution with
effect from 1 October 2017. As a result, under the Banking (Liquidity)
Rules, the Group being a Category 1 institution is required to maintain
a Liquidity Coverage Ratio (“LCR") above the statutory minimum
requirement, which superseded the regulatory requirements on the
Liquidity Maintenance Ratio ("LMR").

For the purposes of compliance with Banking (Disclosure) Rules,
information relating to the Group’s liquidity are published by using
standard disclosure templates as specified by the HKMA and they can
be viewed in the Regulatory Disclosures section of our Bank's website.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

Further analysis on loans and advances to customers

Loans and advances to customers analysed by the coverage of
collateral, overdue amount and the impairment allowance is as
follows. The economic sector analysis is based on the categories and

£ o definitions used by the HKMA.
2017 2016
EHRERN (peRiivii:n
EFERR EPEFR
BHEH B
EFERR ARE BPERK Epaps
BB %ofgross BB % of gross
Gross loans loans and Gross loans loans and
and advances advancesto andadvances advances to
to customers customers to customers customers
B¥ETFIT  covered by B¥ETFIL  covered by
HK$'000 collateral HK$'000 collateral
IHem Industrial, commercial and financial
—-MEER — Property development 17,177,318 19 13,578,793 54
—MEKRE - Property investment 26,312,638 65 25,060,936 67
—SEE - Financial concerns 16,250,264 26 9,171,320 24
—-BERE&R - Stockbrokers 6,564,251 20 3,131,047 49
—HBERTEE - Wholesale and retail trade 14,236,238 80 17,002,524 70
— Gl - Manufacturing 17,020,091 24 10,063,497 29
— Bl B RE ~Transport and transport equipment 2,356,396 23 2,946,243 28
—IRETE) ~ Recreational activities 813,764 61 1,205,638 72
— BB - Information technology 221,297 100 3,451,364 91
—Hfh - Others 10,155,897 75 9,831,651 51
PN Individuals
—EB[EEHEREE] - - Loansfor the purchase of flats under the
[FLAEEE2ERRE Home Ownership Scheme, Private Sector
HERTHEEERER Participation Scheme and Tenants
ZWEFER Purchase Scheme 24,255 100 11,464 100
-BEHMEZMENER - Loans for the purchase of other
residential properties 14,439,796 100 13,407,510 100
—ERERR - Credit card advances 503,789 - 445821 -
—Hft - Others 8,950,693 88 8,304,307 87
HHEBFERNETRR Gross loans and advances for
BB use in Hong Kong 135,026,687 54 117,612,115 62
Z5mAE Trade finance 6,564,657 32 10,644,560 28
EEBIMEBMEZR  Grossloans and advances for
B use outside Hong Kong 54,695,578 31 55,507,566 32
BEFERRBIEH Gross loans and advances to customers 196,286,922 47 183,764,241 51

200] H{ER1T (EIFR) BRAA
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REEZ TR BER Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(D) E—LoMEFERRBR (2) (D) Further analysis on loans and advances to customers
(continued)
HRFPERRBTMEEEI0%IIA L - WIE(E The analysis of impaired loans and advances to customers of the
RERABLENRERTPER KBRS individual loan usage category, which accounted for 10% or more of
T the gross loans and advances to customers, is as follows:
2017

FRERRR

BE/(B#)

WHERX

HEEF Impairment loss

GEEF ERRBHR B3 A charged to/

BEREZ Impaired HEEE WEEE (written back)

Overdue loans loans and Individual Collective on income

and advances advances to impairment impairment statement

to customers customers allowances allowances  during the year

BETT BT BETT BET T BRI

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

MERE Property investment 18,841 23,111 9 720 (1,569)
EEBUIMEAM Gross loans and advances for

LEOESEL use outside Hong Kong 821,042 1,355,216 729,479 106,013 792,521

839,883 1,378,327 729,488 106,733 790,952

2016

ENENER

B/ (B%)

MR ERR

HERE Impairment loss

BHEP BRRBA (@R A charged to/

BERRBH Impaired B HEER (written back)

Overdue loans loans and Individual Collective on income

and advances advances to impairment impairment statement

to customers customers allowances allowances during the year

BT BETT BETT BETT BT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000

MERE Property investment 64,725 26,095 304 1,858 (728)
EEBUIME AR Gross loans and advances for

LEWEE use outside Hong Kong 661,137 647,766 152,342 112,808 74176

725,862 673,861 152,646 114,666 73448

ZE—LFH |20
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(D) E—LoMEFERRBR (2) (D) Further analysis on loans and advances to customers
(continued)
Eih &5 AT By geographical areas
2017
EFEX BHEF RERF 18 5l ey
RBX HRBHK EXRRBHK HEEE HEERE
Loansand Overdue loans Impaired loans Individual Collective
advancesto  and advances  and advances impairment impairment
customers  tocustomers  to customers allowances allowances
BETT BT T BETR BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
0 Hong Kong 107,422,724 874,934 1,230,989 611,854 189,954
B A Mainland China 71,077,957 931,923 965,597 404,880 143,775
e United States 6,672,615 6,995 6,996 - 14,889
R Singapore 3,705,562 - - - 2,201
Hit Others 7,408,064 93,597 260,430 110,280 45,024
196,286,922 1,907,449 2,464,012 1,127,014 395,843
2016
ZEFER BEER REEF fE 5 &a
R2® BERRER ERRBH BEEE AEEE
Loansand  Overdue loans  Impaired loans Individual Collective
advancesto  andadvances  and advances impairment impairment
customers to customers to customers allowances allowances
BETT BT BT BT BT
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
0 Hong Kong 93,832,960 755,026 1,185,045 482,324 159,342
A Mainland China 66,771,703 493,342 479,970 103,513 111,132
e United States 5,807,229 - - - 6,526
R Singapore 5,504,082 - - - 13,386
Hity Others 11,848,267 101,651 101,651 41,661 32478
183,764,241 1,350,019 1,766,666 627,498 322,864
it [E AT IR S FR TR E Y The above geographical analysis is classified by the location of the
W2 ZERELER - BRI ZEHFEATE counterparties after taking into account the transfer of risk. For a
B M —HER IR EER R GE T R claim guaranteed by a party situated in a country different from the
FTHIB R BEIEA o counterparty, risk will be transferred to the country of the guarantor.
BEAE R MR R e A3 E AN ER o Overdue loans and advances are loans that have been overdue for

more than three months.

WEERRBREIEIREREELIRRER Impaired loans and advances are individually assessed loans which
EBREmMERARTHBNERR o exhibit objective evidence of impairment on an individual basis.

202 RFERAT (BB AR AR
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(E) BHEE (E) Overdue assets
BHEFERREN Overdue loans and advances to customers
2017 2016
HEFEXN EEPER
RBREE Kasiiazs
ERES BoXk
% of total % of total
loans and loans and
BT advancesto BEETIL  advancesto
HK$’000 customers HKS$'000 customers
Bk BR4AEE The gross amount of loans and advances has
= 0 HAE been overdue for periods of:
—31E A A EZ=6fE A -6 months or less but over 3 months 822,734 0.42 190,035 0.10
—6fH AALEE1F — 1 year or less but over 6 months 471,579 0.24 275,830 0.15
—1F —over 1 year 613,136 0.31 884,154 0.48
1,907,449 0.97 1,350,019 0.73
BEPBEAEF LB Secured overdue loans and advances 293,785 683,672
B EAE N R EI Unsecured overdue loans and advances 1,613,664 666,347
1,907,449 1,350,019
BEBEMEEERE  Market value of collateral held against the
SH 7 EERTE secured overdue loans and advances 375,391 1,331,375
EREI R Individual impairment allowances made 1,068,504 369,998
EREEFRZER AT » BEENRES T Loans and advances with specific repayment dates are classified as
BER®HE  WRELB{IRES - BI5|#E overdue when the principal or interest is overdue and remains unpaid
BHARIE - BRI 2 B - BERERA at the year end. Loans repayable on demand are classified as overdue
KIEEIGRA - BERADNKRRERER either when a demand for repayment has been served on the
/S EREBEERAEBNOIER borrower but repayment has not been made in accordance with the
28 MU R E A e HAEARE - 7Ry demand notice, and/or when the loans have remained continuously
VEEHAER I8 - outside the approved limit advised to the borrower for more than the

overdue period in question.

—E—tFRH
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REEZ TR BER Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

() BHEE (&) (E) Overdue assets (continued)
BHEFERRER () Overdue loans and advances to customers (continued)
HRBHER LB FFENEBRELE R M Eligible collateral, which is held in respect of the overdue loans and
FTERRFMWENE - SBERREAERET advances, is 'Eligible Physical Collateral’ which mainly comprises real
HIERAHF - estate properties. The eligible collateral should generally satisfy the
following:
@ ZEENMERVUARRESITSE (@)  The market value of the asset is readily determinable or can be
iEERBE o reasonably established and verified.
(b) ZEEFRMBEERE _FmiHA (b) The asset is marketable and there exists a readily available
AR EELE - secondary market for disposal of the asset.
© ATHEBAEEERRNBELTIRE (©)  The Bank's right to repossess the asset is legally enforceable and
BITFEWREEER R - without impediment.
d ATEBEFERAIHZEETFEES (d)  The Bankis able to secure control over the asset if necessary.
o
720174 [ 20165F12 A31 8 I £ 180 HA 8 483 There were no advances to banks and other financial institutions
18 A &98R1T R H At & BB EAK - which were overdue for over three months at 31 December 2017 and
2016.
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REHER (F) Rescheduled loans
2017 2016
HEFER EEPER
kB EE Kashiaze
BAE BOE
% of total % of total
loans and loans and
BT T advances to advances to
HK$’000 customers customers
KEHAER Rescheduled loans 537,979 0.274 0.002

REHE TR ERAR SN 2 S E L
NINEE R M8 T R BEK ERENG S
MVEATR B R E SR S AR E M
I FE—REEGER - FPEAERCHR
Higm i a3 (8 B 3 2 RO E R |
HREASK

R2017F K20165F12H31H » REBWED
EEMRITREM S BRI -

Rescheduled loans are those advances which have been restructured

or renegotiated because of a deterioration in the financial position

of the borrower, or the inability of the borrower to meet the original

repayment schedule and for which the revised repayment terms are

non-commercial to the Group. Rescheduled loans to customers are

stated net of any advances that have subsequently become overdue

for over three months and are reported as overdue advances in note

(E).

There were no advances to banks and other financial institutions
which were rescheduled at 31 December 2017 and 2016.

mEEE (G) Repossessed assets
2017 2016
BET T BT
HK$’000 HKS'000
it ABRFPER MBI LA MIRIEH Included in loans and advances to customers and
other accounts 184,411 175,768

BB AR 201712 A31 HEE & EREET
A -

The amount represents the estimated market value of the repossessed

assets at 31 December 2017.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(H) International claims

International claim refers to the sum of cross-border claims in all
currencies and local claims in foreign currencies determined as based
on the calculation methodology specified in the HKMA's Return of
International Banking Statistics. International claims are on-balance
sheet exposures of counterparties which attributable to the country or

segment, after taking into account risk recognised transfer, constitute

™~ to not less than 10% of the aggregate claims are disclosed as follows.
2017
RTINS
Non-bank private sector
FRAT
CRIKE e
Non-bank FIUN 1
R1T BB financial Non-financial Pk
Banks Official Sector institutions private sector Total
BT T BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEd L Offshore centres 7,120,802 869 13,827,960 37,914,745 58,864,376
Hp BB of which Hong Kong 6,489,207 282 13,081,673 29,814,181 49,385,343
BEPD KR Developing Asia-Pacific 66,646,716 83,611 5,916,565 60,216,815 132,863,707
HEhh B A of which mainland China 66,309,598 83,040 5,916,565 58,878,966 131,188,169
2016
JFRITRLABE
Non-bank private sector
FERIT
LREIE R
Non-bank FLARERE
R1T B financial ~ Non-financial ke
Banks  Official Sector institutions  private sector Total
BT BT BT BT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFA L Offshore centres 2,896,204 833 6,615,856 39,691,963 49,204,856
Hp & of which Hong Kong 2478854 5 5,808,429 26,081,589 34,368,877
BERPTKAE Developing Asia-Pacific 50,674,888 208,914 4,236,338 51,715,487 106,835,627
Herh B A of which mainland China 47,455,788 60,345 4,236,338 49,388,847 101,141,318

206 H{ERAT (EIRR) BRA R
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

()  Mainland Activities

defined by the HKMA's Return of Mainland Activities.

Mainland Activities are Mainland China exposures to non-bank
counterparties and their categories and the type of direct exposures

2017
BN KA B AR R b
Y L B AR I Y L B AR I
On-statement Off-statement
of financial of financial i
position exposure position exposure Total
BET T BETT BETT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
() RREAT ~ R REFEERLA Central government, central government-
RS T EL BB 2 RN owned entities and their subsidiaries and
RERE joint ventures ("JVs") 28,973,542 986,287 29,959,829
() b T B+ b7 BRI & Local governments, local government-owned
TR R EL BB 2 RN entities and their subsidiaries and JVs
RERE 15,138,695 745,750 15,884,445
Q) EAFRERAREF FHAM PRC national residing in Mainland China or other
BRI R E i I entities incorporated in Mainland China and
HBARNMaERE their subsidiaries and JVs 62,576,230 4,079,754 66,655,984
(4) NEIE Ll BT8R Other entities of central government not
oty R reported in item 1 above 6,796,166 297,253 7,093,419
(5) NEIE L 18R] Other entities of local governments not
H b h B EE reported in item 2 above 188,578 206,342 394,920
(6) EEFERMF B A PRC national residing outside Mainland China or
BINPBI R RE entities incorporated outside Mainland China
HR R IS M YA where the credit is granted for use in
Mainland China 9,682,747 3,309,615 12,992,362
(7) ot REREIE R R Other counterparties where the exposures are
PR NIRRT S F considered by the reporting institution to be
2 R A non-bank Mainland China exposures 26,655,744 786,898 27,442,642
HEg Total 150,011,702 10,411,899 160,423,601
CHREEENEERSE Total assets after provision 344,308,684
EESBRANABREERL On-balance sheet exposures as
HEEEDE percentage of total assets 43.6%
—m_ Ly 207
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

()  Mainland Activities (continued)

2016
BIARRERA BT RSN
£ [ B AR 6 [ Bz R
On-statement Off-statement
of financial of financial pckec]
position exposure  position exposure Total
BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
(1) B RIET ~ P RETIERRE Central government, central government-
HERERB RN owned entities and their subsidiaries and
BERE joint ventures ("JVs") 20,700,996 2,155,791 22,856,787
Q) ¥ BT+ H75 BUTIERR 8 Local governments, local government-owned
HERERB RN entities and their subsidiaries and JVs
RERE 14,706,685 517,541 15,224,226
3) AR E R RHEPEAM PRC national residing in Mainland China or other
XS ) E i 2 entities incorporated in Mainland China and their
HtEARMaERE subsidiaries and JVs 58,513,060 11,931,580 70,444,640
(4) B FILEI1IER Other entities of central government not
Hiph REUF RS reported in item 1 above 4,153,460 325,487 4,478,947
(5) NEIE LIlE2IER) Other entities of local governments not
H A 7 BT R reported in item 2 above 250,903 17,920 268,823
6) EEEARPE AL PRC national residing outside Mainland China or
FHNREI AR ok ¥ entities incorporated outside Mainland China
R BISR HNK ST R where the credit is granted for use in
Mainland China 11,699,470 3,280,734 14,980,204
(7) EAOH R AR A Other counterparties where the exposures are
PR A IERITR S TF considered by the reporting institution to be
P non-bank Mainland China exposures 23,411,016 3,348,508 26,759,524
b Total 133,435,590 21,577,561 155,013,151
EREHCNEELRE Total assets after provision 306,416,955
BEBBRNBBRAERL On-balance sheet exposures as
BEEFHE percentage of total assets 43.6%

FREIRT (B BRAH
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

0

Capital charge for operational risk

The capital charge for operational risk of the Group calculated in
accordance with the basic indicator approach at the end of the
reporting period is:

2017 2016

BT T T T

HK$’000 HK$'000

EBIRIER BN EAREK Capital charge for operational risk 1,005,779 912,435

AEBHANREREEE K - EARF
EANMEMBEZNSZHLANGEERR
MBS E R T MR [ A i 33 A A Y
TEER] R IBRFMGEIZES] EN
BRE - AMTEREBERUNTLEEGBESR
“EZEE REZET  FMEREENEER
LEBEEZEE - 2FRBESNBRANE
EREFRN [EREAREMER] B
REASEZ ERIARENA

(K) Corporate governance

The Group is committed to high standards of corporate governance
and has complied, in all material respects, throughout the year with
the modules on ‘Corporate Governance of Locally Incorporated
Authorised Institutions” and ‘Guideline on a Sound Remuneration
System” issued by the HKMA. The Board of Directors of the Bank has
established a number of committees including the Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and Credit &
Risk Management Committee. Their composition and functions
are explained in detail in “Corporate Information” and “Corporate
governance and other information”, which will be included in the
printed version of the Group’s annual report.
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Corporate Governance and
Other Information

The Group is committed to high standards of corporate governance and has

complied, in all material respects, throughout the year with the modules on

“Corporate Governance of Locally Incorporated Authorized Institutions” and

“Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System” issued by the HKMA.

Board Committees

The Board of Directors of the Bank has established the following

committees:

U]

(i)

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee, being an independent body, assists the Board
of Directors of the Bank in providing independent review of, and
monitoring, the effectiveness of the Bank’s financial reporting process
and internal control systems.

It comprises three members, majority of whom (including the
chairman) are Independent Non-executive Directors. Their names and
biographies are set out in the sections of “Corporate Information” and
“Biographies of Directors”.

Meetings of the Audit Committee shall be held not less than once in
each quarter. Representatives of the external auditor and, the Chief
Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Chief Auditor of the
Bank are invited to attend these meetings. During the year ended
31 December 2017, a total of four meetings of the Audit Committee
were held.

Credit & Risk Management Committee

The Credit & Risk Management Committee oversees the Bank's
risk strategy, appetite/tolerance, profile, fair value practices, capital
adequacy and risk cultural related matters. It has to ensure that the
risk management function of the Bank has adequate authority, stature,
independence, management support and resources to perform its
duties. The risks concerned primarily include credit, market, interest
rate, liquidity, operational, reputation, legal and strategic risks. It is
also responsible for approving matters relating to Internal Capital
Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP), the Reverse Stress Testing
(RST) methodology, and endorsing the recovery planning document
before reporting to the Board for approval on an annual basis.
The committee carries out its oversight function on the Bank’s risk
management through various committees at the Bank’s management
level, including the Credit Committee, the Non-Performing Loans
Committee, the Investment Review Committee, the Market Risk
Committee, the Asset and Liability Committee, the Operational Risk
Management Committee and the Management Committee.
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Corporate Governance and Other Information

Board Committees (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Credit & Risk Management Committee (continued)

It comprises four members, majority of whom (including the
chairman) are Independent Non-executive Directors. Their names and
biographies are set out in the sections of “Corporate Information” and
“Biographies of Directors”.

Meetings of the Credit & Risk Management Committee shall be held
not less than once in each quarter. The Chief Risk Officer, General
Counsel, Chief Information and Operations Officer, Chief Financial
Officer, Director of CEO Office, Chief Compliance Officer, Group
Head of Personal & Business Banking and Group Head of Wholesale
and Cross-border Banking of the Bank are invited to attend these
meetings. During the year ended 31 December 2017, a total of four
meetings of the Credit & Risk Management Committee were held.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee assists the Board of Directors of the Bank
to review the structure, size and composition of the Board and of
the committees at the Board's level, and to make recommendations
on any proposed changes if necessary. It also assists in identifying
suitable candidates qualified to become Directors, Chief Executive
Officer, Deputy Chief Executive Officer and Alternate Chief Executive
Officer, and making recommendations to the Board on succession
planning for Directors, Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Bank.

It comprises four members, majority of whom (including the
chairman) are Independent Non-executive Directors. Their names and
biographies are set out in the sections of “Corporate Information” and
“Biographies of Directors”.

Meetings of the Nomination Committee shall be held not less than
once in each year. Chief Personnel Officer of the Bank is invited to
attend these meetings. During the year ended 31 December 2017, a
total of two meetings of the Nomination Committee were held.
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Corporate Governance and Other Information

Board Committees (continued)

(iv) Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for reviewing and
approving the remuneration-related policies and structure of
the Bank, and also the bonus pool proposed pursuant to the
prevailing variable compensation schemes. It is also responsible for
approving the remuneration packages of the Chairman of the Board,
senior management and key personnel as defined in the Master
Remuneration Policy, and compensation arrangements relating to
the dismissal or removal of Directors. The committee has to ensure
that an annual review of the Bank’s remuneration system and its
operations, which includes an assessment of consistency with the
relevant regulatory rules or guidelines, is conducted independently of
management.

It comprises four members, majority of whom (including the
chairman) are Independent Non-executive Directors. Their names and
biographies are set out in the sections of “Corporate Information” and
“Biographies of Directors”.

Meetings of the Remuneration Committee shall be held not less than
once in each year. Chief Personnel Officer of the Bank is invited to
attend these meetings. During the year ended 31 December 2017, a
total of two meetings of the Remuneration Committee were held.

Remuneration Matters

The Bank seeks to reward staff for their contribution to the success and
sustainable growth of the Bank. To this end, the Bank has put in place the
Master Remuneration Policy and a structured reward system that enable
the Bank to attract and retain appropriate people in the highly competitive
manpower market, promote effective risk management, and support the
Bank's business objectives. The policy is applicable to the Bank, its overseas
offices and its subsidiaries.
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Corporate Governance and Other Information

Remuneration Matters (continued)

During the year 2017, in executing its role and responsibilities in supervising

the Bank's remuneration policies and structure, the major work performed

by the Remuneration Committee included:

(i)

engaged an external consulting firm, Willis Towers Watson, to review
the remuneration policy and systems against regulatory requirements
and sound remuneration governance framework;

updated the Master Remuneration Policy to further strengthen the
Bank’s governance;

reviewed and approved the proposed variable pay for 2016 and the
pay review proposal for 2017

determined the remuneration packages of the senior management
and key personnel of the Bank;

discussed and reviewed the fees payable to the directors and made
its recommendation to the Board;

reviewed the Remuneration Committee’s effectiveness in discharging
its roles and responsibilities, and its terms of reference.

Reward System

The reward system is designed based on the Total Compensation
Framework (“TCF"). Total Compensation comprises a fixed component
(Guaranteed Cash), a variable component, and benefits.

The Bank's variable remuneration includes Performance Bonus and
Retention Award which mainly take the form of cash bonus, while
Long-term Incentive is a form of phantom share scheme (Book Value
Appreciation Rights Scheme).

Performance Bonus Scheme is intended to reward performance in the
preceding year. In determination of the Performance Bonus pool of
the Bank, the Remuneration Committee would consider both financial
factors (including Operating Profit and other financial ratios against
the market) and non-financial factors (including but not limited to
compliance risk, liquidity risk and operational risk management).
Unsatisfactory performance in non-financial factors will lead to
reduction of Performance Bonus pool.
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Corporate Governance and Other Information

Remuneration Matters (continued)

U]

Reward System (continued)

Allocations of Performance Bonus to individual employees are based
on assessment on the achievement against key measures including
financial, risk management, regulatory and compliance, growth,
people and team, as well as staff competencies and behaviour. Such
variable remuneration is subject to a deferral provision, under which
if the variable remuneration of an employee exceeds the prescribed
threshold, a portion of the variable remuneration will be deferred
in order to align remuneration with the time horizon of risk and to
allow their performance, including the associated risks, be validated
over a period of time. The unvested deferred remuneration will be
forfeited where it is later established that there has been fraud or
other malfeasance on the part of the employee or violations by the
employee of internal control policies.

The Retention Award is granted for retention of high-performing staff
or those in key job roles. It is payable under a deferred arrangement
and will be discounted or forfeited in case the employees have any
material adverse findings before the Retention Award is paid.

The Long-term Incentive is aimed to motivate executives towards
increasing shareholders’” wealth while balancing long-term risk
management. Under the Long-term Incentive Scheme, payment of
incentive is determined by the appreciation in the Bank's net asset
value over a 3-year period and is made at the end of the performance
period. Payment is deferred until performance results create the
economic value that triggers an award. It is designed to align
employees’ reward with long-term value creation.
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Corporate Governance and Other Information

Remuneration Matters (continued)

(ii)

Methodologies and Approaches

Methodologies and approaches applied to remuneration arrangement
include but not limited to the followings:

- Total Compensation Framework to ensure optimal level of
remuneration and to deliver balanced solution.

- Market Benchmarking to take into account market relativities,
having regard to the need to attract, motivate and retain talents.

- Job evaluation to determine relative size of different position
and therefore corresponding level of reward.

- Performance Management System linked with reward system
to support performance-oriented culture.

- Talent Identification and Classification Method taking into
account performance and potential for differentiation when
granting variable rewards.

- Promotion review mechanism with consideration of
competency requirements and performance to support the
Bank’s manpower plan.

- Remuneration Committee assists the Board in the design and
operation of the remuneration system. The Committee held two
meetings in 2017. Members of the Remuneration Committee
are Non-executive Directors of the Bank and are paid Directors’
fee.

- Engagement of external consulting firm in verification of
incentive scheme to ensure effectiveness (to be commissioned
by the Chairman of the Board), when necessary.
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F=EE (&) Remuneration Matters (continued)
(i) SREEAERBEES THHMH (iii) Remuneration of Senior Management and Key Personnel
SR EBAERTASETEREENEE - Senior Management (“SM") is defined as heads of major functional
ARETIRTEREE P RAESEKAREREA units and Key Personnel ("KP") is defined as those whose activities
KPNTEEBERRERNES - involve the assumption of material risk or the taking on of material
exposures on behalf of the Bank.
20175 - B8R BEIHEEASREREA There were 8 employees being classified as SM and 4 employees
B 44 BIRBRRMEBET - WAL being classified as KP during the financial year of 2017 and aggregate
ENEZesREEABRBERE THFHMER quantitative information on remuneration for the 12 SM and KP is set
KEEENT - out below:
(a) 2017$ K20165F Bf E( FENFME (@) Amounts of remuneration for the financial years 2017 and 2016,
CABETEEB - ] EHNETTE split into fixed and variable remuneration:
paNE,
77 .
2017 2016
FEE 413 FHET BT
Non-deferred Deferred Non-deferred Deferred
EEAE BEEI BEAE BREI EBEAE BREEI EBAE @RSI
SM KP SM KP SM KP SM KP
BETT BETn B%Tn B%Trx A%Tr AT AT BT
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
& & Fixed remuneration
54 K2 ~ Salary and allowance 26,733 5,400 - - 26,375 7,681 - -
A Variable remuneration
— BRIt ~ Performance Bonus (*PB’) 21,849 3,040 7,993 960 23220 3,002 8,658 772
—REDEENFEN - Long-term incentive (‘LTI") - - 4,736 330 - - 6,739 150

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
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Corporate Governance and Other Information

Remuneration Matters (continued)

(iii) Remuneration of Senior Management and Key Personnel

(continued)

(b)

Amounts and form of outstanding deferred variable
remuneration, split into (i) vested,and (ii) unvested as at 31
December 2017 and 31 December 2016 are set out below:

2017 2016
BREBAE MEET =HEEAR BHEET
SM KP SM Kp
BETR BETT BB BETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(i) EHE (i) Vested
— BB -PB 2,210 518 3.986 613
— 0 R B - MTR 6,664 1,032 5,743 1,000
— R HE R B - LTl 6,664 - 5226 -
(i) HAZIE (i) Unvested
—BRAEAL -PB 20,664 1,301 14,380 1,524
— B S - MTR - - 6,664 1379
— R B & B - LTl 19,353 480 21,021 827

A TE20174F 28R » WASFE2018F 21+ ©

WI7FEERTEREEABRBARE
THFENHAUETHEBEEAR
7 112,729,0007T R 7% #1,290,0007T °
FER BB AR AR A&
BB E B o T &= HR BB BN Y S A+
EEURAIE = FERFENEZRNE
S e FE b X (a) K (b) (i) PR B = HA AL
B Bt 2 B AR E R R A B E PR
WE B IREEE -

REMWAE - R2017FRNERE R
MBELHMTFaREEAE RBER
8 T % Bl A& 7 #15,538,0007T M 7 ¥
1,550,0007T © £ i@ ZE 4 57 {d - 72017
FEELBEELEH N ETAR -

A Vested in 2017 and will be paid in 2018

Amounts of deferred variable remuneration for the financial
year 2017 for SM and KP was HK$12,729,000 and HK$1,290,000
respectively. The aforesaid are the Deferred Performance Bonus
and LTI. For the LTI scheme, payment will be determined by
achievement of the long-term goals set for the performance
period of 3 years. The variable remuneration in form of LTI
reported in (a) and (b) (i) above are the target cash value at
maturity upon achieving the long-term goals.

From a 2017 payment perspective, deferred variable
remuneration for SM and KP amounted to HK$15,538,000 and
HK$1,550,000 respectively was vested. No discount of deferred
variable remuneration was made for performance adjustment.
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Corporate Governance and Other Information

Remuneration Matters (continued)

(i)

Remuneration of Senior Management and Key Personnel
(continued)

(e)  Guaranteed bonuses amounted to HK$800,000 was granted to
1 KP during the financial year of 2017, and will be paid in April
2018.No SM and KP has been awarded with severance payment
during financial year of 2017.

fRES -
h EEELEFHH - B TEHABEKE () Quantitative information about employee’s exposure to implicit
BAENSEE and explicit adjustments of deferred remuneration:
2017 2016
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
) 7R S A< i T S AR AR ok Total amount of outstanding
W55 e 2 B ) 30 REE S deferred remuneration and
retained remuneration exposed
to ex post explicit/implicit BREREANE/SM 19,353 21,021
adjustment FAgE 8 T/KP 480 827
MAREAEEE - BB Total amount of reductions during
ok B2 5 58 2 1 1 B R the financial year due to ex post =R EIEAB/SM - -
ZIREE BN AREE explicit/implicit adjustments RAsE 8 T/KP - -

(iv) EfeiZHBEST

RpEHREE TRERRER AR A
B TR - NEREEIE R RS E IR RAE -

B2 | B BE A B ) S BB L A 1K S P B AR
EBEMNRT - AFMPEERNEZ OB
BE M BEFEIR R SER B © R TEOR E B 4%
BEE ABFMEEEE KT - ZBBEAR
EVF NS 2 RIS KT KA B GIFEEE

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

(iv)

Staff within risk control function

Staff within Risk Control Function includes risk management, legal,
compliance, audit, internal control, and financial management
function.

The remuneration of Risk Control Function staff is determined by their
functional job responsibilities and achievements against key measures
specific to the functional role they undertake, which are independent
from the performance of the business they oversee. Remuneration of
Risk Control Function staff is carefully benchmarked with the market
and internally to ensure that it is set at an appropriate level.






BB EEET61-65%

61-65 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong
BEE Tel (852) 3603 6633

{EE Fax: (852) 3603 4000

info@cncbinternational.com
www.cnchinternational.com




	封面
	目錄
	企業背景
	使命
	財務概況
	董事長報告
	行政總裁報告
	2017業務回顧
	董事簡介
	高級行政人員簡介
	企業資料
	董事會報告書
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合收益表
	綜合全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	財務報表附註
	未經審核補充財務資料
	企業管治及其他資料
	封底內封
	封底 



